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All times are approximate and for reference only.   

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein. 
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Information about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133.  A fee may be 
charged for copies.  District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If special 
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting. 

 
Est. 
Time Item Subject 

7:30 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER  

 1.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, April 1, 2014 

 2.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  

 3.  OPEN TIME:  (Please observe a three-minute time limit) 

  This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not 
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water 
District.  When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask 
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a 
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  The public may also 
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration. 

 4.  STAFF/DIRECTORS REPORTS 

 5.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 6.  MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT w/Customer Service Questionnaire 

8:00 p.m.  ACTION CALENDAR 

 7.  Approve: Novato Spring WaterLine, Volume 16, Issue 32 

 8.  Approve: Draft Rate Increases for letters to West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer 
Customers 

 9.  Approve: Stafford Lake Water Quality Evaluation Consultant Services 

 10.  Approve: Gallagher Well Pipeline Project: Award Contract to Team Ghilotti Inc.  

 11.  Approve: San Francisco Bay Area Integrated Regional Water Management Plan Update        
                                                                                                                                     Resolution 

 12.  Approve:  CSW/ST2 Contract Amendment Marin Sonoma Narrows/AEEP 

 13.  Approve:  Miller Pacific Engineering Group – Consulting Services Agreement 

  INFORMATION ITEMS 

 14.  Initial Review -  FY 15 & FY 16 Capital Improvement Project Budget 

 15.  Initial Review - Proposed FY 14/15 Equipment Budget 

 16.  WAC/TAC – April 7, 2014 

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING 

April 15, 2014 – 7:30 p.m. 
District Headquarters 

999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, California 
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Est. 
Time Item Subject 

 17.  MISCELLANEOUS 
Disbursements 
Self-Insured Workers’ Comp – 3rd Quarter Status Report 
Copy of Rate Increase Letter  
Source – Baywork’s Workshop on Wheels 
Public Notice- Novato Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance 28 
Legal Notice – West Marin Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance 29 

  
News Articles: 
Voluntary 20% cutback adopted for Novato North Marin Water District Customers 
County honors Giacomini Dairy 
New groundwater rules needed now 
Movers & Shakers: San Rafael engineering firm wins state excellence award 
Letter to the Editor: Wasteful with water 
Michael DiGiorgio, former Novato mayor, dies of leukemia 
Marin Clean Energy raises rates 
Water and schools show up as top voter concerns 
Novato remembers Mike DiGiorgio 
Stafford Lake bike park receives another $25K 
City manager unveils $32.7M budget 
NMWD starts voluntary rations 
Marin water crunch was eased by late winter, spring rains 

9:30 p.m. 18.  ADJOURNMENT 
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Item #1

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 1 ,2014

CALL TO ORDER

President Rodoni called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin Water

District to order at 7:30 p.m. at the District headquarlers and the agenda was accepted as

presented. Present were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, Stephen Petterle, Dennis Rodoni and

John Schoonover. Also present were General Manager Chris DeGabriele, Acting District Secretary

Renee Robeds, Auditor-Controller David Bentley and Chief Engineer Drew Mclntyre.

District Legal Counsel Doug Coty, Novato resident Harry Brophy, Marin lndependent Journal

reporter Janis Mara, and District employees Robert Clark (Operations/Maintenance Superintendent)

and Tony Arendell (Construction/Maintenance Superintendent) were in the audience.

MINUTES

On motion of Director Schoonover, seconded by Director Petterle and unanimously carried

the Board approved the minutes from the previous meeting as presented.

G EN ERAL MAN AG ER'S REPO RT

Out of the Office

Mr. DeGabriele reminded the Board that he will be out of the office and state starting on

Thursday, April 3'd until FridayApril 11th. He noted that Drew Mclntyrewill bethe acting General

Manager in his absence.

NBWA Conference

Mr. DeGabriele stated that the North Bay Watershed Association Conference will be on April

11th and he, Drew Mclntyre and Directors Baker and Fraites will be attending.

RJ Kauwe

Mr. DeGabriele requested that the Board adjourn tonight's meeting in memory of RJ Kauwe,

son of long time District employee Joe Kauwe, and asked that the Board keep his family in their

prayers,

OPEN TIME

President Rodoni asked if anyone in the audience wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and the following items were discussed:
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Novato resident, Harry Brophy from Kendon Lane, expressed his concern about suspension

of work by Sonoma County Water Agency on the expanded transmission system project and the

parallel Petaluma Aqueduct will make Novato's water supply more vulnerable in the even of

earthquakes. He asked about the possibilities of breakage, loss of water and an additional pipeline.

President Rodoni stated that the parallel aqueduct has not been forgotten about and that is

has been delayed by Sonoma County Water Agency and agreed that earthquakes are a big issue.

Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board and Mr. Brophy that there is always a chance for a new

line and that the District and SCWA are working together to figure out the best way for the future.

Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that the SMART crossing work will be done this weekend

and next weekend. He informed the Board that Rush Creek work will be the weekend of April 4 - 6

and Golden Gate Place work will take place on April 11-13.

STAFF / , REPORTS

President Rodoni asked if staff or Directors wished to bring up an item not on the agenda

and there was no response.

PUBLIC HEARING/ADO PT EM ERG EN CY WAT ER COA'SERVA TI O N NCE_ NOVATO

SERVICE AREA

Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board that since early January the Board has been keeping

kept apprised of the water supply conditions in Novato and on the Russian River. He stated that at

the March 4th meeting, a public hearing was scheduled for the meeting tonight to declare a Water

Shortage Emergency in Novato and consider enactment of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan.

He noted that at that meeting the Board also endorsed the Water Advisory Committee Resolution

supporling the Sonoma Marin Saving Water Partnership Efforls and Governor Brown's Emergency

Drought Declaration, which includes seeking 20% voluntary conservation. Mr, DeGabriele stated

that current rainfall is 1 1.84" in Novato, which is about the same as was received in 1976 and 1977

water years. He advised the Board that at the end of January 2014 Novato had received only 2.35",

so in February and March this year the District has received nearly 9.5" of additional rainfall. Mr.

DeGabriele passed out charts that included previous year's rainfall data compared to March 2Q14.

He informed the Board that currently Stafford Lake is at620/o capacity, holding 2,6004F (acre feet),

Lake Sonoma is at75% of capacity, with 182,0004F and Lake Mendocino is just under 50%

capacity with 43,0004F. He noted that Lake Pillsbury was at 11o/o capadty in early February and

now is at 93% capacity with 70,0004F of water. Mr. DeGabriele reminded the Board that the District

was in a similar drought situation back although in 2009, the storage levels in lakes Mendocino and

Sonoma were higher and there were mandatory cutbacks. He noted that the District is fortunate

NMWD Draft Minutes 2 o18 April 1 ,2014
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enough to be going into the Water Shorlage Emergency situation without having to ask for

mandatory cutbacks. He þelieves there is enough water in Lake Sonoma to get the District through

this dry year. Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board that some of the otherwater contractors receiving

Russian River water are not going to declare a Water Shorlage Emergency. He stated that he

believes if the District is going to ask forvoluntary conservation that a plan should be enacted. He

expressed his disappointment in the lack of attendance at the public meeting and advised the Board

that the public hearing was noticed in the Marin lndependent Journal, the Novato Advance and

posted on the District website. He noted that the District website included the Draft Water Shodage

Contingency Plan and the Draft Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance. Mr. DeGabriele

informed the Board that staff did not receive any phone calls but consumption has gone down

considerably since February. He stated that staff is working on more public outreach going forward

to urge customers to reduce water usage and help them achieve that end.

Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that he asked legal counselto reviewthe Water Shodage

Contingency Plan and the Ordinance. He provided the Board and staff with the updated changes

legal counsel suggested and advised the Board how the District can determine what stage it is in

and how it goes from one stage to the next. He advised the Board that there are specific triggers

that vary based on water supply conditions on the Russian River and Lake Sonoma. Mr. DeGabriele

advised the Board of the changes in the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and stated that he

doesn't believe the Novato Area will be required to implement Stage 2 mandatory requirements and

believes customers can accomplish the 20% voluntary water use reduction.

Mr. DeGabriele stated that staff is preparing a WaterLrne newsletter issue directing

customers to the website to view their past usage and target water use reduction goals. Mr.

DeGabriele informed the Board that staff has provided a chart on the District website to show

customers bi-monthly history so they can determine their individual requested 20% reduction target.

He noted that Sonoma Marin Saving Water Partnership's website has a water savings calculator

and a list of measures to save water. Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that should the District need

to implement mandatory restrictions he recommends another public hearing be held.

President Rodoni asked why there would be a need for another public hearing. Mr.

DeGabriele stated that the Board is able to adopt the whole plan but believes with no public

attendance there will be criticism and an additional public hearing should be held should mandatory

requirements be needed.

President Rodoni expressed his concern about holding another public hearing to declare

mandatory restrictions with the time constraints. Mr. DeGabriele stated that he does not believe we
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will need to have mandatory restrictions as the lakes have ample storage to get the District through

the year.

Director Schoonover asked if the District will be in the same position next year. Mr.

DeGabriele responded that it could happen and that Novato has now experienced three years in a

row of below average rainfall.

President Rodoni opened the public hearing at 8:02 p.m., hearing no public comment; he

closed the public hearing at 8:03 p.m.

On motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Fraites and unanimously carried, the

Board enacted the Novato Water Shortage Contingency Plan and adopted the Emergency Water

Conservation Ordinance 28 stating: An Ordinance of North Marin Water District Declaring the

Existence of a Water Shortage Emergency Condition within the Novato Service Area of the District,

Prohibiting the Waste and Non-Essential Use of Water, and Providing for the Conservation of the

Water Supply of the District.

PUBLIC HEA DOPT EMERGENCY WATER CONSERVATION NCE. WEST

MARIN SERVICE

Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board that Kent Lake rainfall was at27.64",just shy of the 28"

needed by April 1't for normal year Lagunitas Creek stream flow. He stated that the Board

scheduled a public hearing for tonight to declare a Water Shorlage Emergency and enact the

Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance. Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that this is the first

dry year since Water Right Order 95-17 was adopted in 1995. He noted that Lagunitas Creek flows

are scheduled to be 14cfs (cubic feet per second) as of today and will drop to 1 Ocfs on May 1't and

6cfs on June 16th pursuant to Water Right Order 95-17. Mr. DeGabriele stated that the District may

have to purchase water from Marin Municipal Water District specifically to address the salinity

intrusion problems during the summer.

Mr. DeGabriele reminded the Board that the Water Shortage Contingency Plan for West

Marin was included in the agenda packet. He stated that similar changes to the document to that

made to the Novato plan had been recommended by District legal counsel.

Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board that staff issued a bill message in West Marin in

February and a press release in the Point Reyes Light and West Marin Citizen was issued. He noted

that the West Marin WaterLine newsletter will be sent out as well describing the Water Shortage

Contingency Plan as well as the Ordinance. Mr. DeGabriele stated that staff is proposing a 15%

reduction until June 30th, followed by a 25% mandatory reduction from July 1't to November 1't. He

noted that the only difference in the West Marin Water Shortage Contingency Plan and Emergency

NMWD Draft Minutes 4ofB April '1 ,2014
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Water Conservation Ordinance is the drought surcharge. He stated that staff is required to hold a

separate public hearing regarding the rate changes. Mr. DeGabriele reminded the Board that the

public hearing on rate changes is scheduled for June 24th in Point Reyes and pursuant to

Proposition 218, the District is required to provide customer notice 45 days in advance of the

meeting.

President Rodoni asked how the District can convince customers to conserve 25%. Mr.

DeGabriele stated that the District will have the same program for West Marin as it does in Novato.

He stated that all customers will have the target and staff will rely on the Sonoma Marin Saving

Water Partnership calculator. Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board that Ryan Grisso, Water

Conservation Coordinator, has been exploring outreach methods for West Marin.

Director Baker asked if the water use is higher due to the demographics and President

Rodoni stated that he believes its weather related.

President Rodoni opened the public hearing at8:17 p.m., and hearing no public comment,

he closed the public hearing at 8:18 p.m.

On motion of Director Schoonover, seconded by Director Baker and unanimously carried the

Board enacted the West Marin Water Shortage Contingency Plan and adopted the Emergency

Water Conservation Ordinance 29 stating: An Ordinance of North Marin Water District Declaring the

Existence of a Water Shortage Emergency Condition within the West Marin Service Area of the

District, Prohibiting the Waste and Non-Essential Use of Water, and Providing for the Conservation

of the Water Supply of the District.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On the motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Schoonover and unanimously

carried, the following items were approved on the consent calendar:

DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS

The District's Policy for the Retention of Documents and Destruction of Specified

Documents stated that once a year, on or about April 21st, the documents designated as eligible will

be destroyed in an appropriate manner. This year, destruction of records is scheduled for April 25,

2014. Board and staff are invited to bring in personal records for shredding at a cost of $7 per box.

The Board approved Resolution 14-05 stating: "Resolution of the Board of Directors of Nodh

Marin Water District to Approve Destruction of Certain Records."
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WEST MARIN SPRING WATERLINE

Board received text for the West Marin Spring WaterLine. This issue has an expanded

message to include information regarding dry year conditions on Lagunitas Creek and the

Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance requirements. The Board authorized the General

Manager to approve text and design of West Marin's Spring 2014 WaterLine, Volume 11.

ACTION CALENDAR

RATE INCREASE LETTER TO NOVATO CUSTOMERS

Mr. Bentley advised the Board that staff has drafted a letter to notify customers of the public

hearing scheduled for Tuesday, May 20, 2014 at 7:30 p.m. at the District office regarding the

proposed Novato water rate increase. He noted that the proposed commodity rate increase for

Novato customers is 6.5%. Mr. Bentley informed the Board that in addition to the rate increase the

letter includes information on the drought surcharge that will be considered at the meeting. He

advised the Board that District legal counsel has reviewed the letter and is at the meeting to answer

any additional questions the Board may have. Mr. Bentley informed the Board that the surcharge

would add $1 .00 per 1 ,000 gallons per day on top of the current rates. He noted that for residential

customers, the proposed surcharge would apply only to use over 300 gallons per day. Mr. Bentley

stated that once the letter is finalized it will go to the printer and be sent out no later than 45 days

prior to the meeting in order to be in compliance with Proposition 218.

President Rodoni asked about the repercussions from SCWA and the drought surcharge.

Mr. DeGabriele stated that the drought surcharge would be enacted only if the District requires

mandatory restrictions.

President Rodoni was concerned aþout tying the surcharge to liquidated damaged costs

associated with Russian River water purchases,

Doug Coty, District legal counsel, stated thatthere is always some element of projection with

regards to drought surcharges and fees from SCWA for liquidated damages. He noted that the

surcharge can always be reduced.

President Rodoni stated that he would feel more comfortable if the letter stated a "possible

surcharge." Mr. DeGabriele agreed that would be a good change.

On motion of Director Schoonover, seconded by Director Baker and unanimously carried,

the Board approved mailing the rate increase letter to customers with the requested changes.
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INFORMATION ITEMS

OCEANA MARIN CONTRACT SERVICES WITH PHILLIPS & ASSOCIATES

Robert Clark, provided the Board with a recap of the District contract with Phillips &

Associates over the last five years for operation and maintenance of the Oceana Marin sewer

system. He stated that staff does not believe that Phillips & Associates is doing a good job of

maintaining the Oceana Marin Sewer facilities or responding to emergencies in a timely manner. Mr.

Clark advised the Board that staff and Phillips & Associates had a meeting to discuss a scope of

work and decided that District staff was more than capable of handling the maintenance of the

facilities. He informed the Board that Phillips & Associates had been working on a month{o-month

basis since the contract expired in June 2013 and a letter to acknowledge the termination would be

sufficient notice.

Director Baker expressed his disappointment in Phillips & Associates and asked if there

were any other companies that are capable of doing the maintenance and responding to

emergencies.

Mr. Clark stated that the District is capable of handling the maintenance and will have a

faster response time when emergencies occur than Phillips & Associates.

Director Schoonover asked how there was no financial impact although it would be

increasing employees time expended.

Mr. Clark stated that there would be no additional financial impact. He stated that the District

is going to increase cost in the next fiscal year budget and that staff is going to defer some minor

maintenance until the next fiscal year.

President Rodoni suggested noticing Oceana Marin's Homeowners' Association. Mr.

DeGabriele agreed and stated that the District was going to do so and send letters to customers.

WAC/TAC- APRIL7.2014

Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that he will not be attending the WAC/TAC meeting on

April 7th, but Drew Mclntyre and President Rodoniwill be in attendance.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous information: Disbursements, New Phone

Numþers, Lock BoxService Operational3l20l14, Press Release-Vandalism atAirBaseTank, and

Retirement Celebration honoring Ed Hulme.

The Board received the following news articles: Tomales services district to bid jobs, Mike

McGuire, his election assured, remains little known in Marin, Parks superintendent faces ALS in
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retirement, Experts call for long view on drought, Dick Spotswood - lll, and Corporate donors boost

$1 million bike park at Novato Stafford Lake.

The Board also received the following miscellaneous items at the meeting: SMART

Construction News Advisory Railroad Crossing Closures.

ADJOURNMENT

On motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Fraites and unanimously carried, the

Board added an item to the agenda to adjourn the meeting in memory of RJ Kauwe.

On motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Baker and unanimously carried,

President Rodoni adjourned the meeting at 8:40 p.m, in memory of RJ Kauwe.

Submitted by

Katie Young
District Secretary
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To:

From

Subj:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

David L, Bentley, Auditor-Controller

lnformation - FY13/14 March Financial Statement
t:\accountants\f¡n€nc¡als\stmtf y1 4\md&4031 4.doc

April 1 1,2014

FISCAL YEAR.TO-DATE PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Other Sources / (Uses)*

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)

See Page 8.

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

($32,888) $2,246,635

Mar-14
$1,222,932
$1 ,259,181

($61,686)

FY13114
YTD Actual

$15,475,068
$12,836,499

($480,846)

FY13t14
Budget

$18,585,000
$16,046,000

($618,000)

FYTD /
Budqet %

B3%
B0%
78%

($97,935)

$906,294
92,157,724
$5,239,5ô3

$1,921,000
$545,000

112%
961%

For the first nine months (75%) of the fiscal year the District generated a net income of $2,157,724 and
saw a net cash increase of $7,397,287, The cash increase is largely attributable to the receipt of $4.7
million in Recycled Water grant and loan funds. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue
came in 10% over budget and Operating Expense came in 60/o over budget. Twenty-nine percent of the
Capital lmprovement Projects Budget was expended this fiscal year-to-date. The District's cash
balance increased $808,359 during the month, due primarily to receipt of $267,000 from MMWD as
payment for water backfed into Statford Lake and the $480,000 initial payment required of MMWD upon
execution of the lnterconnection Agreement.

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

Mar-14
$1 ,152,466
91,147,713

($37,641)

FYTD
13t14

$14,265,879
$11,755,236

($264,008)

FYTD
12t13

$11,799,641
$11,028,693

($1 59,1 48)

FY14 vs 13

Up/(Down)
21o/o

7%
66%
267%
(0%)
7%
B%

267%
242%
59%

20,486
176

$4.40
($1.61)
($0.1e)

$0
$8,159

20,486
2,234
$4.64

$109.67
$1.01

$354,462
$49,362

_$61xg!g_
20,491
2,081
$4.28

$29.86
$0.29

$223,439
$0

Consumption for the period wãs 7o/o more than the prior year. Total operating revenue, which includes
wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, increased 21o/o ($2,466,238) due to the 1 1o/o rate
increase commencing June 1,2013 combined with the consumption increase, plus $267,000 in
revenue from Marin Municipal Water as reimbursement for water backfed into Stafford Lake. Total
operating expense was 7% ($726,543) more than last year same period, due primarily to an increase in
water treatment expense, coupled with an increase in the volume of purchased water, including 117
MG purchased and backfed into Statford Lake for MMWD.

I



Memo re March Financial Statement
April11,2014
Page 2 of 3

The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 326 MG this fiscal year-to-date at a cost of g4,778lMcr versus
$2,201/MG3 from SCWA. The budget for Statford is 750 MG at a cost of $2,811/MG.

Salary and benefit cost charged to Novato operations wãs 4o/o more than the same per¡od last year.
Statf time (hours) charged to Novato operations was 4o/o less than last year same period. Salary and
benefit cost was $4,045,1 92, which was 72o/o of the $5,648,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year-to-date net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and
expense) of $2,246,635 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of fi2,021,000 and to a net
income of $611,800 for the prior year same period. $1,858,245 Qao/o) of the Novato Water Capital
lmprovement Project Budget was spent versus $840,712 (270/o) for the prior year same period. No
connection fees were collected ($860,000 is budgeted). The Novato cash balance increased $803,065
in March, and stood at $15,254,095 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $12,833,000
at June 30,2014.

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
Deer lsland Production (MG)
Novato Sanitary Production (MG)
Las Gallinas Production (MG)
Potable Water lnput (MG)

Mar-14
$17,735
$49,547

($22,041\

_($53,852t
44
3.4

$4.44
0,0
0.0
1.2
0.9

FYTD
13114

$467,407
$436,041

($214,877\

-($183'511I
44

100.9

94,44
1.6

59.4
39.3

9.6

FYTD
12t13

$157,91 1

9257,164
$239 B

15

37.7

$4.11
31.5
4.5
0.0
0.0

FY14 vs '13

Up/(Down)
1960/o

70%
(10%)
(46%)

193%
168%

Bo/o

(e5%)
1208o/o

100.9 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year{o-date. Operating revenue was up 196% due
primarily to the 1680/o consumption increase coupled with the June 1 ,2013 8% commodity rate increase.
Total operating expense was $178,877 (70o/o) more than last year same period, due primarily to the
addition of purchased water cost from NSD and LGVSD. The recycled water was produced at a cost of
$3,670/MG2 versus $2,201/MG3 from SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is
$4,692/MG.

The fiscal year{o-date net loss of $183,511 compares to a budgeted net loss for the year of $339,000
and a net loss of $339,091 for the prior year same period. $435,969 (218Yo) of the Capital lmprovement
Project Budget has been expended this fiscal year{o-date.

To date, $15,718,104 has been expended on the North/South Area Expansion Projects, and $3,656,062
in Grant funds and $9,722,222 in SRF Loan funds have been received. The final $12,187 in grant
funding is anticipated to be received this Spring, Grant and loan proceeds enabled the Recycled Water
System to fully repay the money borrowed from the Novato potable water system, and fund its reserves.
Novato Recycled ended the month with a cash balance of $1 ,223,051 compared to a budgeted projection
of $945,000 at June 30,2014.

1 
Stafford production cost = op expense ($890,679) + SRF loan interest ($247 ,g47) + plant depreciation ($419,06 1, t 326 MG produced

2 
Recycled Water production cost = op expense before depreciation ($225,323) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan interest ($58,034) + Deer

lsland plant depreciation ($86,939) / 100.9 MG produced
t 

SCWA production cost per MG = O&M charge ($1,808) + debt service charge ($154) + Russ¡an River conservation charge ($1e+¡ + Russian
River projects charge ($45)

2
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WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Compar¡son
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

lncome/ (Loss) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

Mar-14
$37,846
$49,919
($2,227\

FYTD
13t14
$608,327
$488,396
($28,203)

FYTD
12t13

$526,470
$399,350

$658

_$1n,779
776
55.9

$7.51
$164.66

$2.29
$4,900

($1,451)

FY14 vs 13

Up/(Down)
160/o

22o/o

($14,300) (ZBYo)

0o/o

5o/o

9%
(28o/o)

(32Yo)

(100%)

776
3.4

$7.01
($18.43)

($4.2t ¡

$0
($1,e70)

__q91,i29_
776
58.6

$8.16
$1 18 21

$1.57
$0

$5,239

Consumption for the period was 58.6 MG, 5% more than the previous year same period. Operating
revenue of $608,327 was $81,857 (16Vo) more than last year due primarily to the 8% rate increase
effective 711113, combined with the consumption increase.

Operating expenditures were $488,396, up 22% ($89,047) from the prev¡ous year same period, in part
due to testing of the Gallagher Well ($14,207), valve and hydrant operation programs (which were not
done last year) ($18,564), replacement of a chemical feed pump ($4,888), replacement of a hydrant bury
on Sir Francis Drake ($5,328), and paving the Point ReyesTank Road ($2,700). The fiscal year-to-date
net income of $91,728 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $212,000 and to a net income of
9127,779 for the pr¡or year same period, $188,921 (35%) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget was
spent this fiscal year{o-date, and no connection fees were collected ($46,000 is budgeted). The Solids
Handling Facility project ($189,727 expended to-date) has been put on hold pending a coastal
development permit from Marin County. West Marin Water ended the month with a cash balance of
$720,425, compared to a budgeted projection of $555,000 at June 30, 2014.

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) / Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

FYTD FYTD
13t14 12113

$133,455 $118,494
$156,825 $145,161
$26,241 $25,326

_$2,872_ _lg!gt1l
229 227
$65 $58

$12,54 ($s.st ¡

$30,400 $o

Mar-14
$14,885
$15,225

$223

_Gillr
229
$65

($0.51)
$0

FY14 vs 13

Up/(Down)
13%
Bo/o

4o/o

1%

12o/o

Operating revenue of $133,455 was 13% higher than the previous year same period due to a 12o/o rate
increase etfective July 1,2013, plus two new dwelling units connecting to the system on December 1.

Operating expenditures were 8% ($t 1,664) higher than last year same period due in part to a $3,421
increase in the State discharge permit fee, and $2,247 for piping & materials to install a new 500 gallon
chlorine tank. The fiscal year-to-date net income of ç2,872 compares to a budgeted annual income of
$27,000 and to a net loss of $1,341 for the prior year same period. None of the Capital lmprovement
Project Budget was expended.

$30,400 in connection fees were collected ($30,000 is budgeted). Oceana Marin ended the month with
a cash balance of $228,208, compared to a budgeted projection of $238,000 at June 30,2014.

3



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTR¡CT
STATEMENT OF NET POSIT¡ON

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014

s

ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments
U nrestricted/U ndesignated Cash
Restricted Gash 1ruote t¡
Connection Fee Fund
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund
Collector #6 Financing Fund
MMWD Capital Contribution Fund
Revenue Bond Redemption Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
RWF Replacement Fund
Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Loan Fund-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund
Designated Cash it'tote z¡

Liability Contingency Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Drought Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Gash
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

Market Value of Cash & lnvestments

Gurrent Assets
Net Receivables - Consumers
Accounts Receivable - Other
State Revolving Fund Receivable
Provision for Pension Related Debt (Note rs)

Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

Total Current Assets

$17 ,433,078 $15,261,394 $1 ,223,051 $720,425 $228,208

TOTAL

$536,229

9134,324
395,167

1,553,694
6,316

30,000
5,835,028

161,788
2,131

472,055
623,580

315,815
383,552

3,258,504
0

3,597,597
0

120,000
$17,425,779

7,299

$1,759,183
439,426

0
2,153,624

32,152
11,034
29,935

565,822
24.000

NOVATO
WATER

$0
395,167

1,553,694
6,316

0
5,293,688

0
0

472,055
0

315,815
361,260

3,258,504
0

3,597,597
0

0

$15,254,095
7,299

$1,598,021
101,639

0

2,153,624
30,288

7,774
25,528

565,822
24.000

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$0 $372,278

WEST MARIN
WATER

$134,324
0
0
0

30,000
541,340

0
2,130

0

0

$720,425
0

$109,172
205,391

0
0
0

3,260
0
0
0

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$0 $163,951

161,788
0
0

623,580

60

$1,223,051
0

$16,057
87,742

0
0
0
0

4,407
0
0

$o
0

0

0
0
0

0
405

0
0
0
0

000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0

0
0
0
0
0
1

0

0

0
4,256

0
0
0
0

25 ,63

00060

$228,208
0

$35,932
44,655

0
0

1,863
0
0
0
0

$4,506,697 $r 08,206 $317 ,823 $82,450$5,015,176

t:\accountants\financ¡âls\stmtrys\f¡nfon.xls4l'lOl2O1 4 4:05 PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POS¡TION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Note 3)

Housing Loan lmpairment (ruote g)

Due From Other Funds
Other Long Term Receivables

Loans Receivable

Propertv and Plant
Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities
Distribution Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5)

Net Property and Plant

Buildinqs and Equipment
Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sub-Total
Less Accum ulated Depreciation

Net Buildings and Equipment

Construction ln Proqress
Developer
District

Total Gonstruction in Progress
Net Utility Plant

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL

$1,250,165
(1 10,000)

0
2,137,470

$3,277,635

$1,473,021
5,557,888

21,060,233
18,396,517
5,567,990

68,647,049
1.154.525

$121,857,224
(40,308,623)

$2,485,107
683,753
300,004

1,151,035
734,817
196,436

$5,551 ,152
(3,538,906)

$763,677
13.103.218

$13,866,895
$97,427,741

__91_23,153,631_

NOVATO
WATER

$1,250,165
(1 10,000)

0
0

$1,368,802
5,065,476

17,561,535
16,466,506
5,445,667

56,223,461
0

$102,131,446
t35.387.493)

92,485,107
683,753
300,004

1 ,151 ,035
734,817
196,436

$5,551,152
(3.532.082)

$758,438
3,223.378

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$0
0
0

2,137,470

$0
0

2,666,198
43,014

0
8,232,655

0

$10,941,866
(1,132,503)

$0
(6.824)

$0
9,450,159

WEST MARIN
WATER

$103,411
492,412
319,913

1,886,996
122,324

4,190,934
0

$7,115,991
(2,972,522)

$0

$5,239
429,555

s434,794
$4,578,262
$5,616,510

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

1.154,525

$1,667,921
(816,105)

$0

1,140,165 $2,137,470 $0$0

$808

582

$0
0
0
0

$0
0
0

0
0
0

$0
0
0
0

$0
0
0

0
0
0

15

0

7

0

0

0

(¡

$81,548,601 $66,743,954 $9,809,363 $4,143,468 $851,816

$0
0

$0
0

$0
0
0
0

0

0

$2,012,246 $2,019,070 ($6,824)

$0
125

$3,981,817 $9,450,159
$72,744,841 $19,252,698
$93,653,097 $22,721,425

$125
$851,941

$r,162,599

t\a@untants\financ¡a¡s\stmtfyÃVintfs.xls4l 1ol2o1 4 4:05 PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Gurrent Liabilities
Trade Accounts Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Bond Debt Principal Payable-Current
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
Bond/Loan Debt lnterest Payable-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note 8)

Deferred Compensation
Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note 9)

Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Total Gurrent Liabilities
Restricted Liabilities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabilities
Long Term Liablilities (Note 7)

Bonds Outstanding - PR6 (FmHA)
Bonds Outstanding - OL2 (NMWD)
Bonds Outstanding - PREI (FmHA)
Drought Loan (EDA)
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Pension Related Debt (ttote ts)
Retiree Health Benefits Payable

Total Long Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$0
0

23,923
2,252

39,455
1,434

0
19,758

0
0

630
26,443

0
0

$75,000
0

61,000
6,806

0
0
0

894,721
0
0

$1,037,527
91,151,421

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$738,479
2,745

23,923
1,259,561

308,240
3,871

279,208
131,759
24,539

0
19,784

793,782
0

44,655

$711,672
2,745

0
742,375
268,785

2,437
82,800

110,501
24,539

0
18,624

745,884
0
0

$26,434
0
0

0

0
196,409

0
0

0
326

12,879
0

0

$0
0

0

0
0

3,022,026
8,987,088

0
0
0

$12,009,114
$12,760,095

$373
0
0

0

0

0
0

I,500
0
0

204
8,576

0

44 655

$0
$55,309

933514,

o)
$3,630,546

$748,086
$748,086

$75,000
0

61,000
57,088

12,735,521
3,022,026
8,987,088
6,989,484
2,153,624

642.709

$2,710,362

$748,086
$748,086

$0
0
0

50,283
12,735,521

0
0

6,094,763
2,153,624

642 709

$750,981 $1 13,894 $55,309

$0 $0
$0 $0

$0
$0

$0
0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

$34,723,539
$39J02,171

1,676,899
$25,135,346

t:\accountants\flnancials\stmtf)ry\fi nfys.xls4l10l2O14 4.05 PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014

Net Assets
lnvested in Gapital Assets
Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees 1ruote ts¡

Total lnvestment
Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund
Collector #6 Financing Fund
MMWD Capital Contribution Fund
Revenue Bond Redemption Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
RWF Replacement Fund
RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncome/(Loss)
FRC Transfer Prior Year
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see betow)

Total Restricted & Designated
TOTAL NET POSITION

Transfer (To)/From Reserves
Wohler Pipeline Financing
Collector #6 Financing
Connection Fee
MMWD Wheeling Charge Capital Contribution
Liability Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss Self-lnsured WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund
Conservatíon lncentive Rate Fund

Total Transfer

$98,950,938 $81,443,136

ç4J04,370 92J02,206
3,926,970 1,585,167
3,475,712 1,172,772

-Sii"5o-20-f T4860I4f

NOVATO
WATER

$55,803,690
163,782

25,475,665

($1,865,1 19)
395,167

1,553,694
6,316

0
5,293,688

0
0

315,815
3,990,681

342,637
2,615,795

0
0

(28,989,679)
2,246,635

0
r,168,985

($12,925,386)
$68,517,751

$10,216
26,863

794,249
(6,316)

0
(75,000)
(12,97O)

(160,242)
592,185

0

0

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$0
0
0
0
0
0

161,788
623,580

0
0

5,079
0
0

60,000
(2,148,895)

(183,51 1)

0
(63,763)

(81,545,723)
$9,961,331

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$674,676
0

465,928

0
0

4,052
0
0

60,000
(76,126)

2,872
0

(1,763)
($33,314)

$1,107,290

TOTAL

$62,684,942
5,675,919

30,590,077

($1,753,143)
395,167

1,553,694
6,316

30,000
5,937,980

161,788
623,580

$1 0,216
26,863

793,606
(6,316)

0
(75,000)
(12,97O)

(170,182)
594,823

(845)
(23,s29)

$1,140,604

($22,32434$1
0
0
0

30,000
644,293

0
0

348
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

{ 414,700
3,990,681

363,768
2,615,795

79,441
120,000

(32,673,507)
2,157,724

0
1,076,537

-TSiZFe€t4-uI
$84,051,461

98,885
0

12,000
0

79,441
0

(r,458,806)
91,728

0
(26,e21)

($3e5,056)
$4,465,089

$o
0

(644)

2,638

(23,529)
($26'e21)

$0
0

0

0
0

0
(2,791)

0

$0
0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0
(1,763)

0

0

0

(5,386)

(845)

0

0

$1,076,537 ($1,763)$1 ,1 68,985 ($63,763)

t\aæountants\financials\stmtfyn\fìnfyn.xls4l 1OI2O1 4 4:os PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT . ALL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 3I, 2014

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

YTD/
Budget %

Prior YTD
Actual

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation Expense

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE/(EXPENSE)

OTHER SOURCES(US ES) OF FUNDS
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Grants Proceeds Receivable
Caltrans Reimbursement
Stone Tree RWF Loan Principal
Add Depreciation Expense
Capital Acquisition (1 5 Gustafson)
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital I mprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

822 082 570 000
$15,475,068 $18,585,000

$11,289,192
3,230,479

133,315

$13,s39,000
4,298,000

178,000

83%
75o/o

75o/o

144%
83o/o

$9,479,695
2,678,292

118,494
326,036

$4,671,894
277,395
580,822

1 ,510,700
100,603

1,804,751
429,750
266,121
993,932

$50,785
89,754
92,671

(678,832)
(35,225)

$4,696,000
375,000
669,000

1,994,000
129,000

2,751,000
566,000
404,000

'1,583,000

$93,000
$96,000
135,000

(912,000)
(30,000)

99o/o

7 4o/o

87o/o

760/o

78%
66%
76%
66%
63o/o

760/o

B0o/o

55o/o

93%
690/o

74o/o

117o/o

78o/o ($373,385)

812,602,517

$3,948,717
266,866
528,345

1,41 1,659
97,495

1,753,566
414,019
185,426

1,194,731
2,029,5532 200 530 2,879 000

$12,836,499 $16,046,000

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $2,638,570 $2,539,000 104%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE/(EXPENSE)

$11,830,377

$772,139

$50,869
71,837

128,701
(579,622)
(45,171)

($480,846) ($61B,ooo)

NETTNCOME(LOSS) 82,157,724 $1,921,000 112%

8o/o

29Yo

60%

961%

300%

$398 754

$618,950
1,910,449
1,510,024

377,574
0

127,396
2,029,553

0
(106,835)

(7,265,504)
(657,346)
(584,356)

$30,400
3,351,997

406,358
948,704
565,483
130,485

2,200,530
(579,767)

(18,056)
(2,483,260)

(e23,133)
1,609,822

$e36,000
3,472,000

138,000
961,000

2,200,000
197,000

2,879,000
0

(231,000)
(8,478,000)
(1,529,000)

0

3o/o

97o/o

294o/o

99o/o

26%
66%
76%

$5,239,563 $545,000

$7,397,286 Tz7æm0- ($1 ,641,341)

($2,040,0e5)

I

cASH TNCREASE(DECREASE)

t;\accountants\finâncials\stmtfy'10\fìnfy10.xlsIbudget vs. âctual]



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/( Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

TOTAL
$15,475,068

12 836 499
$2,638,570

NOVATO
WATER

$14,265,879
11,755,236

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$467,407
436,041

WEST MARIN
WATER

$608,327
488,396

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER
$133,455

156,825
$1 19,931 ($23,370)

B 20 241($480 ,846)
$2,510,643
($264,008)

$31,366
($214,877)

$2,157 ,724 $2,246,635 ($183,51 1) $91 ,728 $2,872

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer I n-Kind Contributions
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer
CapitalGrants

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets July 1 , 2013

Net Assets March 31,2014

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Net lncome/(Loss)
Add Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operations

Other Sources (Uses) of Funds
Connection Fee Revenue
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Stone Tree RWF Loan Principal Pmts
Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets/Liabilities Decr (lncr)
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
lnterdistrict Loan Due To (From)
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Gash Provided (Used)

Cash Balance July 1,20'13
Gash Balance March 31,2014

$83,800,146 388 $9,961,331 $4,263,138 $1 ,107,290

$2,157 ,724 $2,246,635 ($183,51 1) $91 ,728 92,872
831,376 210 718 115 677 42 7592 200 530

$4,358,254 $4,078,011 $27,207 $207,406 $45,630

$359,700
30,400

0
155,044

$354,462
0

(1,371,653)
0

$0
0

1,371,653

$s ,239
0
0

0

$0

,400
0
0

30

155 044

$545,145

$2,702,868
81,097 ,278

($1 ,017,192)

$1,229,443
67,238,945

$1,526,698

$1 ,343,186
8,618,144

$5,239

$96,967

4,166,171

$30,400

933,272
1,074,018

1

$30,400
3,351,997

406,358
(3,081,083)

130,485
(e23,1 33)

1,674,193
444,645

1,767,736
(762,565)

0
(0)

$3,039,033

$7,397,286

10,028,493

00
0 3,351,997

49,362 155,044
(2,456,068) (435,969)

0 130,485
(567,055) (303,504)
1,493,278 173,505
444,645 0
870,938 1,084,957
(557,789) (199,638)

(1,371,653) 1,371,653
4,755,421 (4,755,421)

$2,661,078 $573,109

0
0

201,952
(188,e21)

0
(52,574)
41,605

0
(187,752)

0
0
0

30,400
0
0

(125)
0
0

(34,194)
0

(407)
(5,138)

0
0

($185,6e1)

$21 ,715

($e,+o+¡

$36,1 66$6,739,089 $600,316

I 5r5 006 622,735 698 710 192 042

_$17,425,779_ _$15,251,095_ _9i,223,05.1_ $?20,425 $228,208
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH

2014
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backf low Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD
Water Sales - MMWD
Regulation 1 5 Forfeiture

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
MainUMonitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Fishery Maint
Erosion Control
Purchased Water (Note 4)

Purchased Water-Resale MMWD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

PUMPING
Operating Expense - PumPing
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping EquiPment
Electric Power

$1,152,466 $14,265,879

9782,298
(8,501)

342,712
8,229

710
99

300
10,643

3,1 10
12,867

0
0

$10,445,033
(80,954)

3,084,408
57,228
6,840

951
3,220

92,065
37,071

352,748
267,269

0

$9,002,867
(e5,e06)

2,570,342
56,450
6,925
1,080
2,400

76,724
20,523

158,237
0
0

83%
53o/o

75%
77%
680/o

95o/o

81o/o

74o/o

14ïo/o
110o/o

0o/o

0o/o

84%

253 539

$0
6,1 0B
1,920

14 328

PUMPING $22,356 $252,469

$1,117
512

0
8,692

0
0

2,488
110

0

354,022
0

$6,526
9,161

10,468
8,692

15
2,480

12,181
1r0

13,939
4,211,972

$0
34,908
23,855

193,707

$1 1,799,641

$5,809
4,036

25,703
13,804

0
2,BBO

10,328
100

17,525
3,849,337

0

$366,942 $4,528,085 1010/0 $3,929,522

44o/o

117%
31o/o

72o/o

0%
10%
94o/o

3%
232%
960/o

0o/o

97o/o

35o/o

860/o

76%

$0
22,077
31,960

192,805

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - OPerations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenVControls Maint
Leased Lines

OPERATIONS

$21,595
24,937

8,057
4,160

$161,379
195,124
71,456
44,189

68%
102o/o

8B%
630/0

630/o

B1%

$246,842

$141,813
203,197

72,177
28,901
13,3571 460 13 179

$60,208 $485,326 $459,446
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH

2014
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed

WATER TREATMENT

TRANSMISS¡ON & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service lnstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Read tng

Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - AgencY
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Credit Card Fees
U ncollectable Accounts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4.1%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNT]NG

$123,870 $1 ,386,652

$8,290
10,687
28,561

161
9,571

11,960
12

7,792
31,725
4,788
7,486
1,943
2,436
n.542\

$Bô,877
210,586
286,911

53,012
51,558

1 17,690
84,714
80,399

256,200
38,046
57,394
44,648
33,964

(15,347)

63%
B4o/o

68o/o

59o/o

660/0

960/o

78o/o

860/o

8Oo/o

115%
94o/o

7Oo/o

55%
59o/o

760/o

61o/o

42o/o

67o/o

1360/o

63o/o

71%
279o/o

69%
52o/o

48%
38o/o

73o/o

57%
73o/o

$84,493
213,549
256,416
76,702
36,632

111,421
74,030
69,047

238,341
24,189
45,444
47,170
31,605
19,389)

$1,289,650

$41,759
4,971
B,B4O

9,842
5,894

'13,390

686
13,877

254
9,456
4,207

12,037
8,247

36,776
(8,453)
9,875

286
438

$355,625
52,333

112,565
80,247
36,1 29

118,623
53,098
76,729
11,937
77,383
44,216
87,897

114,295
328,445
(22,990)
72,743
47,877

$31 2,1 33
78,973

111,395
58,261
32,718

125,844
17,805
54,356
10,024
97,659
64,309
75,112

114,219
382,603

(4,012)
62,371
6,346

25.329

51o/o

90%
32%
64o/o$172,383 $1 ,664,666

17 514

$1 13,778
21,216
2,046

186,054
13,205
44,488
10,572
13,431
18,371
11.068)

$1,625,445

$11 1,599
21,697

1,304
187,626

13,467
40,088

6,814
17,436
6,834

10.501)

$13,462
2,836

407
17,032

1,359
3,957
1,044
(411)

1,603
(e54)

77o/o

66%
102o/o

75o/o

690/o

75o/o

132o/o

58%
122%
74o/o

77%$40,335 $412,094 $396,364
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH

2014

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER CONSERVATION
Residential
Commercial
Public Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consultants
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative ExPense
Election Cost
Dues & SubscriPtions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment ExPense
Gas & ElectricitY
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment ExPense

lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)

G&A Applied to Construction

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$28,126 $260,194

$21,886
857

5,033
350

$210,588
1,351

37,385
'10,870

$159,697
769

14,405
10,033

$184,904

71o/o

5o/o

75o/o

40o/o

65o/o

$2,600
1,134
1,302

0
0

97,704
2,584
4,635

0
1,329

0

1,0'19
676

19,478
42

2,127
183

0

6,590
12,580
6,305

13,393
(10,080)

(8,256)

$16,300
16,016
21,716
20,490

0

870,701
11,771
23,834
6,799
9,732

250
47,827

6,084
95,1 09

243
22,845

1,827
1,280

25,098
66,684
54,223

122,925
(176,022)

(57,919)

1O9o/o

1460/o

72o/o

98%
0o/o

72o/o

91%
42o/o

68%
54o/o

0o/o

92o/o

76Yo

56%
1ZYo

109o/o

61o/o

64o/o

57%
67o/o

55o/o

7Bo/o

66%
630/o

760/0

63o/o

$1 0,1 00
5,086

24,260
20,600
41,215

906,041
11,094
20,270

5,682
14,717

0
45,402
6,084

83,907
718

21,316
2,397
1 ,103

34,056
62,892
58,099

134,405
(43,122)
(5e,372)

(2 5,402) (273.437\ 273.473\

9129,942

203,552
$1,147,713

$934,375

1,831,376

$11,755,236

76%
80%

$1,133,476

1,763,044

$11,028,693

o P ERATI N G I N CO M E( LOS S ) _t4, ?53_ 

-q2' 
5 1 0' 643- 106% $770,948
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INGOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH

2014

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON.OPERAT¡NG REVENUE
nterest:
General Funds
Facility Reserve Charge Fund

Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund
Collector #6 Financing Fund
MMWD Capital Contribution Fund

Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' ComP Fund

Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund

Recycled Water Advance (Note 1o)

Total lnterest Revenue
Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp

STP SRF Loan lnterest ExPense
Drought Loan lnterest ExPense
Other Non-Operating ExPense

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
SCWA Water Conservation Grant
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to RecYcled Water
FRC Transfer to Recycled Water Prior Yr

ENDING FUND EQUlTY

$9,198 $157,569 73o/o $281 ,915

$173,079
258,479

2,988
6,517

$441,063

$611,800

$66,963,785
611,800

0
223,439
614,050

(377,855)
(1, 168.010)

$66,867,209

($2,058)
0

240
942

2

1,988
221

3,177
0

$0
0

1,652
6,489

2

13,456
1,053

21,838
24,963

$0
1,198
1,166
5,225

0
9,815

0
6,864

135,351
$159,619

55,802
67,718
n.224\

0%

1650/o

1O8o/o

104o/o

$4,512
4,892
1,570

(1,776)

1360/o

51o/o

B0%
95%
22o/o

$69,453
65,314
13,064
9,737

$18,196 $165,997
28,052 247,947

272 2,446
319 5,187

75o/o

760/0

61o/o

26%
74%

0o/o

256%
0o/o

$46,839 $421,577

NET TNCOME/(LOSS) ($32,888) 92,246,635 111%

(32,888)
$67,238,946

2,246,635

49,362
354,462

0
(1,371,653)

0

__$98,517,?51_

6,549
8,159

0
6,358

0
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER

DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH
2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATI NG REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
Water Load Permits
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

oPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD

Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

PUMPING
Maint of PumPing Equipment

Electric Power
PUMPING

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating ExPense - OPerations

Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance ExPense

Telemetry EquipmenUControls Maint
OPERATIONS

WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification EquiPment

Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

TRANSMISSIO N & DISTRIBUTION

Supervision & Eng ineering

Maps & Records
Operation of T&D SYstem

Storage Facilities ExPense

Maint of Valves/Regulators
Backflow Prevention Program

Maint of Meters
Maint of Mains

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

GENERAL AN D ADMIN ISTRATIVE

Distributed from Novato (1.6%)

$17,735 $467,407 80%

$15,112
0

2,623
0
0
0

$446,884
0

20,070
12

105
336

77o/o

201%

60o/o

81o/o

68%

112o/o

57o/o

132%
386%

1o/o

68%
148o/o

$154,870
(1,752)
4,457

0
0

336

$157,91 1

$9,1 04 $68,350
737 55 129

$10,841 9123,479

$348
Q1\

$747 37o/o $ee
0

$0
0

$0

1,488
$2,235 $e9

$14,209
7,081

23,958
0

716
$46,964

$327

$642
2,918

0
55

500

$5,1 1 5

$1,528
4,521

0
0

$6,047

$6,236
5,288

38,551
55

6,154
$56,284

$2,660
6,867

0
106

66

$9,698

$4,149
0

365
5,089
2,640

0
1,162
3,952

$19,862
1,856
4,625

12,722
7,061

$46,126

18o/o

172%
0%
1%
1o/o

19o/o

$71 1

0

187
87

0
0

453
0

26Yo

37o/o

170o/o

264o/o

0o/o

116%

630/o

630/o

75o/o

71o/o

(136%)

$5,042
I

6,304
17,327

148
0

0
0

$1 ,438 $17,357 54o/o $28,831

812 153

$1 2,1 53

122,993
9257 164

$2 ,319 $16,270
$16,270GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Deoreciatio[ (Note 5)

TOTEI OPERATING EXPENSE

$2,319

23,459
$49 547

210,718
$436,041

opERATtNG TNCOME/(LOSS) ___($31,811 

- 
$31'366- ($99'253)
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER

DETAIL INGOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH
2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON.OP ERATING REVENUE
lnterest:

General Funds
RWF RePlacement Fund

Self-lnsured Workers' ComP Fund

Stone Tree RWF Loan
Total lnte

NON.O PERATING EXPENSE

RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense

Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense

Other Non-OPerating ExPense

lnterest-Advance from Novato (Note 10)

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
State Prop 50 Grant
IRWMP ProP 84 Grant
Water Smart Grant
FederalARRA Grant
FRC Transfer from Novato

FRC Transfer from Novato Prior Yr
ENDING FUND EQUITY

rest Revenue $4,752 $41,357

$6,56ô
20,227

0

0

$243
98

3

4,407

$256
127

4
40,970 760/o

77o/o

79o/o

7Oo/o

51o/o

69%

60/0

160/o

0o/o

256%

$58,034
173,238

0

$8,61 8, 1 44
(183,51 1)

1,971
15,000

138,073
0

1,371,653
0

$0
0
0

44.449
$44,449

$61,485
49,404
38,047

135,351

$284,287

($33e,091)
-

8,534,827
0

529,432
955,255

25,337
377,855

1,168,010
-5-11-E-õru

24 963

$26,792 $256,235

NET TNCOME(LOSS) _- ($53,852I 

-lgi-83'5!)
54o/o

(53,852)
0
0
0
0

,358)
0

(6

Tq-sdiEi-
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH
2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Operating Expense
Operating Supplies & Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

PUMPING
Operating Labor
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Telemetry EquiPment
Leased Lines

OPERATIONS

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification EquiPment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

$37,846 $608,327

$6,012
111

14,208
0

$24,932
(1,086)
14,000

0
0

0
0

$493,449
(15,220)
126,000

697
140
27

3,234

$430,796
(11,179)
103,493

662
145
54

2,500

$526,470

$11,652
0

7,543
0

$1 9,1 95

$0
4,636
3,524

11 764
$19,925

$3,292
10,062
4,952
3,651

921,957

$3,660
6,345

150
0

5,202
18,956
22,401

1,981

2,587
2,273

12.328
$75,883

$a B

0

0
0

84%

75%
70o/o

70%

67%
80%

50%

178%
0%
97%$BB $20,331

PUMPING ($2,007) $22,691

$0
14
0

(2,021)

$0
3,212
7,191

12,287

0o/o

29%
60%
82%
58o/o

77o/o

125%
27%

207o/o

156%
73%
B5o/o

57%
60%
55o/o

95%
91%

$e60
2,430
2,075

532

$3,568
22,758

8,574
4 313

$5,997 $39,212

119%
253o/o

57%
86%
123%

$830
2,256

0

163
6,757
2,672
3,1 88

0
0

451

$5,381
17,503

1,342
2,071

21,843
19,048
24,542
2,279
2,385
2,729

15,226546

$17,862 $114,350
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 3I, 2014

MARCH
2013

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operating Expense
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities ExPense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Maint of Backflow Devices
Backflow Dev I nspection/SurveY
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check AssemblY Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service I nstallation

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

GONSUMER AGCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
U ncollectable Accounts
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Program

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (3.2%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$8,357 9122,728 119o/o

$1,434
0
0
0

449
0

1,558
0

2,325
0
0

0
0

0

1,011
1,203

378
0

0

0
0

$9,018
3,945

21

1,395
10,762
8,274

17,692
1,752

10,687
3,083
5,BOB

B5

531

2,021
9,091

28,091
3,095

260
4,503
2,616

0

100%
132o/o

35%
60%
276%
80%

178%
103o/o

1160/o

47%
430/

75o/o

62Yo

53%
34%

1B2o/o

255%
155o/o

13%
225%
262Yo

$14,569
3,314

113
1,847
9,984
5,639

11,447
1,020
6,206

115
434
725

0

1,157
6,931

33,117
1,002

0
0

0
660

$99,282

$5,549
839
424

9,216

1

$23 1

0
0

$5,1 51

851
247

845 I 781

$1,076 $16,030 $16,029

$522148%

148o/o

63%
63%

77Yo

89%

$1,033

$1,033

$5,927

$5,927 9522

$4,483 $3 1.450 $35 160

$4,483

13,029

$49,919

$31,450

115,677

$488,396

$35,182

111,375

$399,350

oPERAfl N G I N coM E/( Loss) _Jg] 2'07!)_ 

-$1999L

58Yo t127,121
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH
20'13

YEAR TO ÐATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - OL-2 G.O. Bond
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON.OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
PR-3 G.O. Bond lnterest ExPense
OL-2 G.O. Bond lnterest ExPense
PRE-1 Revenue Bond lnterest ExP

PR-6 Revenue Bond lnterest ExP

Drought Loan lnterest ExPense
Master Plan Update
Other Non-Operating ExPense *

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Gallagher Well Pipeline Grant
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE $2,737

NET TNCOME(LOSS) ($l¿,soo)

$51 0

$2,671

947
83

306
0
0

74
0
0

$1 54
644

2,212
4,035
1,691

23,766
0

20

21o/o

101%
42%
5\Yo

2%
59%

760/o

B0%
77%
75%
68%
146%

119o/o

43%

932,522

$91,728

$4,1 66,1 70
91,728

201,952
5,239

0

$4,465,089

$0
221

2,346
3,917
2,929

23,067
1

274

$34,755

$25,771
339
376

3,449
3,450

419
0

294
$34,097

$127,779

0

16

342
350

3B

(680)
0

$24,367
0

240
3,075
3,1 50

338
14,592
14,964

$60,725

(14,300)

76,620
('1,970)

0

$4,138,453
127,779

0
(1,451)
4 900

$4,269,680
0o/o

* Fy14 amount includes $1 3,046 in work done in prior years on Rehab¡litation of Point Reyes Well #3,

which project was abandoned in FY14.

18

t:\accountants\financ¡als\stmtfys\finfyxx.xls4l 1O1201 4 2 25 PM



OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH YEARTO DATE YTD/

2013 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer Service Charges
lnspection Fees

TOTAL OPER,ATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Maps & Records
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Lift Stations
Electric Power

SEWAGE COLLECTION
SEWAGE TREATMENT
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
Electric Power

SEWAGE TREATMENT

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds

SEWAGE DISPOSAL

CONTRACT OPERATIONS
Contract Operations
Eq u ipment Replacements/U pg rades

CONTRACT OPERATIONS

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Collection Expense - County of Marin
Distributed from Novato (0.5%)

GONSUMER ACCOUNTING

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (1.0%)
Liability lnsurance

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Nore 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

75Yo

$'14,885 $133,455 75o/o

$14,885
0

$133,315
140

$1 18,494
0

$1,099
0

0
195

0
862
456

$8,502
9BB

77
2,161
1,031
5,450
6,291

121%

$1 18,494

$8,261
72

0
1 ,180

756
4,595
6,807

$2,611 $24,498

108o/o

103o/o

61%
63%
84% $21,670

$13,823
277

2,294
0
0

$0
I
0
0

(2

307

$15,815
9

1,568
89
55

7,291

105o/o

0%
157%

122o/o

95%
5 844

$31 5 $24,827

$1,940
1,535

0

$462
0
0

51%
0%
50%

$22,238

$495
5,435

966
$462

$5,311
0

$3,475

$47,803
0

72%
0%

71o/o

64%
81%

64o/o

55o/o

62%

87%

$6,895

$46,692
0

$5,311 $47,803

$341
287

91,627

$1 0,1 98
638

11,836

42,759

$0
109

$46,692

$341
1,285

$1 09

91,454
207

$1,626

$12,060
860

$13,920

32,120

$145,161

1

$1,661

4,755

$15,225 $156,825 79o/o

oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS) ($3+o) ($23,370) 111o/o ($26,667)
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

MARCH YEARTO DATE YTD/

2013 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - Connection Fee Reserve
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contribution in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

9223 $26,724 56%

$483

$o
0

143
2

7B

0

$500
0

883
14

25,328
0

50o/o

88%

55%

11o/o

$500
71

476
6

24,583
4

$0

$25,639

$31 3

$0

($1 t z¡

$483

$2,872

$1 ,074,018
2,872

30

$1,107,290

$31 3

($1,s+t ¡

$1,075,231
(1,341)(117)

(63)
0

1,471
0

0
400 101%

$1,075,362
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

ANALYSIS OF WORKER'S COMP, CONNECTION FEE AND CIR FUNDS

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014

TOTAL

NOVATO
WATER

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

RECYCLED
WATERWORKERS' COMPENSAT¡ON FUND

WC Cash Balance 711113

Less: Projected Prior FY Claims Liability

Add: Funds borrowed to subsidize operations

WC Reserve Balance 711113

Add: WC Expense Charged to Operations FYTD

lnterest Earned

Subtotal
Less: Claims Expense Paid

Excess lnsurance Premium

Administration Fees

WG Reserve Balance 3131114

Add: Projected Claims LiabilitY

Funds borrowed to subsidize operations

WC CASH BALANCE 3131114

CONNECT FEE FUND

Connection Fee Cash Balance 711113

Add: funds borrowed to subsidize operations

Gonnection Fee Reserve Balance 711113

Add: Connection Fees Collected FYTD
lnterest Earned

Subtotal

Less: Fees Expended FYTD

Fees transferred to RWS FYTD (Note 1s)

Gonnection Fee Reserve Balance 3131114

Less: Funds borrowed to subsidize operations

CONNECTION FEE CASH BALANCE 3131114

CONSERV ATION INCENTIVE TE FUND

Gf R Gash Balance 711113

Add funds borrowed to subsidize operations

GIR Reserve Balance 711113

Add: CIR Charges Billed FYTD

Regulation 1 5 Forfeitures

lnterest Earned

Subtotal
Less: CIR Funds ExPended FYTD'

BillAdjustments

CIR Reserve Balance 3131114

Less funds borrowed to subsidize operations

CIR CASH BALANCE 3131114

$383,q92 $361,260 $12,630 $4,256 

-$5'405-
:

$1 66,1 57 $13 $166,144
0

$o
(52,748\

$2,537
22,476

213

$193,585
234,134

$o

21,285
$0

697
7.311

$2,537
247

0

$0

247

2.535524 203 678

$182,393
220,400

$6,614
7,457

0

$2,290
2,419

14

$2,288
3,859

4071 053

$403,846
17,948
34,789
8.472

$14,071
607

1,177
287

$4,723
197

382
93

$6,1 51

314
609
148

1

$428,791
19,067
36,957

9,000

$363,768
19,784

0

$342,637
18,624

0

$12,000
630

0

$4,052
204

0

$5,07e
326

0

52.748\ 0

$1 13,409

30,400
644

$13
0
0

$1 66,1 44

0
644

($52,748)

30,400
0

$144,453
525,941

1,371,654

$13

493,479

1,371,654

$166,788

32,463

0

$22,348)
0

0

($1,753,143) ($1,865,119) $134,325
0

($22,348)

e2348\(1, 887.468) (1,865, 120\

$1 34,325 0 $134 325 $o

$0
55 912

$55,912
80,935

0

0

$0

55,912

$55,912
16,592

0

0

$o
0

$0
343

0

0

64,

$64,343
80,513
I 6.1 70)

$59,732 $0 $59,732

59 732 59 732

$0

$136,847
86,441
(9,325)

$72,504
5,928
6,844

0

1 On September 1, 2009 the Board authorized water conservation expenditures

to be charged against the Conservation lncentive Rate Fund
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,20''4
t:\accountants\f ¡nanc¡als\stmtfyl 4\lcpm03'1 4 xlsl equ¡p

MARCH
2014

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 13114

BUDGET

(ovER)
UNDER Notes

1 INFORMATION SYSTEMS
Administration

a. Server Software Upgrade

2 ADMINISTRATION
a. Phone System

3 ENGINEERING
a. Multi-Function Wide-Carriage Copier (Used)

4 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

a. 3/4ton 2WD Alternate Fuel Pickup WSvc Body

o. 3/4-ton 2WD Alternate Fuel Pickup w/Svc Body

c. Propane Powered 5,000 lb Capacity Forklift
o. Hybrid 2WD Pickup
e. Hybrid 2WD Pickup

050 000 $950 "r$0 $8,050 $9,000 950

$0 000 $35 000 
",r

$35,000 $35,000

$10,006 $10.006 $12,000 $1,994 
" 

r

$10,006 $10,006 $12,000 $1,994

$0

$o
0

0

0
0

$0 175,000 $175,000

$30,000
30,000
35,000
40,000

$30,000 
",r,2

30,000 
",r 

z

35,000 .,r,2

40,000 
" 

I

000 40 000 
",r

$0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES $10,006 $181056 $231,000 $212,944

Notes:
(c) Capitalized
(1) Replacement item.
(2) The Board of Directors approved purchase of an lnternational Dump Truck ($107,328), in lieu of the purchase

of two budgeted hybrid pickups ($eOf¡ and a propane powered forklift ($35K) at it's 214114 meeling.

22
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
OVERHEAD ACCOUNT ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2014

YEAR.TO.DATE ANNUAL
ACTUAL BUDGET

YTD/
BUDGET %

Material Handlinq
Material Overhead Recovered (15%)

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
Correction to lnventory Counts
Depreciation

Net Material Handling Gain / (Loss)

Construction Supplies
Const Supplies Overhead Recovered (10%)

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
SmallTools
Depreciation

Net Constr Supplies Gain / (Loss)

Vehicle & Equipment
Vehicle & Equipment Recoveredl

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
Fuel
Depreciation

Net Vehicle & Equip Gain / (Loss)

Pavroll
Overheaded Payroll Recovered

Salary lncluding Leave Time
Employer FICA & Medicare Tax
lnsurance2
Retiree Medical
CaIPERS Retirement
Unreconciled Ditference

$37,532 $112,000 34%

$47,072
2,029

(2,738)

$101 ,000
6,000

0

47%
34%

69o/o

44o/o

76%
71%
61%
67%
72%

72o/o

57o/o

79%
76%
69o/o

69%

-23%

72o/o

72o/o

70%
73%
74%

71%

3 457 5 000

$49,819

($12,287)

$112,000

$o

9170,744 $238,000 72%

$55,958
55,412
11,674

$74,000
78,000
19,000
5,0003 357

9126,402

_$443t9_

$58,225
45,270
83,297

$176,000

$62,000

$252,519 $415,000 61%

74 319

$102,000
57,000

1 10,000
108,000

9261,111

($8,5e2)

$377,000

$38,000

$5,1 51 ,123 $7,203,000 720/o

$3,263,065
245,335
686,295

56,563
791 ,1 69
(43,861)

$4,555,000
342,000

985,000
77,000

1,063,000

$4,998,565

$152,558

$7,022,000

$181 ,OOO 
3Net Payroll Gain / (Loss)

Total Overhead Gain / (Loss) ç176,022 $281,000 63%

1 Vehicle & Equipment Recovered is the amount charged to projects and operations to recover the expense of
owning and operating the asset. The recovery rate is $6/hr for vehicles 3/4{on and under $11lhr for larger
vehicles. An additional 50% is charged to developer projects to reflect the fair market value of the asset used

2 lnsurance lncludes Medical, Dental, Vision, Cafeteria, Life, & Workers' Compensation
3 Projected gain on self-insured worker's compensation gives rise to the budgeted payroll gain.

Tr\Accountants\F¡nanc¡als\stmtfyl 4\overh€ad analysisl 4
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014

West Oceana YTD
Recvcled Marin Marin Total

YTD Prior Yo

Budget% YTDActual ChangeOPERAT¡NG EXPENSE

I Salaries & Benefits
2 Water Purchases
3 Depreciation
4 Materials, Services & Supplies
5 Chemicals
6 Electric Power
7 Tools & Supplies (Distrib)

I Vehicles and Equipment (Distrib)

9 Retiree Medical Expenses
10 Office Supplies & Postage
11 lnsurance & Claims
12 Water Conservation Rebates
13 Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss
14 Distributed Costs

15 Total Operating Expense

16 lnterest Expense & Other"

17 Total Expense

Novato
Annual
Budqet

$4,045,036
4,465,511
1,831,376

829,623
286,911
278,421

135,946
160,163
122,925

78,894
54,223
51,280

(176,O22)
(357,771)

$28,354
123,479
210,718

49,499
2,660
1,488
1,473
2,034

0
0
0
0
0

16.336

$185,594
0

115,677
70,540
1342

31,335
10,921
16,529

0
0
0
0
0

56,458

$17,132
0

42,759
69,095

0
13,582

647
488

0
0

1,638
0
0

11,485

$156,825
483

$4,276,116
4,588,990
2,200,530
1,018,757

290,913
324,826
148,987
179,213
122,925
78,894
55,861
51,280

(176.022)
(273,492)

$5,906,000
4,552,000
2,879,000
1,628,000

445,O00
391,000
173,000
236,000
157,000
116,000
101,000
90,000

(265,000)
(363,000)

s4,111,142
3,849,337
2,029,553

989,608
276,428
314,831
126,289
177,886
134,405
67,171
59,959
44,118
(43,122)

(273,473)

72o/o

101o/o

760/o

630/o

65%
83%
93%
76Yo

78o/o

68%
55o/o

57o/o

660/o

75%

4o/o

19o/o

8o/o

3%
5o/o

3o/o

18o/o

1o/o

-9%
17o/o

-7o/o

160/o

$1 1,755,236
421,577

$107,321
272,192

(379,513)

$o

$493,111
18,056

567,055
1,365,369

$436,041
256,235

$62,171
0

305,756
373,798

$488,396
46,133

$12,836,499
724,428

$107,321
272,192

(379,513)

$0

$16,046,000
991,000

$314,000
284,000

(5e8,000)

$o

$767,000
231,000

1,529,000
7,611,000

$212,000
276,000

$488,000

$27,663,000

$11,830,368
759,1 53

$174,609
312,590

(487,199)

$642,560
108,283
573,O52

6,605,805

$95,021
101,308

$196,329

$20,715,550

80o/o

73%

Oo/o

9o/o

-5o/o

8o/o
N)À $12,176,813 5692,276 $534,530 $157,308 $13,560,926 $17,037,000 80% $12,589,521

Warehouse. Shop & Yard

18 Salaries & Benefits
19 Materials, Services & Supplies
20 Distributed Costs

21 Total WH, Shop & Yard

District Capital Outlav

22 Salaries & Benefìts
23 Equipment
24 Debt Principal Payments
25 Materials, Services & Supplies

26 Total District capital outlay

Developer Funded Proiects
27 Salaries & Benefits
28 Materials, Services & Supplies

29 Total Devetoper Projects

30 Total

*lncludes lnterfund lnterest

$0 $o $o

$0
0

0

$0
0
0

$o
0
0

$0
0

$0
0

34o/o

96o/o

63%

ook

81%o

8o/o

61o/o

24o/o

52o/o

50%

51o/o

620/o

$o

-39o/o

-13o/o

-22o/o

Oo/o

-3o/o

-83o/o

61o/o

-72o/o

17o/o

37o/o

27o/o

-17o/o

$106,954
141,776

$248,730 $0

$14,869,1 34 $1 ,434,001

$624,044
18,056

925,385
1,844,035

$110,765
138,632

$0 $249,397

$157,433 517 ,221,844

$68,762
0

52,574
104,744

$3,811
(3,143)

$667

s761,277

$0
0
0

125

$2,443,591 $741,725 $226,080 $125 $3,411,521 $10,138,000 340/o $7,929,700 -570/o
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NORTH MARIN WATER D¡STRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014
Fiscal Year to Date Vehicle Cost

Life to Date FYTD
Mile

23

z 1994
s 1999
¿ 200Q
s 2001
o 2001
t 2002
a 2003
g 2003
to 20Q4
tt 20Q4
tz 2005
rg 2005
t+ 2OO5
rs 2005
re 2006
t¡ 2007
ß 2007
rg 2008
zo 2008
zt 2008
zz 2009
zs 2Q1O

z¿ 2O1O

zs 2O1O
zo 2012
zt 2012

STP
Engineering
Pool
On-Call
Bynum
Engineering
Stompe
Kehoe
Kurfirst
Mello
Engineering
Clark
Roberto
Venegas
Arendell
Corda, Joe
Grisso
Cilia
STP
Lemos
Lab
STP
Ortiz
LeBrun
Reed
Castellucci

Year Veh# Ass

30
32
40
41
42
47
49
5'l
53
54
56
57
58
Ão

501
502
504
505
506
509
510
511
512
5'13
515
516

GMC C1500
Dodge Ram 1500
Dodge Dakota
Dodge Ram 1500
Dodge Dakota
Chev K1500 4x4
Dodge Dakota 4x4
Chev C1500
Chev C1500
Chev C1500 Xtra Cab
Honda Civic Hybrid
Honda Civic Hybrid
Ford Ranger
Ford Ranger
Chev Colorado
Chev K2500 4x4
Chev Colorado
Ford F250 4x4
Ford F25O 4x4
Chev Colorado 4x4
Toyota Prius Hybrid
Ford F150 4x4
Ford F150
Ford F150
Ford F250

3U
3,393
4,697
5,461
3,556
1,312
4,614
7,260
2,600
4,920
4,776
6,874
8,437

10,096
10,635
6,546
2,885
7,988
4,605
9,723
8,515
5,699

10,359
6,031
7,588

$629
$2,488
$2,569
$4,e8
$3,107

$909
$2,056
$4,522
$5,082
$1,999
$2,536
$1,166
$4,858
$2,360
$3,549
$3,288
$2,360
$6,981
s2,722
$4,561
$1,555
$3,221
$6,665
$4,210
$4,176

$r2
$1,1 85
$3,509
$2,047
$3,618

$7U
$2,016
$6,648
$7,031
$1,992
$2,390
$2,358
$6,998
$6,678
$9,182

$1 1,685
$3,355

$13,773
$4,620
$5,025
$3,821
$4,708
$5,532
$4,614

$15,793

($6tz¡
($1,303)

$939
($2,601)

$51 1

($1zs¡
($ao¡

$2,126
$1,950

($z¡
($147)

$1,192
$2,139
$4,318
$5,633
$8,397

$995
$6,792
$1,898

$464
$2,267
$1,487

($1,133)
$404

$11,616

135,544
73,881

109,664
120,276
123,206
'105,633

80,880
108,363
104,270
79,762
64,230
45,429

100,721
97,006

111,732
66,568
31,303
68,839
39,055
70,227
75,669
40,658
60,243
29,U5
12,159

128,747
82,090
76,787
67,588
25,887
70,615
18,821
12,451

$0.31
$0.45
$0.47
$0.54
$0.36
$0.35
$0.41
$0.39
$0.44
$0.38
$0.23
$0.20
$0.44

$0.72
$0.84
$0.34
$0.18
$0.45
$0.48
$0.51
$0.63

$0.74
$1.61
$0.94
$1.37
$2.65
$0.86
$2.00

$1.64
$0.73
$0.55
$0.85
$0.87
$0.69
$0.45
$0.62
$1.95
$0.41
$0,53
$0.17
$0.58

$0.82
$0.87
$0.59
$0.47
$0.18
$0.57
$0.64
$0.70
$0.55
$0.56

$1.99
$2.34
$1.60
$2.97
$2.64
$0.84
82.21

$0.72
$0.54
$0.41
$0.49
$0.69

$0.94
$0.e
$0.98
$0.55
$0.45
$0.56
$0.74

$0.il
$3.08
$0.69
$0.69
$0.42
$0.16
$0.13
$0.37
$0.76
$0.40
$0.51
$0.35
$0.82
$0.85
$0.31
$0.21
$0.37
$0.41
$0.45
$0.75
$0.71

$0.56
$0.69
$0.80
$0.30
$0.36
$0.64
$0.49
$0.39
$0.85
$0.39
$0.69
$0.90
$0.30
$0.18
$0.40
$0.58
$0.46

$0.23
$0.33
$0.50

$0.43
$0.36
$0.53
$0.44

N)(¡

7

$1,737
$16,511

$3,228
$2,937
$6,625
$8,033
$4,607

2 194

$891
$13,738

$5,327
$3,3s8

$1 1,765
$12,585
$14,069
$11 636

($8+o¡
($2,774)
$2,099

s421
$5,140
$4,553
$9,462
$4,789

$1.40
$2.02
$5.46
$2.20
$1.82
$1.15
$2.81

50

$1.40
$2.02
$5.46
$2.20
$1.82
$1.15
$2.81

903
Total 3/4 Ton U 57

t 1999 Ford F350 WSvc Body
z 2002 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
g 1999 Ford F550 3-Yd Dumps
¿ 1999 lnt'l 5 Yd Dumpo
s 2006 lnt'l 4300 Crew
o 2008 Ford F350 4x4
z 2009 Peterbilt 335 Crew
a 2012 lnt'l 5 Yd

19
M
52
55

503
507
508
514

Pool
Rupp
Crew
Crew
Reed
Latanyszyn
Kehoe

874
7,067
2,015

989
2,510
9,599
2,087

1.73 1.49
on 29,727

t E"p.n." urornt shown excludes deprec¡at¡on (approximately $60,oOo for FYl4)-

g6/hr and the recovery rate for vehicles 1-ton and over is $1 1/hr. An add¡tional 50% is charged to developer projects to reflect the fair market value of the vehicle be¡ng used-
s Purchased used in 2OO4 w¡th 33,500 miles. Mileage shown is total incuned since District purchase.
a Purchased used ¡n 2OOB w¡th 3o,7o8 m¡les. Mileage shown ¡s total ¡ncurred since District purchase.



1-170041

1-770çO2

'l-77@43

1-r/0046

rnoo47
1-77æ-11

1-7700-12

't-7700-13

1-770ç15

1-770G16

1-7700-17

1-r/oGr9

't-2200-04

1-770G20

1-770ç21

1-77@23

't-770142

'f -770143

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014
t\ac@otânts\fi mnc¡als\stmtry1 4\cpm03 I 4.)dslwåter consedatiú

NOVATO
a. Residential

r Cash for Grass
z Landscape Efficiency Rebates
s Fixtures Purchases
+ Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
e ResidentialAudits
s High Efficiency Toilet Distribution'?
to Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
rr Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
rz ET Controller Rebate
ts Administration
r¿ New Development Wtr Cons Program
ts Demand Offset Rebate Program
ro Grant Administration
rz Admin Exp Distrib to WM Water (3.6%)

b. Commercial
r Toilet Rebate Program
2 Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/lnformation
r Fall Newsletter
z Spring Newsletter
3 Summer Newsletter
¿ Public Outreach lH,O Fair
s Marketing
s PublicOutreach/Leadership Novato

d. Large Landscape
1 Large Landscape Audits
2 Large Landscape Budgets
s Large Landscape lrrig Efficiency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
o Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION
22

$227,131
28,396
32,581

306,143
u,377

864,964
18,081

214,879
134,591
29,922

226
21,375

932,763
39,228

1,195
637

(3,ee7)

$2,490
0
0

654
0

2,942
0

754
4,113

409
0
0

9,466
857
167
376

(341)

$18,086
308

0
15,953

0
26,181

92
30,261
20,391
1,U3

0
2,914

91,161
5,726

449
655

(3,295)

100
1,251

$24,000
7,500
5,000

20,000
500

34,000
4,000

50,000
0

10,000
0

8,000
125,000

8,000
2,000

0
0

10,000
15,000

$5,915
7,192
5,000
4,047

500
7,819
3,908

19,739
(20,3e1)

8,657
0

5,086
33,839
2,274
1,551
(655)

3,295

$245,217
28,704
32,581

322,097
M,377

891,145
18,173

245,140
1æ,982
31,265

226
24,289

1,023,924
44,9U
1,W
1,292

(7,2e2)

65,027
7,507

77,794
28,717
13,460
18,653

1\)
o) 64,927

6,256

38,084
50,469

5,139
84,932

116,667
9,409

73,127
25,617
11,376
18,653

4,667
3,100
2,O84

0
1,019

$2,633
3

10,000
3,000
5,000
2,000

9,900
13,749

6,977
2,608

(2,831)
1,508
6,041

(1,68e)

5,333
(100)

2,916
2,000

0
857

1&72-16

1&72-17

'l-æ721A

1-770044

1-7700-05

1-7700-22

0
2,985

0
1,328

720
0

1,023
9,392
6,831
8,492
9,959
1,689

8,000
12,OOO

4,000
10,000
16,000

0

39,107
59,861
1 1,969
93,424

126,626
11,098

I -8653-02

1-770242

'l-7702-03

1-770241

1€65101

0
350

0
0
07 7 5 981

($6SS¡ $41,883
7

WEST MARIN WATER

b. Administrative Exp distributed from Novato (3.6%)

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITURES'

75

$3,473,002 $29,159 $26s,758 $404,000 $138,242 $3,738,760

$39,250
3 997

$693
341 5

$2,000
2,000

lExcludes 
$267,000 ($33.53/AF) paid to SCWA for water conservation services provided to NMWD.

'$47,221 rece¡ved from SCWA io offset High Efficiency Toilet Giveaway Cost.



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014

COSTTHRU
JUNE 2013

MARCH
2014

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 13114

BUDGET

t\a@untaûts\fi ærcials\sffi 1 4V@m03 1 4.f slprciecls

TOTAL
COST

(OVERYUNDER

BUDGET

1-767-20

1-713040

1-713á40

1-7l3SO

1-7139-00

1-7142-æ

1-714340

1-7144{o

1-7115-OO

1-712v11

-------ãl-Ma¡ntp¡p¿line Replacements

1-712T14

'l-712!15

I So Novato Blvd-Rowland to Sunset (12"c1 @ 1,500)

z STP 18" Transmission Line Assess/Repair 1ta,zoo1

s Digitalto Leveroni Looping (8"@600)
a Delong to Cain Looping (8"@4oo)

s PB Repl-City Measure A, Group 5
o Shields Ln 6" Cast lron 10" P tzol
z Ashley Ct 2" Thinwall Plastic (6" @ 200)

a GranU4th 1" Galvanized Steel (0" @ ¿oo)

s Other Pipeline Replacements (60+ years old)

o. Main/Pipeline Additions
t Zone A Pressure lmprovements - lgnacio

c. PB Service Line Replacements
r Pacheco Valle (¿z svcs)

z Replace PB in Sync w/City Paving (45 svcs)

s Clay Ct PB Repl (e Svcs)

¿ Atherton Oaks/Summit Lane izo svcs¡

s Other PB Replacements
o County PB Repl (19 Svcs) (2 Streets)
7 City PB Repl(47 Svcs) (9 Streets)

d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP
r Other Relocations
z Redwood Blvd & Olive Ave Traffic Lights

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

1-712!16

'l-712!17

37

$o
10,358
18,535

0

,364
0
0
0
0

0

,833
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
25,794

$170,766
28,462

131,137
680,441

10,679
67,U7

7,597
1 03,1 88

0
0
0

$260
0

160
459
825

4,125
0

716
0

$11,091
17,442
89,283

112368
86.275
25,709
2,395
8,165

0

0
0

23,211
2,068

0
5,512
3,778

0
912

$100,000
0
0
0
0

225,OOO

40,000
100,000
35,000

125,000
135,000

33,000
60,000
47,OOO

0
0

80,000
0

$88,909
(17,441)
(89,282)

(112,368)
(86,275)
199,292
37,606
91,835
35,000

125,000
135,000

9,789
57,932
47,000
(5,512)
(3,778)

$11,091
27,799

107,818
112,368
123,639
25,709

2,395
8,165

0

2,833
0

23,211
2,068

0
5,512
3,778

26 706

2,236 22,839 250,000 227,161 22,839

2 0
0

,20912

N)\¡

0
0

5,512
3,778

1473744

0
912

$34,191
0

12,763
12,484

0
4,450

0
0

494
9,011

14,643

1 193 $411 230,000

$41,917
4,939

151,614
186,148

0
306,497

33,026
225,637

765
203,544

14,643

956 $505

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
'r711a4t t MSN 81-Utility Agreement Costs
't-711Èoz 2 MSN B2-Util¡ty Agreement Costs
1-71'te43 s MSN B3-Util¡ty Agreement Costs
1-711844 ¿ AEEPPermit/Desn/Constr
'r-71r8-05 5 AEEP Legal Challenge/Litigation
't-71ß47 o AEEP- 81 Construction
1-7i18-'to z MSN Aq Caltrans Reimb - Seg 82 Gunn DÉ

1-7'tiç17 a AEEP 81 Betterment & Depreciation Cost
1-2118-18 I AEEP 83 Betterment & Depreciation Cost
ïzna-2o lo AEEP-B3 Tree Removal-CT Reimb6

1-711ù2't rr AEEP-B3 Tree Removal-NMWD Cost?

TOTAL AQUEDUCT REPLACEMENTS AND ENHANCEMENTS

4,600,

$0
0
0

000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

($41,917)
(4,e3e)

(151,614)
4,413,852

0
(306,497)

(33,026)
(225,637)

(765)
(2O3,544)
(4.643)

$212,683
33,401

282,751
866,589

10,679
373,844

40,624
328,825

765
203,544

14,643
c 199 617 sRa 036 s1.168.730 $4.600.000 $3.431.270 $2,368,347



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL I MPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,20''4
t\a@untants\fi nancials\sûr¡ttuI 4vcm031 4.islmiecf s

1-700&10

1&77-19

1-7007{8

1-709G02

1-713241

1-705444

1-7137-OO

1-71Æ{o

Description
2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

a. RTU Upgrades
o. Flushing taps at Dead-Ends (12 bienniaily)

c. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl 1-taly4
¿. Anode lnstallations (150/yr)
e. Radio Expansion Telemetry Upgrades
f. lnaccurate Meter Replacement
g. Backflow Device Upgrade-BMK (15 svcs)

h. Tank Access Hatch/Level Alarms (10 sites)

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

3 BUILDINGS. YARD. & S-T.P.IMPROVEMENTS
a. Administration Building

r Electronic Document Management System
z Admin Office/LabfYard Remodel Plan

o. Corp YardMarehouse/Construction Office
r SMART Crossing Rework (@ Gotden cate Pt)

z SMART Crossing Rework (@ Robrar Rd)

a SMART Crossing Rework (@ Hanna Ranch)

c. Stafford Treatment Plant
t Watershed Erosion Control
z Start-Up Flushing Connection
s Lake Aeration Upgrade

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

$17,350 $69,406 $150,450 $340,000 $189,550 $167,800

COSTTHRU
JUNE 2013

MARCH
2014

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 13t14
BUDGET

TOTAL
cosT

$9,668
21,450
87,597
5,496
8,252
6,943

15,732
12,662

0
3,807
8,655

46,154
13,452
28.088

$88,675
40,845
17.071

$932,579
161,317
2U,9æ

70,685
1,920

1,442,943
3,918,785
2,150,520

107,313
32,135
13,257

349,834
139,543
200,165

56

u,154
8,539

28,088

$4,324
36,722
6,903

$47.949

$9,ô68
21,450
87,597
3,878
8,252
6,943

0
12,662

0
3,807
8,655

12,O00
4,912

0

$84,351
4,124

10.168

$62,499
1,125

(13,358)
27,866

0
3,065

54,996
186,737

4,518
22,319
13,257

181
1,000

71,708
56

$10,000
50,000

150,000
30,000
25,000
10,000
30,000
35,000

$150,000
50,000

58,000
0
0

25,000
225,OO0
25.000

$700,000
190,000
100.000

(OVERYUNDER
BUDGET

$332
28,550
62,403
26,122
16,748
3,057

30,000
22,338

$150,000
50,000

58,000
(3,807)
(8,655)

13,000
220,088
25.000

$615,650
185,876
89.832

$4,100
1,334

395

$501
0
0
0
0

263
4,888

(1,333)
0

2,053
988

0
0
0
0

$0

611

0
0
I
0
0

$0
0

0
0
0

$6,42
658

56,371
3,420

375
459

0
7,481

732
0

5,

lÆ50't-43

1{501-4r

1€7384r

't47æ42

1€73&03

1Æ60G70

1æG54

l€600€0

4

$o
0

$o
0

$o
0

0
2,242
6,4't1

Ì\)
@ 0

2,868
0

$70,782 $11,554 $29,375 $533,000 $503,625 $100,156

1+i201-21 a. Atherton RecoaUMixing System
ts'nz-z¿ b. Lynwood Pump Station Motor Control Center
1614r{0 c. Relocate School Rd/Crest P.S.

TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

5 RECYCLED WATER
NBWRA Grant Program Administration
RW Expansion N Svc Area-Retrofit-Private Property2
RW Expansion N Svc Area-Onsite Retrofit-Const
RW Expansion N Svc Area-Group 2 Site Retrofìt
Expansion to South Svc Area-Non ARRA
Expansion to South Svc Area-Phase lA'2
Expansion to South Svc Area-Phase 1B'2
Expansion to South Svc Area-Phase 21 

3

Expansion to South Svc Area-Bolling Circle PS
Expansion to South Svc Area-Phase 1B-Claims
RW Expansion S Svc Area-PH1A Post Mitigation Monitoring
RW Expansion S Svc Area-Retrofit-Private Property'''
RW Expansion S Svc Area-Retrofit-Govt Property'?
RW Expansion S Svc Area-Group 2 Site Retrofit
RW Exp-Central Area-Pre Design

$5.828 $98.643 $990.000 S891.357 $146.591

5-7127{É a-

s¡osszo b.

s¡osszz d.

5-605S23 e.

ffoso¡1 1.

s05Gr1 g-

s¡osorz h-

ffi056-13 i.
s-6osa14 j.

s¡osars k.

s¡o5ç16 l.

ffi5Ê20 m.

$€o5G21 n.

$.æ5G23 0.

5-605&10 p.

$870,080
160,192
248,322
42,819

1p20
1,439,878
3,863,789
1,963,783

102,794
9,816

0
349,653
138,542
128,457

0

$37,501
(1,125)
13,358

(27,866)
0

96,93s
(54,se6)

(186,737)
(4,518)

(22,319)
(13,257)

(181)
(1,000)

(71,708)
(56)

$1 00

001

,000
0
0
0
0

,000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014
t\ac@r¡tar¡ts\fi nancials\stmtM 4VcDrnO3l 4.¡sloÞiec1s

COSTTHRU
JUNE 2OI3

MARCH
2014

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 13t14
BUDGET

(ovER)/UNDER
BUDGET

TOTAL
cosT

6 WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM
lm

2æ132 a. TP Solids Handling Land
z¡oor-ss b. Treatment Plant Control Valve Replacement
2€60+20 c. Gallagher Auxiliary Stream Gauge'
zstæ-zt d. Olema PS Flood Protection & RTU Upgrade
2-7147qo e. Emergency Generator Connections
zszst-zo t. Pt Reyes Tank#2 & #3 Seismic Piping Upgrade
2-7æ741 g. Gallagher Well & Pipeline Designs

z-ttzt'rc h County PB Repl (7 Svcs) (1 Street)
z-tæzao i. Gallagher Well & Pipeline CEQA'g

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
8-æ72-27 a. lnfi ltration Repair-FY1 4
szr¡¿¡o b. SCADA RTU Upgrade and lnstall

TOTAL OCEANA MAR¡N SEWER SYSTEM

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES

8 LESS FUNDED BY GRANTS. LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS
(Accrued)/Deferred

a' RW Exoansion - South Service Area Grant2'3'a
b. RW - South Service Area Loanr
c. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans ReimÞSegment B1-835
d. AEEP Segment 81-835
e. AEEP- 81 Constructions
f. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82 Gunn Drs

s. AEEP-B3 Tree Removal-CT Reimb6
h. TP Solids Handling & Land Acquisition?
i. Gallagher Well Pipeline'g

FUNDING BY OTHERS (ACCRUEDYDEFERRED

Received
a. RW Expansion - South Service Area Grant''"'o
b. RW - South Service Area Loan'
c. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B1-83"
o. AEEP Segment 81-83'
e, AEEP- 81 Constructiono
t. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82 Gunn Df
g. AEEP-B3 Tree Removal-CT Reimb"
n. TP Solids Handling & Land Acquisition'
¡. Gallagher Well Pipeline'g

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED
NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

000

$1 1.023,637 $227.653 $2.483,260 $8.478.000 $5.914,744 $13,506,897

$183,261
6,104

299
0
0

38,928
14,631

0

($e60,8e1)
(3,330,590)

(206,e24)
6,308,782

(40,665)
(7,5s7)

0
æ4,118
(44,717)

($1,030,785)
(2,005,8e0)

(4,07e)
(7,123,441)

(26,584)
0
0

(781,564)
0

($10,972,343)

$2.412.809

$o
0

4,201
3,397

0
0

6,303
250

0

$o
437,UO

13,902
(12,484)
44,785
27,717
(e,011)

0
(10,505)

$0
(44O,206)

(60,856)
0

(49,2U)
(27,717)

0
0
0

($578,014)

$141,584

$6,466
0

70,018
8,671

14,405
1,895

87,217
250

0

$200,000
25,000
30,000

100,000
15,000
65,000

100,000
0
0

$1,099,000
3,472,OOO

0
(2,400,000)

0
0

(200,000)
(1,486,000)

$193,534
25,000

(40,018)
91,329

595
63,105
12,784

(250)
0

$150,296
142,241

'18,251
(2,213,852)

(38,143)
(7,597)

(1e5,150)
(1,328,765)

(s12,223)
(120,003)

(2,019,781)
0

344,æO
40,624

0
0
0

(81,766,744)

s675.280

$189,727
6,104

70,317
8,671

14,405
40,823

101,847

$o
125

250
78878829

$0
0

$o
125

$o
125

$15,000 $15,000

N)(o

$948,704
3,329,759

(18,251)
(186,148)

38,143
7,597

(2O3,544)
(4,850)

(157,235)

($12,187)
(831)

(225,175)
6,122,6U

(2,522)
0

639,268
(201,952)

$2,361,515 $491,945 $3,754,176 $485,000 ($3,472,720) $6,319,235

($1,086,777) ($1,oee,000)
(3,351,ee7) (3,472,0OO\

(180,219) (2,200,000)
0

($5,004,256)

s1.233.179

($6,771,000)

s2.192.000

640)(344
0
0
0
0
0
0

(52,117,562)
(5,357,887)

(184,298)
(7,123,441)

(371,224)
(4O,624)

0
(781,564)

0

(40,624)
0
0
0

($15,976,600)

s3.849.532



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2014

COST THRU
JUNE 2OI3

MARCH
2014

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 13t14
BUDGET

tlaædntants\fi mrcials\slntfyl 4vcpm03l 4.!slpoþcts

(ovERyuNDER TOTAL
BUDGET COST

(¡)o

Notes to Capital lmorovement Proiects Schedule:

-1t¡ 

trton-Grant Funded RWS Expansion Costs will be funded by a low-interest rate State Revolving Fund Loan

equal to 75% ofthe project cost, less 25o/o ofthe overhead.
(2) The District will receive ARRA Federal Grant Funding equal to 25o/o of the project cost less overhead.
(3) The District will receive Watersmart Federal Grant Funding equal to 25o/o of the project cost, less overhead.
(a) The District will receive State Prop 84 Grant Funding equal to project cost less overhead.
(5) Funding includes a g7M Bank Loan plus reimbursement ftom Caltrans for 100% of costs charged to jobs 1.71 18.01-1.7118.03,

& 1.7118,10.
(6) Funding provided 100% by Caltrans.
(7) Funding provided 100% by NMWD.
(8) Funding provided 75% by Bank of Marin Loan &25o/o by connection fees.
(9) Funding provided 100% by State Dept of Public Health Prop 50 Grant up to $'1,486,000. FY14 Budget was

was augmented by $100,000 by BOD on 1121114.

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

$206,018
7,359

14,152
125

24%
218%
35o/o

Oo/o

CIP SUMMARY-GROSS EXPENDITURES:

Outl
00050
00078

13t14
FYTD Tota|Month

$227Gross

435,969
188,921

125

$7,693,000
200,000
535,000

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Gapital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

142,129
4,694

14,152
125

$1,134,104
275,658
184,O72

125

CIP SUMMARY-NET EXPENDITURES

958099161

FYTD TotalMonth

Net

138%
55%
0%

,093,000
200,000
335,000



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes
Notel-RestrictedGash

Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new
development. These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the
service area where the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as
expenditures are incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance
accrues interest monthly.

Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund: ln December 2002 the Sonoma County Water Agency sold $6.8
million (par) of 3O-year revenue bonds to finance the Wohler to Forestville Pipeline. NMWD's share of the
debt is $844,050 ($6,800,000 X 11.2 / 90.4). ln January 2003 the District established this designated cash
and corresponding reserve account and transferred $844,050 of FRC money into the fund. The Wohler
Pipeline Financing Fund is credited with interest monthly, and is used to pay the revenue bond debt
component of the monthly SCWA invoice for water delivery commencing July 2003.

Collector #6 Financing Fund: The Sonoma County Water Agency received a $15.8 million State
Revolving Fund loan commitment at an interest rate of 2.8o/o repalable over 20 years for construction of
Collector#6. NMWD's share of Collector#6 is $1,950,000 ($15,800,000 X 11.2 190.4).ln January 2003
the District established this designated cash and corresponding reserve account and transferred
$1,950,000 of FRC money into the fund. The Collector #6 Financing Fund is credited with interest
monthly, and is used to pay the revenue bond debt component of the monthly SCWA invoice for water
delivery commencing July 2003.

MMWD Gaptial Contribution Fund: Beginning February 5, 2014, Marin Municipal Water District
(MMWD) shall pay the District a wheeling charge of $12,00/acre-foot for all MMWD's Russian River water
delivered, plus an additional $4.O0/acre-foot set aside charge. The set aside charge is credited to this
fund for MMWD's share of the future replacement costs of the North Marin Aqueduct. The set aside
charge shall be increased on July 1 of each subsequent year, beginning July 1,2014, to reflect the
change in the Engineering News Record Construction Cost lndex for the San Francisco Bay Area for the
preceding 12 months, but shall be no greater than 4% per year and no less than 2o/o per year. The fund
balance accrues interest monthly.

Revenue Bond Redemption Fund: Comprised of one year of debt service as required by West Marin
revenue bond covenants. These funds are restricted for payment of bond principal, interest and
administration fees, The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Bank of Marin Project Fund: The District received an $8 million loan from the Bank of Marin in October
2011 to fund the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. The 2O-year, 3.54o/o annual percentage rate loan
requires monthly payments of $46,067 and will be fully amortized on 10127131. ln June 2012 the Board
authorized reallocating $1 million of this loan to West Marin Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed
for prevíous loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and the remainder to fund the Solids
Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues
interest monthly.

RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the District to agree
to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the expansion, major
repair, or replacement of the water recycling facilities. The WRCRF is maintained in compliance with the
"Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for Construction of Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in
etfect at the time the agreement was signed by the District. The September 2003 Recycled Water Master
Plan prepared by Nute Engineering recommended limiting the reserve to fund replacement of the RWF
electrical and mechanical equipment (including transmission pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said
equipment was $1,483,000 which, at Nute's recommended 6% interest rate factor and 25-year life,
renders an annual funding requirement $1 15,000. The fund balance accrues interest monthly.
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Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the
County of Marin for repayment of the Olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County credits
interest to these funds quarterly.

STP SRF Loan Fund - Marin County Treasury: The Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving Fund
(SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments
($1,044,474) in the Marin County Treasury during the first ten years of the 2}-year repayment period.

Every January 1 and July 1 the District deposits with the County 10% of the semi-annual SRF payment.
The County credits the fund with interest quarterly, and will use the Reserve to pay the last 2 semi-annual
SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the
seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System
distribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service.

Note2-DesionatedGash

Liability Contingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the District first elected to self-insure its general
liability risk. This reserve was funded with $1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it
reached a balance of $2 million. ln FYSB the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and
built-up a proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the
reserve was made available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted
Housing Program. ln August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured
Workers' Compensation Fund and made available to fund Employer Assisted Housing Program loans.
Currently there are $1,249,200 in EmployerAssisted Housing Loans outstanding (see Note 3). ln March
2005, $652,400 was expended from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes
Station. The home is rented to an employee who provides after-hours presence in the community to
respond to emergencies. ln 2006, $8,885 was added from the sale of surplus property in West Marin. ln
October2013, the District acquired ownership of the home at 15 Gustafson Court in Novato to protect its
interest in a $192,585 Employer Assisted Housing loan. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund: Commencing July 2011, the District began self-insuring its
workers' compensation liability. The savings accrued through self-insuring the liability is reserved in this
fund for possible future claims expense. The District carries a workers' compensation excess policy for
claims that exceed $750,000, See schedule on page 22.

Retlree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan otfered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and
have a minimum of 12 years of NMWD service at the date of retirement. NMWD's contribution toward the
chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD employees in the same class. Coverage
terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, or for both the retiree and
spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the retiree or spouse becomes eligible for
Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is capped at $3,830 per year ($319/month).
ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million for current retirees plus $250,000 for future
retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this obligation. ln 2010 the Board directed staff to
add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to accrue and accelerate amortization of this
liability. ln 2013 an Actuarial Analysis calculated NMWD's total actuarial liability at $4.2 million. This
reserve fund earns interest monthly, and currently has a balance of $3.2 million. Accounting Standards
require that the $4.2M reserve by fully funded in 20 years.

Drought Gontingency (Rate Stabilization) Fund: ln August 2008, the Board directed statf to establish
this reserve with $135,000 from the Self-lnsured Workers'Compensation Fund for the Novato district to
draw upon during dry years. A threshold of 3.2 billion gallons of potable consumption was established as
a benchmark for 'normal' years, During any fiscal year that water sales volume exceeds 3.28G, the
incremental revenue generated is deposited into the Drought Contingency Reserve. ln those years when
sales volume falls below the benchmark, funds are withdrawn from the reserve to maintain the budgeted
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revenue forecast. The goal is to build a reserve equal to 20% (currently $2,500,000) of budgeted annual
water commodity sales. ln FY09 $50,335 was added to the reserve. The fund was fully depleted in FY10.
The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FY91 to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds
of $671,060 were closed into the fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $100,000.
The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 10% of the net book value of Novato's existing plant,
currently $7.0M. Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to otfset the shortfall in
unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Conseruation lncentive Rate Fund: ln 2004 and 2005, a Conservation lncentive Tier Rate was enacted
in Novato and West Marin respectively, Monies derived from this tier-rate charge are set aside in the
Conservation lncentive Rate Reserve, and used for conservation programs designated by the Board. The
fund balance accrues interest monthly,

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to ensure adequate working capital for
operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. The fund balance does
not accrue interest.

Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned
to an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service
territory that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the
District. Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the
Program. lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value
occurring on the purchased property. There are seven employee-housing loans currently outstanding
totaling $1,249,200: a $250,000 loan dated August 2004, a $39,200 loan dated September 2004, a
$300,000 loan dated October 2006, a $140,000 loan dated September 2007, a $150,000 loan dated
November 2007, a $125,000 loan dated July 2008, and a $245,000|oan dated June 2010.

Housing Loan lmpairment: The Employer Assisted Housing Loans outstanding were written down by
$110.000 at June 30, 2013, representing the impairment in value of the second deeds of trust due to the
decline in market value of the homes financed since the purchase date,

Personal Computer Loans: Up to $3,500 may be loaned to an employee for a period of up to 36 months
under the District's Personal Computer Loan Program. Loans are repaid with interest at the rate earned
on the District's investment portfolio at the time of the loan plus one percent. Currently there are 2
employee loans outstanding totaling $970.

Note 4 - Purchased Water Capital Component

ln 2003 the Sonoma County Water Agency issued $6.8 million in 30-year 4.75% revenue bonds to
finance the Wohler to Forestville pipeline. That same year the Agency received a $15.8 million 2.8% 20-
year State Revolving Fund loan to finance construction of Collector #6. For these two projects the District
pays the Agency a debt amortization surcharge incorporated into its purchased water cost. The FY13
Purchased Water Capital Cost Component is $225,000, which is the District's share of the annual debt
service for these projects, and is paid as a $114,83/MG surcharge, based on budgeted water deliveries.
The Purchased Water Capital Component is funded from Restricted Cash Reserves established to
amortize this debt (see Note 1 - Wohler Pipeline and Collector #6 Financing Funds).
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Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Life
Facilitv (Years)
Aqueduct... 150
Dam... 100
STP & RWS Structures... 40
STP & RWS Mains 50
STP & RWS Pumping Equipment...... 25
STP & RWS Water Treatment Equipment.. 20
Storage & Transmission Facilities... ... ... 50
Distribution Facilities,.. 50
Buildings,,. 35
Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipment. 10
Vehicles 1 ton or greater... 10
All other vehicles... 5
Sewer Mains... 40
Sewer Pumps. 10
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Note 6 - Capitalization Policv

The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Local Governmenfs recommends that
a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000,

Note 7 - Bond & Loan Servicinq Schedule for FiscalYear 2013-2014

FY14
Servlce
Area Descrlption

lssue
Date Rate

Original
Amount

Payment
Due

Final
Pmt lnterest Principal

6t30114
Outstanding

Balance

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

4 RWTP

5 RW North

6 RWSouth

7 Olema

I Point Reyes

9 PRE

10 Point Reyes

11 WMWater

EDA Loan

SRF Loan - STP

Bank Marin Loan

$351,770

$16,528,850

$7,000,000

$3,262

$326,027

$220,209

$15,162

$718,448

$261,833

$65,445

$1 3,1 01 ,376

$6.254,229

1977

2004

2011

5.0%

2.39%

3.54%

7t1 7t1t17

7t1 & 1t1 7t1t29

2Tthlmo 10t27131

Novato Total $549,498 $99s,443 $19,421 ,040

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

OL-2 GO Bond

EDA Loan

PRE-1 Revenue

PR-6 Revenue

Bank Marin Loan

2006

201 3

2013

2.4%

2.6%

2.2o/o

$4,302,560 6/19 6t19t27

$4,375,605 Varies Varies

$4,917,681 Varies Varies

Recycled Water Total $212,967 $560,929 $11,847,703

$77,236

$93,811

$41,920

$1 96,1 31

$188,081

$176,717

$3,022,026

$4,082,743

84,742,934

1 975

1977

1 980

1 981

2012

5.0%

5.0%

5.0o/o

5.00/o

3.540/o

$70,000 1t1 1t1t15

$46,000 7t1 7t1t17

$240,000 10t1 & 4t1 4t1t20

$217,800 7t',t & 1tl 7t1t21

$1 ,O0o,ooo 2Tthlmo 10127131

West Marin Water Total

$382

$451

$4,1 00

$4,200

$32,324

$3,731

92,252

$10,000

$9,000

$38,434

$3,921

$9,057

$73,000

$75,000

$924,422

$41 ,457 $63,417 $1 ,085,400

Total $803,922 $1,619,789 $32,354,143

1. ln 1977 the Federal Economic Development Administration issued a 4O-year 5% loan of $351 ,770 to
assist in the funding emergency Novato Water system projects in response to the drought.

2. ln April 2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a2.39% 2}-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY09 with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan
covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of $104,447 (10% of the annual debt service
obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment period. Debt service is funded 25o/o by Facility Reserue Charges.

3. ln October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2}-year 3.54o/o (APR) loan of $B million to fund the District's
share of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note 16, and note to loan 10 below.

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a2.4% Z}-year loan of
$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility.With the addition of $38,015 in
Construction Period lnterest, the loan principal totaled $4,302,560. The project was completed in
June 2007, and the first payment was made June 19, 2008.

5. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.6% 20-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.
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The projects were completed on October 31,2012, and the first payment was made in November of
2012.

6, ln March 2012 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.2%
29-year loans totaling $4,552,077 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion Project. The
projects were completed on September 4, 2013, and the first payment will be made in December
2013.

7. ln June 1973, after petition and creation of an improvement district (OL-1) for the investigation of
water service to Olema and the Point Reyes National Seashore Headquarters, Olema voters, by a
92% "yes" vote, approved formation of an improvement district (OL-2) and a bonded debt of $70,000
to acquire and improve the Olema Water Company owned by W. Robert Phillips and others and to
service that area. The Farmers Home Administration purchased the 1975 bond issue in its entirety.
On 6/1/91, at the demand of the FHA, the Novato Water District repurchased the remaining $56,760
balance in the Olema bond debt. The interest rate paid to Novato Water on the OL-2 bond was
thereafter reset to the higher of the rate earned by the District treasury or the stated rate of 5%.

8. ln 1977 the Federal Economic Development Administration issued a 4O-year 5% loan of $46,000 to
assist in the funding emergency West Marin Water system projects, including temporary diversions
from Bear Valley Creek and Lagunitas Creek in response to the drought.

9. Ïhe Paradise Ranch Estates private water system was created by David Adams and Sons in 1952 to
provide water to 85 homes in the PRE subdivision located north of lnverness Park. Problems with
waterquality and quantity developed and in 1969 the Marin County Health Department issued a boil-
water order to all customers of the company.ln 1972 the County declared a moratorium on issuance
of building permits. A suit by property owners resulted in an agreement reached in Marin Superior
Court in late 1978 directing Adams to finance a District feasibility study for the takeover of the system.
This culminated in formation of lmprovement District PRE-1 and an election authorizing issue of
$240,000 of 5% 4O-year revenue bonds, which, in conjunction with a $720,000 Farmers Home
Administration grant, financed system rehabilitation. Service was provided from the Point Reyes
System by installation of an additional well, expansion of the treatment plant, and a 6-inch pipeline
connection at the lnverness Park pump station extending 1.6 miles along Sir Francis Drake Boulevard
to the newly reconstructed Paradise Ranch Estates distribution system. On 4l22l\0 the USDA
purchased the revenue bond issue in its entirety.

10. ln 1981 work commenced on rehabilitating the Point Reyes lnverness Parkwatersystem. 18,865 feet
of pipeline was either replaced or installed, a 300,000-gallon tank was added in Point Reyes Station

?!q a 1_00,O00-gallon tank was added in lnverness Park. Total cost of these improvements was
$820,015. A72% grant combined with a $217,800 5o/o  }-year revenue bond acquired Bl2Bl81by the
Farmers Home Administration financed the project.

11. ln June 2012lhe Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects
and the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant,
See note to loan 3 above.

Note I - Unemplovment lnsurance Reserue

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the
District reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid
on our behalf, The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount
paid over the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currently $450 x 52 =
$23,400).
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Note 9 - Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave; Section 125 payments;
cancer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

Note 10 - lnterest Policv on Inter-District Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements, ln the event an
improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sutficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by
the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the
previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher of: 1. The weighted average interest
rate of Novato improvement district debt (2.75% at 6/30/13); or 2.The average interest rate earned on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 11 - Budqet Auqmentations

The Board augmented this year's West Marin Capital lmprovement Project Budget by $100,000 on
1121114 (with the remaining $1.386M to be budgeted for FY15) for the Gallagher Pipeline project and
adopted a resolution authorizing execution of the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) Funding
Agreement. CDPH has authorized a grant in the amount of $1.486M for construction of the 12-inch
pipeline connecting the Gallagher Well to the West Marin's existing water system.

Note l2 - Prior Period Adiustment

Note l3 - Provision for Pension Related Debt and Side Fund

NMWD participates in the CaIPERS 2.5% at age 55 retirement plan. Per CaIPERS Actuarial Valuation as
of June 30,2012 (most recent data available) NMWD had an accrued liability of $34.6 million and assets
valued on an actuarial basis at $27.7 million, rendering an unfunded liability of $6.9 million ($g¿.0 -
$27.7), and a funded ratio of 80.1% ($27.7 / $34.6). Using the market value of assets at June 30,2012,
the funded ratio was 67.3o/o.

ln 2003 when NMWD was included in a CaIPERS pool of agencies with less than 100 employees, a "side
fund" was created by CaIPERS to account for the ditference between the funded status of the pool and
the funded status of NMWD's plan, NMWD is amortizing the CaIPERS side fund ($2.2 M of the $6.9M
unfunded liability at June 30,2012) on a schedule to be paid off in2025.

Note 14 - Explanation of Financial Statement Components

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2)
Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash
Flow by Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
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The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the
District's creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as nef position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Gombined (page 8) compares fiscal
year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget
format. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.

The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the
fiscal year-to-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses
on this report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and
comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income and
expenses are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and
can be used to determíne whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees
and other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page 9 is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose
of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for
the period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same
period.

Notes to the Financlal Statements (page 31) provide a summary of significant accounting policies and
assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with
GAAP foreach of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and
expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the
Vehicle Fleet Analysis (page 25), Equipment Expenditures (page 22) and Capital lmprovement Project
Expenditures (page 27), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note l5 -Connection Fee Transfers from Novato Water To Recvcled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

Expansion LocalShare
North Sorfh Central NBWRA

SRF RWF Expansion
Loan SRF Loan Total

Transfer
Executed

FYOT

FYOS

FY09
FY10 $133,659
FY11

FY12 9233,478
FY13
FY14 $236,291

$29,725
$50,478

$ 150,455

$75,198

$ 133,319

$ 1 15,883

$315,023
$56 $62,499

s29,725
ç73,273

$173,250
$231,652

$156, 1 14

$637,656

$802,390

$ 133,659

$265,500

$22,795
$22,795
$22,795
$22,795
$22,795
922,795 $464,572 $1,970,400

$1 , 371 ,6 53$668,431 $404,376 $1 ,371,653
$56 $932.580 $136.769 $868.949 $3,475,712 $3,475,712$603.428 $933,93r

38
t:\accountants\tinancials\stmtfyl 4\f snot€ 1 4. docx



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

Note 16 -Debt Service Coveraqe Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreciation, and
connection fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments
on the District's total debt.

FY14

FY10 FYl1 FY12 FY13 Budgeted

Net lncome/(Loss)

Depreci ati on

lnterest Expense

Connection Fees

Total Available For Debt Service

Annual Debt Service

Debt Servlce Coverage Ratlo

(s3,616,979)

s2,659,984

s694,044

5L,796,029

(s 1,156,582)

$2,660,418

57!0,4!6

s387,610

(s217,163 )

52,726,598

Sosq,¿sq

s2,036,943

$2,784,648

5778,762

$gzo,gso

S 1,921,000

S2,879,000

s912,ooo

S936,oooS 1,oos,680

5L,s32,977

S1,384,506

1.11

s2,60L,862

S 1,385,156

1.88

$4,169,599

5t,77o,894

2.35

$6,476,703

52,118,3!4

3.05

$6,648,000

52,44t,000

2.72

Bank of Marln Debt Servlce Coverage Calculatlonl FYTD14

FYL4

Budgeted

Change in NetAssets2

lnterest Expense

Depreci ati on & Amorti zati on

Tota I Ava i I a bl e for Debt Servi ce

Bank of Marin Annual Debt Service

Bank of Marln Coverage Ratio

s2,7!0,063

s678,832

s2,200,530

S6,134,570

S55 2,800

11.10

S3,956,000

s912,ooo

S2,879,000

57,747,O00

S552,800

14.01

1 Per the October 27 , 2011 Bank of Marin loan agreement, each June 30, beginning June 30, 2012, lhe Debt Service
Coverage Ratio shall not be less lhat 1.2 to 1. "Debt Service Coverage Ratio" shall mean the ratio of (i) Borrower's
change in net assets plus interest, depreciation, and amortization during the flscal-year period ending on the
Determination Date to the sum of the scheduled principal and interest payments on the Loan during the twelve-month
period following the Determination Date.
2 See page 9
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Item #6

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT FOR MATCî 2014

APril 15, 2014

Novato Potable Water Prod - RR & STP Gombined - in Million Gallons - FYTD

Month FY13/14 FY1 2/13 FY11/12 0n1 FY09/10 14vs13%
July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March

38
360
332
313
229
182
168
119
158

389
396
346
283
166
146
151
148
211

371
373
347
249
183
156
178
147
156

379
368
358
278
164
141
146
134
151

360
367
335
233

-1%
-9%
-4%
10%

5

176 38%
149 25%
140 11Yo

124 -20%
1s2 -25%

2,245 0 2, 2 036

West Marin Potabte Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date

Month FY13/1 4 FY12/1s FYl 1/1 2 I- YlUl1 1 FY09/10 14vs 13%

July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March

9.3
9.3
8.5
8.0
6.8 5.2
6.4
5.9
4.4

9.8 9.2

5.0 5.4

9.7
8.3 8.7
7.4 6.5

5.1

4.5 4.9
5.0 4.8
4.4 4.5

4.4

9.4 9.9
9.2
7.8
4.9
4.8
4.3
3.9
5.6

9.9 10.0
10.6

9.6
6.9
5.6
4.5
4.2
3.9
5.7

-5%
-5%
3%
8%

31Yo

43%
18%
2o/o

-9%

FYTD Total 63.5 59.7 57.6 60.4 60.8 6%

Stafford Treatmen t Plant Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date

FYl3/14 FY 2/13 FY11 /12 Y10/11 t-Y09/'t U 14vs13%Month
July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March

9B

B3

56
82

5

2
0
0
0

49
83
72
BB

64
0

21

57
61

115
126
77

113
106

49
0
0
0

109
108
112
111
95

0
0
0

52

152
150
155

BO

0
0
0
0

32

101%
0%

-22%
-7%
-93%

FYTD Total 326 493 586 588 569 -34%

Water Production 'in Million Gallons - FY to Date
3 0 4vs

July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March

27.6
26.2
18.6
15.8

6.4
1.6
1.2
1.8
1.2

11.2
10.5

8.5
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
1.4

1 1.0
12.2

9.6
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

11.9
11.2
9.5
2.6
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

2 0 147o/o

149%
119%

12.9
10.2
2.6
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0 -9o/o

FYTD Total 100.4 31.5 32.8 35.2 37.7 218o/o

1



Rainfallthis month
Rainfall this FY to date
Lake elevatìon*
Lake

March Average

3.5 lnches

March 2013

0.9 lnches
18.3 lnches

194.6 Feet
290 MG

March 2014

2.8 lnches
1 1.8 lnches

187.8 Feet
847 MG

24.
1 93.

3 lnches
5 Feet
3MG211 1

2. Stafford Lake Data

. Spillway elevation is 196.0 feet
** Lake storage less 390 ¡y¡6 = quantity available for delivery

Temperature (in degrees)

Minimum Maximum Average
March 2013 (Novato) 3B 90 62

March 20'14 (Novato) 41 96 65

3. Number of Services

4. Oceana Marin Monthlv Status Report (March)

5. Developer Proiects Status Report (March)

%

Job No Proiect Com lete % This month

March 31
l:ì1,ri.;:ì:i;Ni

FY14
l..,4lL'litV,4.!

FY13
àf;ìir;ì:iìÌìi$

lncr %
üliBér
FY14

yçteq
FY13 lncr %

tllV.,eqi

FY14
MãN'
FY13

rwáÞ
lncr %

oc6ãi
FY14l

iàlMAj
FY13 lncr

Totalmeters
Total meters active
Active dwelling units

20,730 20,756 -0.1% 47 19 147o/o 820 819 0.1%
20,486 20,491 0.0% 44 15 193% 776 776 0.0%
23,940 23,942 0.0% 0 0 813 811 0.2% 229 227 0.9%

Description March 2013 March 2014

Effluent Flow Volume (MG) 0.415 0.650

lrrigation Field Discharge (MG) o.770 0.387

Treatment Pond Freeboard (ft) 4.4 3.4

Storage Pond Freeboard (ft) 6.2 4.4

2763
2759

2772

Çity Administration Office

Novato High School

35 Rowland Way (Chick-Fil-A)

95

100

95

5

1

5

District Proiects Status rt - Const Dent lMarchl

Job No. Proiect % Complete % This month

1723.14 Clay Ct. PB Replacement

Emplovee Hours to Date, FY 13114

As of Pay Period Ending March 31,2014
Percent of Fiscal Year Passed = 75%

90 10

2

Developer
Proiects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

District Projects
Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

Construction 677 1,400 48 I Construction 3.827 5,607 68

Enoineerino 611 1.480 41 I Ensineering 3.959 3,698 107



6. Safetv/Liabilitv

FY through March 14
FY through March 13

Days without a lost time accident through March 31, 20 14= 294 days

lndustrial lniury with Lost Time Liability Claims Paid

Lost
Davs

OH Cost of
Lost Davs ($)

No. of
Emp.

lnvolved
No. of

lncidents
lncurred
(FYTD)

Paid
(FYrD)

($)

60
0

24,960
0

1

0
0
0

2
2

872
4.430

7.8 Cost
Year-

FYE
4 Stafford T

Pumping
Other*

2013 Stafford TP
Pumping
Other"

2012 Stafford TP
Pumping
Other*

Kwh
57,552
80,727
32 867 17

,146

Kwh

14.7ø, $410 1 ,270,938
17.1ø
15.4ç,

3 7 506,47

198 388 988 19.6
4 2,166,399 5ø, 1

wh CosUDa

$712
B

$276
$595

481,969
1,012,840

622,338
1,064,262

60,341
104,965
46

11

17.1ø,
13.7ø

14.0ø,
16.3É

$332
$449

$62
$299
$1 85

15.9ø,
15.3ë

15.eø,
14.7ø,

54
$1,135

9327
$565
$229

15

,700 15.

3 681 19
966 ,831,491

1

26,125
53,409
32 212 17

16.0ø

222 18

,822 15 $1 ,1 10

*Other includes West Marin Facilities

8. Water Conservation UPdate

9.

sERylcE LINES REPLACED :,..."..Ul ltr,.,.rr,

Po 3'1

Coooer (Reolaced or Repaired) 2

3

Month of
March 2014

Fiscal Year
to Date

Program Total
to Date

Hi Efficien Toilet Rebate 100 each 28 249 2,8713

Retrofit Certificates Filed 31 215 4,984

Cash for Grass Rebates Paid Out 4 33 555

Was Machine Rebates 12 250 6,401

Water Smart Home SurveY 33 302 1,719

SERVICE DISRUPTIONS

PLANNED
33Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours

12 hoursDuration Between 4
than 12 hoursDuration G

UNPLANNED
11Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours

Duration Between 4 and 12 hours
Duration Greater than 12 hours



Novato Potable Water Production
t\ac\exæl\Mr use\producln.xls chart - total prod by mo

4t3t14

MG

4,000

3,500

3,000
IJun

-MayIApr

ElMar

IFeb

IJan

IDec

INov

IOct

-SepIAug

IJul

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

0
2008 2009 2010

FiscalYear Ending June 30

FYTDI4vs FWDI? = 09/o lncrease
FWDl4vs Prior 10 Year Average = 4%o Decrease

2,245

IOO MGFY14 Estimate =
FY14 Budget = 2,700 MG

3,179

2,997

2,754

3,120

2,897

3,518 3,48
3,641

3,278

2005 2006 2007 20'11 2012 2013 2014



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summarv of Comolaints & Service Orders March 2O'14

Type Mar-14 Mar-13 Action Taken March 2014

Consumers' Svstem Problems
Service Line Leaks
Meter Leak Consumer's Side
House Plumbing
Noisy Plumbing
Seepage or Other
House Valve / Meter Off
Nothing Found
Low Pressure
High Pressure
Water Waster Complaints

Total 27

4t8t2014

0
6
0

1

0

o
3

1

0
0

0

J
0

0

0

o
0

0

0
0

1

0
6
0
0

0

1

0

5

0

1

0
0
0

0

0

0

o

0

2
2
0
0

Notified Consumer

Turned Back On
Notified Consumer

Notified Customer

Repaired
Notified Consumer

Repaired

Notified Consumer

Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer

27

Service Repair Reports
Register Replacements
Meter Replacement
Meter Box Alignment
Meter Noise
Dual Service Noise
Box and Lids
Water Off/On Due To Repairs
Misc. Field lnvestigation

Total

Leak NMWD Facilities
Main-Leak
Mains-Nothing Found
Mains-Damage
Service- Leak
Services-Nothing Fou nd

Service-Damaged
Fire Hydrant-Leak
Fire Hydrants-Nothing Found
Fire Hydrants-Damaged
Meter Replacement
Meters-Leak
Meters-Nothing Found
Meters Damaged
Washer Leaks

Total

Hiqh Bill Complaints
Consumer Leaks
Meter Testing
Meter Misread
Nothing Found
Projected Consumption
Excessive lrrigation

Total

Notified Customer

0

0

0

o
2

0
0

0

0

0
0
0
0

4

11

0

0

0

10

2

U

I
0

0

0

0

U

U

o

22

7

0

4
21

0

U

,12

Replaced
20

1

2332

c-'r



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summarv of Comolaints & Serv ice Orders March 2014

Type Mar-14 Mar-13 Action Taken March 2014
4t8t2014

Low Bill Reports
Meter Misread
Stuck Meter
Nothing Found
Projected Consumption
Minimum Charge Only.

Iotal

Water Quali Comnlaints
Taste and Odor
Color
Turbidity
Suspended Solids
Other

fotal
TOTAL FOR MONTH:

FiscalYTD Summarv
ConsumerS SyJtem Problems
Service Repair Report
Leak Complaints
High Bill Complaints
Low Bills
Water Quality Complaints
Total

0
0

0

0
0

0

0

0
0
0

1

1

0
1

0

0
0

0

0
0
u"

92 85 8%

00

259
90

207
329

0
52

320
107
202
413

.)

32

-19%
-16%

aotLto

-20%
0o/o

63%

Chanqe Pri Iv Due To
Decrease ln Service Line Leaks
Decrease ln Meter Replacement
lncrease ln Srve Lk/Nothing Found
Decrease ln Nothing Found

lncrease ln Taste & Odor
937 1,077 -13%

c-2



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summarv of Complaints & Service Orders March 2014

Mar-14 Mar-13 Action Taken March 2014
41812014

"ln House" Generated and
Completed Work Orders

Check Meter: possible
consumer/District leak, high
bill, flooded, need read, etc.

Change Mefer: leaks,
hard to read

Possib/e Meter
Repair Meter: registers,

shut offs
Replace Boxes/Lids
Hvdrant Leaks
Trims
Diq Outs
Letters to Consumer:

meter obstruction, trims,
bees, gate access, etc.

Misc.' locate meter,
get meter number,
cross connection follow ups,
kill service, etc.

Bill Adjustments Under Board Policy

March 14 vs. March 13

Mar-14
Mar-13

Fiscal Year to Date vs Prior FYTD

13114 FYTD
12113 FYTD

218

15

205

10

J

0

2
0

27
29

0

0

o

0

29
66

00

0 0

336

27
16

285
302

276

$9,587
$4,987

$99,522
9108,747

t:\cons sruc\complaint reporl\lcomplain '] 4. xlslnlar '1 4

c-3



ree

ServiceProm

Neutral Other

C u sto m e r Service Q u esti o n n ai re Q u a rte rl y Re p o rt t:\cons sruc\cons accl\cust- setuice question rep

Quader Endinq 03/31/14 3t3112014

NMWD
Res nse

Water Quality
Courteous & Helpful
Accurate lnformation
Prompt Service
Satisfactorily Resolved
Overall Experience

Agree ut Disaqree Pressure Neutral SAglee _
Courteous & Helpful 1

Accurate lnformation 1

Prompt Service
Satisfactorily Resolved
Overall erience

U 0 Ã 0 0

Leak
Courteous & Helpful

Aglee
7

Neutral- 1-
No Pi Agree , Neutral Disag ree

Courteous & Helpful 2

Accurate lnformation
Prompt Service

7 Accurate lnformation 2

o Service 2

Satisfactorily Resolved r) 2 Satisfactori Resolved 2

7 , Overall rience 2

35 5 0 0 0

Billing ree Neutral

Qourteqqs & Helpful ,
Accurate lnformation

4 Courteous & H
4 Accurate I

Prompt Service 4
Satisfactorily !es,o
Overall Experience

lved 4 Sati Resolved
À Overall nce

n tJ 0

Grand Total 70 5 0
10/t/o o%

Questionnaires Sent Out 113 100%

Questionnaires Returned 15 13% 
'

93%



Customer Service Questionnaire Quarterly Report
Quarter Endinq 03131114

Customer Comments Staff Response to Comments

t:\cons sryc\cons acct\cust. quest reportsu0'1 4\[customer seruice question. rep marl 4.xls]comments

lssues NMWD Should Address
ln The Future

Water

Leaks
Darrell was very helpful.
Great Job.
The young man was very professional.
The service was the best.
I appreciated the quick & helpful response

Billing
The gentleman was great, very helpful

Pressure
Good servicel

Noisy Pipes
The technician was helpful. Great job.

Thank you.

Page 1



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors April 1 1,2014

From: David L. Bentley, Auditor-Controller

Subj: Auditor-Controller'sMonthlyRep lnvestments for March 2014
/egtment rgporl 0314.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

At month end the District's lnvestment Portfolio had an amortized costvalue (i.e., cash balance)

of $17,425,779 and a market value of $17,432,682. During March the cash balance increased by

$808,358. The market value of securities held decreased by 91,776 during the month. The ratio of total

cash to budgeted annual operating expense, excluding the $5,659,804 unexpended balance of the

Bank of Marin loan, stood at 89%, up 6% from the prior month. This compares to the District's target

ratio of 90% of annual operating expense, or $1 1.9 million,

At March 31,2014,65% of the District's Portfolio was invested in California's LocalAgency

lnvestment Fund (LAIF),14o/o in Time Certificate of Deposits,l2o/o in Corporate Medium Term Notes,

and 6% in US Treasury Notes, The weighted average maturity for the portfolio was 171 days,

compared to 128 days at the end of February. The LAIF interest rate for the month was 0.24%, the

same as the previous month. The weighted average Portfolio rate was 0.35%, compared to 0,33% the

previous month. lncluding interest paid by Black Point Partners on the StoneTree Golf Club Recycled

Water Facilities Loan, the District earned $9,845 in interest revenue during March, with 46% earned by

Novato Water, 48o/o êàltrêd by Recycled Water (by virtue of the Black Point Partners loan) and the

balance distributed to the other improvement districts.

State Controller John Chiang's March report on California's financial position stated:

"As employment nears its pre-recession peak, the State is seeing positive gains in many of its

primary revenue sources. As we enter the important month of April, all eyes will be on the State's

income tax receipts - and whether they size up against budget estimates."



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRIGT
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

March 31,2014

Type Description
LAIF State of CA Treasury

Time Certíficate of Deposit
TCD Ally Bank
TCD Goldman Sachs
TCD GE Capital Retail Bank
TCD Discover Bank
TCD GE Capital Bank
TCD American Express
TCD Compass Bank
TCD Sallie Mae Bank
TCD BMW Bank
TCD Key Bank

Purchase Maturity
Date Date

S&P
Rating

A

Cost
Basisr

3t3112014

Market Value

o/o of
Yield' Portfolio

Various Open $11,259,848 $11,263,087 0.24%3 650/o

nla 9l2Ùl12
nla 1215112

nla 10111113
nla 511113

nla 6110113

nla 811113

nla 914113

nla 10123113
nla 12111113
nla 3119114

10t1t14
12t5t14
4t13t15
5t1t15
6tBl15
813115

9t4t15
10t23t15
12t11t15
3t21t16

1019115

7117115

$248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000

$248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000

0.85%
0.75%
0.80%
0.50%
0.50%
0.700/o

0.65%
0.80%
0.70%
0.45%

1o/o

1%
1o/o

1%
1o/o

1%
1o/o

1%
1%
1o/o

0.65% 14%

US Treasury Notes
Treas 1,000 - 3.13o/o

Corporate Medium Term Notes
MTN General Electric AA+
MTN Toyota Motor Credit AA-

nla 3126114 541,074 $998,877 $998,984 0.55% 60/o

1t29t13
5t14t13 1

91,002,261 $1,004,551
004 825 1

0.70o/o

0.51%
0.60% 't2%

005 932
6%
60/o

Other
Agency Marin Co Treasury
Bond Olema G.O. Bond
Other Various

AA+ Various Open
A+ 5131191 111115

nla Various Open
TOTAL IN PORTFOLIO

I

$474,186 $474,186
3,933 4,093

201,849 201,849
ç'17,425,779 917,432,682

0.22%
5.00%
0.00%

3o/o

0o/o

1o/o

0.35% 100%

Weighted Average Maturity = 171 Days

LAIF: State of California Local Agency lnvestment Fund.
MTN: Medium Term Note - Maturity of 5 years or less.
TCD: Time Certificate of Deposit
Agency: West Marin General Obligation Bond Fund tax receipts & STP State Revolving Fund Loan Reserve.
Bond: Annual $4, 1 13 payment is paid by tax levy on Olema residents.
Other: Comprised of 4 accounts used for operating purposes, US Bank Operating Account, US Bank STP SRF Loan

Account, Bank of Marin AEEP Checking Account & NMWD Petty Cash Fund.

1 Original cost less repayment of principal and amortization of premium or discount.
2 Yield defined to be annualized interest earnings to maturity as a percentage of invested funds.
3 Earnings are calculated daily - this represents the average yield for the month ending March 31 , 2014.

Loan Maturity Original Principal

Date Date Loan Amount Outstanding

lnterest
Ratelnterest Bearino Loans

Black Point Partners-BPGL 6/30/06 2128124 $3,612,640 $2,203,500
Employee Housing Loans (7) Various Various 1,249,200 1,249,200

2.40%
Contingent

1.51% (avg)Employee Computer Loans (2) Various Various
TOTAL INTEREST BEARING IOAA'S

970

The District has the ability to meet the next six months of cash flow requirements.
nents\'l 4\f0314,xlslinternal mo rpt



4t9t14 t:\accountants\¡nvestments\la¡frate.xlsxldata

NMWD Portfolio Balance
10-Year History

Million

$20

$18

$16

$14

$12

$10

$8

$6

$¿

$2

$0

$17.4M

$11.8M

2104

Portfolio Balance Target:
90% of Annual Operating

= $11.9 Million

peak: Jan 2001 = S19.3M

$8M Bank Loan -->

AEEP Reserve

2t05 2t06 2t07 2t08 2t09 2t10 2t11 2t12 2t13 2t14



LAIF 

-Portfolio

4t9t14

8o/o

7o/o

60/o

5o/o

4%

3o/o

2o/o

1%

Oo/o

t:\acountantsl\¡nvestments\la¡frate.xlslchart3

0.35%
0.24%

3113 3t143t04 3/05 3/06 3t07 3/08 3/09 3/1 0 3t11 3t12

NMWD Portfolio Rate of Return
State of CA LocalAgency lnvestment Fund vs District Portfolio

lO-Year History

FinancialGoal:
Treasury Yield to Exceed

LAIF Rate by 25 Basis Points
(0.25o/ol (Adopted 6t 17 te7)

\,_-------.-:rÊì<"ìã-

Over the 10 year period shown, the District
LAIF portfolio by an average of 16 basis po

portfolio has outperformed the
ints, generating an additional

$11,000 per year, on average, in interest revenue forthe District.

Over the past 12 months, the District's portfolio has earned $14,000 more
it would have earned had District cash been invested 100o/o in LAIF
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MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation Coordinator [¿f2

Approve Text for Novato "Water Line", Volume 16, lssue 32
W:\Memos to Board\Spr¡ng 2014 WaterL¡no Text 0414,doc

Item #7

April 1 1,2014To:

From:

Subject

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Approve Spring 2014 Novato "Water Line"Text

$7,000 (lncluded in FY 201312014 Budget)

Draft text and design for the Spring 2014 Novato "Water Line", Volume 16, lssue 32 is at-

tached for your review. This issue focuses on water supply and the drought and summarizes the

Novato Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance approved on April 1, 2014.Ihe "Water Line"

message directs customers to the www.nmwd.com website feature, allowing customers to log in and

see a graph of their water use, rather than print the water use graphs on the letter. The online

graphs have been modified to add an 80% water use reduction target bar for each past billing period

in 2012and2013.

Should any Board member have individual comments please provide them to the General

Manager at the Board meeting on April 15,2014. lt is expected the "Water Line" will be mailed in

late April 2014.

RECOMMENDATION

Board authorize General Manager to approve final text and design of Spring 2014 Novato

"Water Line",Volume 16, lssue 32.
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It's A Drought - Save Water!
ReduceWater Use by 2OVo

|-¡-t heextremely dryconditionsthrough

t January 2014 have been tempered
I with rainfall in February and March.

Novato rainfall this water year is less than
12 inches, 4496 of äverage Novato rainfall.
This follows low water years in 2012 (16.3")

and 2013 (20,3'). Stafford Lake cunently is

at 62cyo of capacity. On *re Russlan River

eìrer+therrgh both Lake Sonoma and Lake
Mendocino are substantially lower than
this time in 2009 when Russian River water
deliveries were reduced by 25%,

Lake Mendocino, which collects runoff
from the upper Russian River watershed
and water diverted from the Eel River
through the Potter Valley Hydroelectric
Project {PVP),ls partof a system that makes
up 80% of NMWD's Novato water supply.
Water stored in Lake Mendocino is released
into the Russiân River to support recreation,
urban and agricultural water supply
and fisheries. Currently Lake Mendocino
is at 50% of capacity. Commun¡t¡es
on the upper Russian River are under
mandatory water use restrictions, while
water users downstream of Lake Sonoma,
including NMWD, are being asked to
voluntarily conserve.

Chinook salmon, listed as threatened under

needed in the fall ofthe year to support the
Chinook salmon migration and spawning.
The water level in Lake Mendocino is low
this year due to below normal rainfall during
the last three winters and reduced water
diversions through the PVP ordered by the
Federal Regulatory Energy Commission

and National Marine Flsheries Service to
protect fisheries in the Eel River.

On April 1, the NMWD Board of Directors
declared a Water Shortage Emergency,
enacted the Novato Water Shortage
Contingency Plan and adopted an
Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance
calling for custorners to reduce water use

by 209ô to the same period
votuntary measutes.þst

1
!,ear

This can be achieved by eliminating
water waste and non-essential uses of
water änd reducing water applied to your
landscaped areas. NMWD hopes to avoid
any individual customer water ration¡ng
this year. Below contains a summary of
the water use restrict¡ons now in effect.
The 20% voluntary conservation request ¡s

consistent with Governor Brown's January
request when all California was declared in
drought conditions,

You can see your water use history and
voluntary water use reduction target for
vour account at www.nmwd.com. Select

the YOUR ACCOUNT tab and click on
Account Balance & Consumption. Once
you determine your voluntary water use
reduction target, visit www.watgroff.ofo
and access the WATER SAVINGS

CALCULATOR link under the TIPS button
to explore wäter säving measures that you
can undertake to reach your tärg€t. This
voluntary water uge reduction târget is for
your information and individual customer
rationing is not projected at this time.
Customers using less than 143 gallons
per person per day have already met the
conservation target.

ln the past Novato customers have done
their share to aid the Russian River system
in low water years and we are hopeful you
wlll participate again. Working together we
can do our part with all Russian Rivqr users
to preserve water.for fi shery protectlon,

water

North Marin Water D¡str¡ct has adopted
an Emergency Water Conservation
Ordinance, prohibiting waste of water
and non-essential uses to meet the 2096

voluntary water use reduction target.

THE PROHIBITIONS INCLUDE:
Effective April 1,2014 untilthe
Ordinance is resclnded. , r- ,...\ '_-{

i1,I' 'å:"

t l Gutter flooding (unreasonable

irrlgation overspray or irr¡gation
run-offonto pavement, down a
gutter, ditch or other surface drain).

2) Failure to repaira leak within a
reasonable amount of time.

4) Washlng privately owned motor
vehicles, trailers and boats except
from a bucket and hose equipped
with a shut-off nozzle.

5) Refilling a pooldrained after
July l, 2014 or initialfilling of a pool.

The full Emergency Conservation
Ordinance c¿n þg vlewed at
rnwr.nrywd*òdi,',, .i"

3l Washlng
.r f

.åP"\
down exterlor pavgd areas._i ¡' ;

t-\t I
I

oç þt4,

ffi

ffi

Call today to schedule your FreeWater Smart Home Survey: 707-547-1909



WATER SMART SAVINGS PROGRAIiI (all {ar5l 7at-ss44 for prosram details or visit www.nmwd.com

High-Effi ciency Toilet Rebate
Dont flush mon€y away. Now you can gêt a rebate
when you replace your non-water-conserving toilet

Toilet (HET). HEIs use 20ç6 le$s water
than ståndard ultra-low flush toilets, so not only will you save
wate[ but you'll save money, too. HETs eligible for rebate must
be EPA WaterSense approved models. Call for rebate values and
participation details or visit www.nmwd.com.

Water Smart Home Survey
NMWD offers fræ Water Smart Home Surveys as the cornerstone of
trhe W¿ter Srn drt Sdv¡ngs Progr¿rn" This frec service includes indoor
and outdoor water efficiency checks, a landscape inigation system
efficiency test and a leak detect¡on test.

Our friendly, knowledgeable survey technicians can show hot'¿
you can easily conserve more water and save money, Best of all,
your åppontment can be scheduled ât ð time that ¡s conven¡ent
for you. How to Pârtk¡päte? Call (707) 547-1909 to ret up your
free appointment.

:'E :,; High-Efficiency Clothes Washer

ht¡ ReËate Program
ffit.W High Efficiency clothes washers cðn söve up to 5096 of the
water used and 6596 ofthe energy used compared to conventional
top-loading clothes washers. NMWD currently offers a rebate
to customers when they purchase a qualiffing high-efficiency
clothes washer. Call for rebate value and participation details, or
vis¡twww.nmwd.com.

Cash for Grass
As part of theWater Smart Savings Program, you can get cash back
when you remove your regularly mowed and irrigated lawn and
re-landscape w¡th Distf¡,ctapproved lowwater use plants or D¡str¡ct
approved synthet¡c turf. Pre-inspection and re-landscaping plan
approval required. Call for rebate values and complete program
participation detalls or v¡s¡t www.nmwd.com.

999 Rush Creek Place

PO Box 146
Novato, CA 94948
(4ls) 8974133

www.nmwd.comI.¡ORTH fiTARIN

WATIR D¡STRICT

@ nrinrcaoo nrq,*U frpct

PRESORTED

5TA¡,IDARD
u,5. P0SrAGE

PAID
srfrAHMCOM

ffi
@Ií@

H

ffi ffi t¿I

Go Green With Graywater Workshop
Laundry-To-Landscape and other Graywater Systems:

Free and Open to the Public (seating is limited)

Saturday, June 28 ô 9:30 - 12:00
Tamalpais Community Center, Mlll Valley

Saturday, September t3 ô 9:30 - 12:00
Marin Humane Society, Novato

Lose Your Lawn Worlshops
'¡ ,, -.ãL,i . :çgmiF,gllp. 'ly$å.;' :å':1.': + ::,t1"':|;i: t ;

Sheet Mulchlng and HomeCompoling
Day, Month 00 ó 00:00 pm

Gardenlng wlth Nature¡ DroughtTolerant Hab¡tât for
Bees. Butterfles and Birds: Day, Month @ ô 00:00 pm

Locat¡on! 999 Rush Creek Place

Slgn up: Send an email to waterconserve@nmwd.com

Eco-Friendly Garden Tour
Saturday May 17 - I0am -4pm
Msit beautlful gardens ln Novato and learn about sustainable
practices such as lawn converslons; natlve gardens to attract blrds,
butterflles and bees; and saving water wlth drought reslstant plants.

Natlve plant sale all day
Semlnars¡
I lam: Creatlng a lowWaterand Low

Malntenance Garden

lpm: Sheet-mulching demo
2pm: Top 5 Natlves forYour Garden

SIGN UP for the tour âti
http://www.savlngwaterpartnershlp.org

ffi
Mifiu

E
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Item #8

MEMORANDUM

To:

From

Subj:

Board of Directors f,
David L. Bentley, Auditor-Co ntrotter¿/

April 1 1,2014

Draft Rate lncrease Letters for West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer Customers
t:\ac\word\budget\wm\'1s\proposed rate increases for wm Mr & om swr.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize Staff to Draft Rate lncrease Letters to West Marin
Water and Oceana Marin Sewer Gustomers

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time - $43,000 Additional FYíS Revenue for West
Marin Water and $8,000 Additional FYlS Revenue for Oceana
Marin Sewer Proposed for June 24 Public Hearing

At the January 10 Board workshop, staff presented an update of the five-year financial

plan for both West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer. Annual rate increases of 5% were

included in the assumptions for both systems, consistent with prior forecasts. Accordingly, a 5o/o

increase is recommended and proposed to become effective July 1 , 2014 for both systems.

Staff will incorporate the 5% increase into the rate increase letters to be reviewed and approved

by the Board at its May 6 meeting. The letters will be mailed to each customer, and must be

postmarked on or before May 10 to meet the minimum 45-day notice deadline. A public hearing

to consider the proposed increases is scheduled for Tuesday, June 24, in Point Reyes Station.

West Marin Water

Consistent with Novato Water, staff proposes that the bimonthly Service Charge remain

unchanged ($30 for the typical 5/8" meter) and that the commodity rate be increasedby 7o/o1,

rendering a 5% increase in water cost for the typical (median) single-family residential customer.

ln addition, as approved by the Board at its March 17 meeting, the rate increase letter will

include consideration of a proposed drought surcharge of $2.50 per 1,000 gallons, with a

provision to exempt the first 200 gallons per day for residential customers. ln 2013,43% of West

Marin Water residential customers used less than 200 gallons per day all year long, and thus

would not be impacted by the proposed drought surcharge.

Attachment A is an update of the West Marin Water System 5-Year Financial Plan. Most

significant is the $1.5 million Gallagher Pipeline Project that will be fully funded by a Proposition

50 Grant, which requires that the project be completed in by the close of 2014. Previously the

District had planned to borrow money for this project. An offsetting factor is the late 2013 update

t Note that for Novato Water a 6.5% Commodity Rate increase generates a 5% increase in revenue, while a7o/o
Commodity Rate increase is required to generate a 5% increase in West Marin Water revenue, as the Service
Charge represents a larger percentage of the total water revenue in West Marin than in Novato.



DLB Memo re Proposed Rate lncreases for West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer
April 11,2014
Page 2 of 3

of the construction cost estimate for the Solids Handling Facility, increasing the estimated future

cost by $550,000, to $1,245,000. The District will need to borrow approximately 9500,000 in

FY16 to fund completion of the Solids Handling Facility. This cost may be reduced if more

readily accessible property at the Coast Guard Housing Site becomes available.

Significant assumptions include:

1) A 5o/o water rate increase annually, consistent with prior forecasts;

2) Water sales volume is projected conservatively at 70 MG in FY15, a 12.5o/o reduction

from calendar 2013 actual, based on the assumption that a 25o/o mandatory water use

restriction will be in effect from July 1 through October 31. Thereafter water sales volume

is projected conservatively at 75 MG annually, down about 5% from the current fiscal

year estimated actual;

3) Two new connections per year, which is the average over the past 3 years;

4) The financial plan includes purchase of 250 acre-feet from Marin Municipal Water

District between June 16 and November 1,2014, to address salinity intrusion due to

drought related low-flows in Lagunitas Creek. The cost is $190 per acre-foot ($47,500);

5) The proposed drought surcharge is projected to be in effect from July 1 through October

31, 2014, and to generate an additional $43,000 in commodity revenue, partially

mitigating the cost of purchasing water from MMWD and the reduced water sales

volume.

Oceana Marin Sewer System

Staff proposes that the monthly Sewer Service Charge be increased 5%, to $68 per

month. Recall that the Sewer Service Charge is levied by the County Assessor and collected

with the annual property tax payment.

Attachment B is an update of the Oceana Marin Water System S-Year Financial Plan.

Significant assumptions include:

1) A 5o/o water rate increase annually. This is consistent with prior forecasts, and is designed to

build a reserve to fund a $350,000 pond relining project in FYlB;

2) One new connection per year, which is the average over the past 5 years;

3) A $30,000 Master Plan update (done every 10 years) will be included in the FY15 budget;

4) A $700,000 parallelforce main is not included in the budget. Depending upon the condition of

the pond lining in FY18, commencement of the redundant force main project may be

substituted for the pond relining project.



DLB Memo re Proposed Rate lncreases for West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer
April11,2014
Page 3 of 3

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize Staff to draft rate increase letters to West Marin Water and Oceana Marin
Sewer customers, inviting them to the June 24 public hearing, and advising them of the
proposal to enact a 5o/o rate increase, and to consider incorporation of a drought surcharge
applicable to West Marin Water customers as here¡n proposed.



North Marin Water District

WEST MARIN WATER
í-Year Financial Forecast

* BASIG DATA
r Active Meters
z Avg Commodity Rate/1,000 Gal
¡ Potable Consumption (MG)

INCOME
¿ Commodity Charge
s Minimum Service Charge
o Connection Fee
t PR-2 County Tax Allocation
a PR-3 G.O. Bond Tax
g OL-2 G.O. Bond Tax
1o lnterest
11 Miscellaneous
12 TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURES
r3 Operating Expenditures
14 Water Purchased from MMWD
15 Miscellaneous
i6 Bond & Loan Debt Service
17 lnterdistrict Loan lnterest
18 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET INCOME

oTHER SOURCES/(USES)
19 Capital lmprovement Projects
20 GranVloan Proceeds
21 Loan from (Repayment to) Novato
22 Net Change in Working Capital
zs INCREASE (DECREASE) lN CASH

t:\admin\ac\exæl\budget\wm\'l s\wm1 5.xlsx 5 yr æshflow

Actual
2011t12

777
$6.97

74

$518,217
115,584
36,600
40,598
13,938
3,757

0
8,218

$3,297
55 597

5,918
9447,760

$289.r52

Actual
2012113

776
$7.61

81

$614,880
138,684

4,900
40,443

338
4,205
3,251

10,983

$11,964
110,799

0

$519,591

$298.093

Estimated
20131'14

777
$8.1 0

79

$640,000
168,000
23,000
42,000

0
4,000
3,000
4,000

$497,000
$10,000
$30,000
105,000

0

$642,000

$242,000

3) (285,000)
0 100,000
0

Projected
2014115

779
$8.tt

70

$657,000
168,000
46,000
43,000

0

0
4,000
4,000

$512,000
$38,000
$18,000
r 05,000

0

$673,000

$249,000

(1,656,000)
r,386,000

0
0

Projected
2015116

781
$9.20

75

Projected
2016t',17

783
$e.66

75

$725,000
189,000
46,000
45,000

0

0
5,000
4,000

$18,000
10r,000

0

$662,000

$352,000

Projected
2017t18

785
$1 0.1 5

75

$761,000
r 99,000
46,000
46,000

0

0
1,000
4,000

$18,000
99,000

0

$676,000

$381,000

Projected
2018t19

787
$10 66

75

$799,000
209,000
46,000
47,000

0

0
2,000
4,000

$18,000
3r4,000

0

$908,000

$199.000

$736,912 $817,684 $884,000 $922,000 $968,000 $1,014,000 $1,057,000 $1,107,000

$382,948 $396,828

$690,000
180,000
46,000
44,000

0

0
4,000
4,000

$18,000
100,000

0

$645,000

$323,000

$527,000 $543,000 $559,000 $576,000

(145.027) (380
'1,000,000

(356,e68)

50,32 (100,000) (1,6e5,000)
0 500,000
00
00

000)
0

0
0

000)
0

0
0

75(2

0
04 574 51 956

$z 3

CASH BALANCE
24 Operating Reserve
2s System Expansion Reserve
26 Liability Contingency Reserve
27 Bond Redemption Reserve
28 TOTAL CASH BALANCE

$0
700.681

98 885
33,330

$0
566,7r 0

99,000

$225,000
402,000

99,000

$606,000
0

99,000

$829,000
0

99,000

$0
0

85,000

$317,000
0

99,000

76

$241,000
0

99,000

000l8 0001

33 000 30 000 30 000
832,896 698,710 56,000

000 30 000 30 000 30 000
000 58,000 15,000 000 70,000

29 Amount Due to Novato Water
30 DepreciationExpense

$o
$1 50,1 69

$o
$148,654

$0
$154,000

$0
$159,000

$0
$187,000

$o
$189,000

$o

$217,000
$o

$218,000

4t9t14



North Marin Water District t:\admin\ac\excel\budget\wm\'1s\wm1 5.xlsx 5 yr cashflow

WEST MARIN WATER NOTES
# KEY

West Marin Water includes the communities of Point Reyes Station, lnverness Park, Olema, Bear Valley, Silver Hills and Paradise Ranch Estates (PRE).

1 Assumes annual increase of 2 connections per year.

2 Commodity rate increase of 7o/ois proposed effective 711114. Annual 5% Commodity and Service Charge increases shown thereafter.

3 Consumption projection assumes 25% reduction in water demand from July 1 through October 31 , 2014 due to mandatory 25o/o water use restrictions.

Annual consumption thereafter conservatively projected at 75MG due to continue focus on conservation.
4 FY15 includes proposed 7% commodity rate increase, along with projected $43,000 in drought surcharge revenue generated between July 1 and

October 31 due to anticipated 25Yo mandatory water use restriction.

5 No increase proposed in FY15, 5% increase annually thereafter.

6 The connection fee was set at $22,800 per equivalent dwelling unit effective August 1,2010.
z County tax allocation enacted subsequent to Prop 13 to compensate for O&M tax revenue previously received. PR-2 County Tax allocation is

increase 3% per year.

B, 9 GO Bond Taxes are Proposition 13 Exempt property tax levies that fund general obligation bond debt service.

10 Projected available funds invested at 0.50%

11 Turn-on, set-up, backflow device, Horizon CATV site lease & other miscellaneous charges.

13 3% annual increase assumed afterFY14.
14 lncludes purchase of 2504F from MMWD for release to Lagunitas Creek between June 16 and November 1 at $190/AF to address salinity intrusion.

15 FY14 lncludes $'l5K for an update of the Master Plan.

16 Comprised of three  }-year 5% bonds all purchased by the Farmers Home Administration: '1) '1975 OL-2 $70,000 GO bond due 2015; 2) 1980 PRE-1

$240,000 revenue bond due 2020:3) 1981 PR-6 $217,800 revenue bond due 2021; plus an Economic Development Administration $46,000 5o/o 4}-year
loan due 2017. On 6/1/91 the OL-2 bond was repurchased by Novato Water upon demand by FmHA. ln July 2012 WM Water was allocated $1 million from

a Bank of Marin loan to fìnance construction of a Treatment Plant Solids Handling Facility. Commencing FY13 includes repayment of the $1 million Bank

of Marin loan.

17 lnterest on interdistrict Loan to fund the LRIPP. Debt was fully repaid in June 2012with Bank of Marin loan.

18 Excludesdepreciation.
.19 Capital lmprovement Projects. See 5-year Capital lmprovement Projects Plan.

20 FY12 $1 million Bank loan; FY14&FY15 Gallagher Pipeline grant of $1.46 million; FY17 $500,000 loan to complete the Solids Handling Project.

24 Operating Reserve should be comprised of a minimum of 4 months of operating expenditures as recommended by the District's financial advisors.

25 System Expansion Reserve is composed of connection fee revenue and unexpended Bank of Marin loan funds.

26 Liability Contingency Reserve - $90,000 is West Marin Water's pro-rata share (3.6%) of the District's $2.5 million liability contingency fund, available to pay

liability claims arising within the West Marin water system. $8,885 was added in Dec 2006 from sale of 2 surplus parcels in lnverness Park.

27 Bond Redemption Reserve is comprised of one year of Revenue Bond debt service ($30K) for PR-6 & PRE-1 bonds as required by bond covenant plus tax
receipts held in the Marin County treasury. The PR-3 GO Bond was fully repaid in January 2013, eliminating the need for its reserve.

29 Amount Due to Novato Water at fìscal year end.

4t9t14



North Marin Water District

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
í-Year Financial Forecast

* BASIC DATA
t Number of Connections
z Monthly Service Charge

INCOME
s Monthly Service Charge
¿ OM-1/OM-3 Tax Allocation
s Connection Fees
o lnterest Revenue
z MiscellaneousRevenue/(Expense)
e TOTAL INCOME

g OPERATING EXPENDITURES

OTHER EXPENDITURES
1o Capital lmprovement Projects/Other
11 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

12 Net Change in Working Capital
rs INGREASE (DEGREASE) lN CASH

CASH BALANCE
14 Operating Reserve
15 Connection Fee Reserve
16 TOTALCASH BALANCE

17 DepreciationExpense

t:\admin\ac\excel\budget\wm\1 s\wm1 5.xlsx 5 yr €shflow

$157,3r I $1 57 ,992 $178,000 $r 87,000 $196,000 $208,000 $220,000 $233,000
43,266 43,101 44,000 45,000 46,000 47,000 48,000 49,000

0 0 30,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
1,387 724 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0

10 19,127 1 ,000 1,000 1 ,000 1 ,000 1,000 1 ,000
$201,974 $220,9M $254,000 $249,000 $259,000 $272,000 $285,000 $298,000

$137,490 $148,164 $152,000 $157,000 $162,000 $167,000 $172,000 $177,000

$58,694 $221,835 $50,000 $100,000 $65,000 $85,000 $385,000 $15,000

Actual
2011t12

227
$58 00

$196,184

$21,639
s27.429

Actual
2012t13

227
$58 00

Estimated
2013t14

229
$65.00

Projected
2014t15

230
$68.00

Projected
2015t16

231
$71.00

Projected
2016r17

232
$75.00

Projected
20171',18

233
$7e.00

Projected
2018t19

234
$83 00

$369,999 $202,000 $257,000 $227,000 $252,000 $557,000 $192,000

($2,275)
($15r,330) $52,000 ($8,000) $32,000 $20,000 ($272,000) $106,000

$343,372 $'192,042 $244,000 $236,000 $268,000

$41,084 $44,720 S57,000 $58,000 $61,000

$293,416
49,956

9192,042
0

$244,000
0

$236,000
0

$268,000
0

$288,000
0

$288,000

$63,000

$16,000
0

$16,000

$65,000

$122,000
0

$122,000

$75,000

-J

o
-

mz
-{
w

4t9t14



North Marin Water District 
t:\admin\ac\excel\budget\wm\15\wm15xlsx5vrcãshflow

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
,VOTES
# KEY

1 ASSumes 1 connection per year, which is the average over the last 5 years'

Capacity is estimated at 308 dwelling units.

2 proposed 5% annual increases to builã cash to fund the FYlB $350,000 Pond Relining Project. A $700K parallelforce main is also projected outside

5-year window.
+ County tax allocation enacted subsequent to Prop 13 to compensate for O&M tax revenue previously received. OM-1/lOM-3 County Tax allocation is

projected to increase 3% Per Year.
5 Assumes new connections occur in OM-3 (Units 1 or 5) which are subject to the connection fee.

o Projected available funds invested at 0.50%
g 3% annual increase assumed after FY14.

10 Capital lmprovement Projects. See S-year Capital lmprovement Projects Plan.

11 ExcludesdePreciation.
16 Cash available for operation, maintenance and improvements

419114





MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark, Operations / Maintenance Superintendent

Item #9

April 1 1,2014To:

From:

Subject

W
Stafford Lake Water Quality Evaluation Consultant Services
XIMAINT SUPl201 4\BOD\MJ MCGuire 414.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a

Consulting Contract with Michael J. McGuire, lnc. for an amount not to exceed $40,500.

FINANGIAL IMPAGT: No budget augmentation required, $50,000 included as an amended
mid year capitol improvement project.

After the various taste and odor issues we experienced at the Stafford Lake Treatment

Plant during the 2014 summer and fall production season staff put together a project scope of

work plan for a consultant to develop a comprehensive strategy for eliminating these taste and

odor compounds in the Districts finished water produced from Stafford Lake, At the February 4,

2014 Board of Directors meeting within the mid year Engineering Progress Report, The Chief

Engineer gave a brief explanation of the Lake Water Quality study for this effort. The consultant

would begin with a review of the District's existing record of data on lake water quality, treatment

methods and etforts to mitigate the taste and odors. Then use their expertise to assess control

and treatment alternatives, including a cost analysis review with District staff, and provide a final

report. As part of this effort, the consultant will conduct site visits sufficient to meet the needs of

the project.

Staff requested proposals from two consulting firms Michael J. McGuire, lnc. and SRT

Consultants, which have the demonstrated experience to perform this study. We received the

proposals and have determined that both firms understand the request with the firm of Michael J.

McGuire, lnc. providing a more comprehensive deliverable report at a cost $5,120 less then SRT

Consultants. The attached proposal out lines the scope of work to be performed for a cost of

$35,600. Staff is including an additional two days of work at $4,900 as contingency for a total not

to exceed project cost of $40,500.

Recommendation

That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Consulting Contract with Michael
J. McGuire, lnc. for an amount not to exceed $40,500.



Michael J. McGuire, Inc.
469 25th Street

Santa Monica, CA 90402

January 6,2013

Mr. Pablo Ramudo
Laboratory Director
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, CA 94945

Dear Mr. Ramudo

I am pleased to submit the enclosed proposal entitled "Development of a Taste and Odor Control
Plan for the North Marin Water District." Michael J. McGuire, Inc. is recognized internationally
as expert in the control of tastes and odors in drinking water, and I am very interested in working
with your utility to resolve these issues.

I believe that our proposed scope of work will address your taste and odor problems in a
systematic and cost-effective manner. Key to the success of this project will be the involvement
of the North Marin Water District staff. I will ensure that the District's resources will be

efficiently used during this efforl.

I look forward to working with you on this interesting project. lf you have any questions on this

proposal, please contact me directly by phone at 310-560-0257 ot by email at

mike@michaelimc guire.com.

Very truly yours,

a-&
Michael J. McGuire, PhD, PE
President and CEO



Narrative of Consulting Services and Qualifïcations

Development of a Taste and Odor Control Plan for the
North Marin'Water District

Michael J. McGuire, Inc.

BACKGROUND

For a number of years, the North Marin Water District (District) has experienced significant taste
and odor problerns in one of its sources of supply-Stafford Lake. The District has explored a

number of control rnethodologies. A more in-depth investigation has been suggested to
understand the sources of the problem and the potential control options.

The District has established three goals related to taste and odor rssues:
. Maintain the ability to produce taste and odor free water throughout the year
. IJse as little algaecide in the lake as possible (preferably none)
. Low capital cost for possible improvements

Part of the proposed work is to determine if these goals are realistic and to establish best
management practices for taste and odor control methodologies.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK

The purpose of this project is for Michael J. McGuire, Inc. (MJM, Inc.) to assist the District in
determining the root causes of the taste and odor problems and to identify ways to mitigate this
problern through source control, treatment and other means. The product of this effort will be a
Taste and Odor Control Plan.

Task 0.0. Proiect Management

Task 0 will ensure that the program tasks are accomplished on schedule and within the approved
budget while ensuring that the designated District Project Manager is kept fully informed.
Management of this program and fbcus on the attainment of program goals will be accomplished
by close communication between the MJM, Inc. Project Manager, Dr. Michael J. McGuire, and
the District Project Manager. Comrnunioations will be facilitated through telephone contacts,
conference calls, facsimile transmission of documents, and use of e-mail.

Task 1.0. Collect Information and Review of Taste and Odor Incidents

The District will collect the information available on the taste and odor problems and transmit
that information to MJM, Inc. Water quality data will be reviewed by MJM, Inc. including

1



analytical data on the levels of off-flavor compounds found in the supply and treated water'

Complai'ts will be reviewed to determine if they give additional information about the taste and

odor problems. Staff will be interviewed as part of the data collection effort'

The existing source of supply (Stafford Lake) will be physically inspected to determine the

factors impãcting the tastã^and odor problems resulting from the watershed and reservoir

conditions. Water quality data from the reservoir monitoring program from the past 3 years will

be evaluated. The District's treatment plant will be inspected and the effectiveness of treatment

options will be assessed. Specifically, ìhe performance of the_granular activated_carbon (GAC)

treatment process will be determined. Speõifications for the GAC material and frequency of

replacement will be reviewed.

Task 2.0. Assess Control and Treatment

Based on obseruations and information gathered from Task 1, MJM, Inc. will develop possible

control and treatment alternatives. Active reservoir control strategies will be considered

including watershed contamination control, outlet manipulation, the existing aeration systems

and destratification, and chemical addition. Advanced treatment control processes such as

powdered and advanced oxidation processes will be examined for their efficacy and adaptability

Task 3.0. Establish Cost Estimates

The available control and treatment methods wilt be evaluated to assign feasibility-level cost

estimates to the more likely choices. Accepted techniques will be used to estimate the costs of

source water control, reservoir control and retrofit costs for the existing treatment plant.

Task 4.0. Attend s with District Staff

Dr. McGuire will be available to attend three meetings with the District staff to understand

District operations and ultimately to explain the hndings fi'om this work'

Task 5.0 Prenare Final Renort

A draft report containing all relevant information will be prepared and submitted to the District

for review. The final reþort will consolidate and forrnalize the findings from Tasks 1 through 3.

In addition to the findings, the document will evaluate alternatives to control the problems, cost

estimates and a recommãnded approach. Adjustments to the existing water quality monitoring

program may be recommende¿ in ttre final rêport. In essence, the final report will embody a plan

ior ãeeting the taste and odor goals established by the District. After receipt of comments on the

draft repoJ, one electronic copy and 5 paper copies of a final report will be prepared and

submitted to the District.
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Flavor Profile Analvses--Optional

If advisable, flavor profile analyses (FPAs) will be suggested on source water, treatment effluent,
and distribution system samples. I have access to a Flavor Profile Panel that performs the FPA
test. The cost of these analyses is not included in the budget estimate.

PROJECT TEAM

Michael J. McGuire

Michael J. McGuire is President and founder of Michael J. McGuire, Inc. The firm was founded
in 2008 to provide consulting services to water utilities particularly in the areas of drinking water
quality enhancement, Safe Drinking Water Act Compliance and water treatment optimization.

Between 1979 and 1992,Dr. McGuire was Director of Water Quality for the Metropolitan Water
District of Southcrn California (Metropolitan) as well as holding several other positions at the
utility. During the period 1980 to 1990, he instituted the most comprehensive taste and odor
control program of any water utility in the U.S. Elements of the program included:

. Managed the design of an innovative analytical methodology to determine earthy-musty
odorants at part-per-trillion levels-the closed-loop stripping method.

. Adapted the Flavor Profile Analysis method for use in drinking water taste and odor
evaluations.

. Designed a comprehensive research program to determine the cause of earthy-musty odor
problems in six Southern California reservoirs. Once the causes were determined, an

effective taste and odor source control strategy was implemented.

. Managed the research that led to the installation of the Ozone/PEROXONE processes for
taste and odor and disinfection byproduct control at the water treatment plants for
Metropolitan. At the completion of the capital project in2016, the total installed capacity for
these processes will be 2,640 mgd.

Dr. McGuire is an internationally recognized expert in the identification and control of tastes and

odors in drinking water. Dr. McGuire has helped more than 100 water utilities meet current and

future drinking water regulations as well as improve the aesthetic quality of their product.

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA

Dr. McGuire evaluated the control of earthy-musty and sulfide odors at the Cater Water Treatment
Plant in Santa Barbara. The sources of the odors were a surface water reservoir and inf,rltration of
sulfide-containing groundwaters during transport of the raw water through a delivery tunnel.

J



TUCSON WATER, TUCSON, ARIZONA

Dr. McGuire was involved in studies for Tucson Water flom 1993 to 2007 . IIe investigated the

impact of corrosion on the production of taste and odor problems in the distribution system. In
1998, Dr. McGuire organizedcomprehensive expert consulner panel evaluations of the taste and

odor characteristics of water supplies available to the City.

FORT COLLINS, COLORADO

Dr. McGuire evaluated the taste and odor problems on the Poudre River and Horsetooth Reservoir

and he prepared a taste and odor control research program for this utility.

SAN DIEGO COL]NTY WATER AUTI-IORITV, CALIFORNIA

As part of a large investigation on the acceptability of repurified water delivery to consumers, Dr.

McGuire evaluated the potential for taste and odor development in a large surface water reservoir-
San Vicente Reservoir.

SEATTLE WATER DEPARTMENT, SEATTLE,, WASHINGTON

Lake Youngs is a critical component of the water supply system for the City of Seattle. Dr.

McGuire investigated the taste and odor problems that occuned in the reservoir and recommended

shategies for reseruoir destratification.

GULF COAST WATER AUTHORITY, TEXAS CITY, TEXAS

Dr. McGuire provided a comprehensive review of the taste and odor control program for the Gulf
Coast Water Authority. The review included control methods in the source water reservoirs and

treatment process assessments.

EAST BAY MLINICIPAL UTILITIES DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA

Dr. McGuire assisted this large utility in its evaluation of the taste and odor potential of alternative

surface water supplies.

SALEM, OREGON

Dr. McGuire worked with another consultant to help solve a swampy/earthy odor problem that

developed in the Aquifer Storage and Recovery systern operated by Salem, Oregon. Samples

were collected and analyzed for a variety of constituents including the Flavor Profile Analysis

method. Treatment and operational recommendations were made to the client.
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CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY

During 1999 and 2000 the Central Coast Water Authority experienced significant earthy-rnusty
taste and odor events. MJM, Inc. was asked to investigate the possible sources of the odor
problem, evaluate treatment options and develop feasibility-level costs for treatment alternatives
to control the odorous compounds. The problem was assessed, a report was written and

recommendations were made to staff and the Board.

PUBLICATIONS AND PRESBNTATIONS

McGuire, M.J., Krasner, S.W., Hwang, C.J., and Izagufure, G., "Closed-Loop Stripping Analysis as a

Tool for Solving Taste and Odor Problems," J,ourna_l .{¡sqtçan Watelworks Associ , vol. 73, pp
530-537 , October 1981 .

Krasner, S.W., HwanE, C.J., and McGuire, M.J., "Development of a Closed-Loop Stripping
Technique for the Analysis of Taste- and Odor-Causing Substances in Drinking'Water," in Advances
in the Identifrcation and Anal]¡sis of Organic Pollutants in Water, vol. 2, L.H. Keith (Ed.), Ann Arbor
Science Publishers, Inc., Michigan, I 981 .

lzaguirre, G., Hwang, C.J., Krasner, S.W., and McGuire, M.J., "Geosmin and 2-Methylisoborneol
from Cyanobacteria in Three Water Supply Systems," Applied and Environmental Microbiology, vol.
43, n. 3, pp. 7 08-7 14, March 1 982.

McGuire, M.J., "Theoretical Introduction to Taste and Odor in Drinking'Water," presented at the
California-Nevada Section Conference, American Water Works Association, Long Beach, California,
April 15, 1982.

Means, E.G.,lzaguirre, G., Hwang, C.J., Krasner, S.W., and McGuire, M.J., "Biodegradation of the

f'aste and Odor Compound 2-Methylisoborneol in a Potable Water Supply," presented at the Annual
Conference of the American Society for Microbiology, New Orleans, Louisiana, March 7,1983.

McGuire, M.J., "Taste and Odor Control," Water Treatment Forum XV, California-Nevada Section,
Amcrican Water Works Association, San Diego, California, April 72,1983.

McGuire, M.J., Jones, R.M., Means, E.G.,Izaguirre, G., and Preston, 4.8., "Control of Attached
Blue-Green Algae in a Source Water Reservoir," Proceedings. 1983 Annual Conference. American
Water Vy'orks Association, Las Vegas, Nevada, June 8, 1983.

Lalezary, S., Pirbazari, M., and McGuire, M.J., "Air Stripping of Trace Taste and Odor Compounds
from Water, " Proceedinss, 1983 Annual Conference, American Water Works Associalieq, Las

Vegas, Nevada, June 8, 1983

Krasner, S.W., Hwang, C.J., and McGuire, M.J., "A Standard Method for Quantification of
Earthy-Musty Odorants in Water, Sediments and Algal Cultures," Water Science and Technolog)¡,
vol. 15, No. 6/7, pp.I27-138, 1983.
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Izaguirre, G., I-Iwang, C.J., Krasner, S.W'., and McGuire, M.J., "Production of 2-Methylisoborneol by

Two Benthic Cyanophyta," Water Science and Technoloqy, vol. 15, No. 617,pp.2Il-220,1983.

McGuire, M.J., Krasner, S.'W., I{wang, C.J., and lzaguirre, G., "An Early Warning System for
Detecting Earthy-Musty Odors in Reservoirs," Water Science and Technology, vol. 15, No. 6/7,

pp.267-277, 1983.

Lalezary, S., Pirbazari, M., and McGuire, M.J., "Air Stripping of Taste and Odor Compounds from

Water, JournalAWWA,vol.76, pp. 83-87, March 1984.

McGuire, M.J., Jones, R.M., Means, 8.G., Izaguirre, G., and Preston,A.E., "Controlling Attached

Blue-Green Algae with Copper Sulfate," Iqg¡¡1ql4WWA, vol. 76,pp.60-65, }ilay L984.

Lalezary, S., Pirbazari, M., and McGuire, M.J., "Oxidation of Taste and Odor Compounds,"

Proceedinss. 1984 Annual Conference" AWWA. Dal las, Texas, June 10-14, 1984.

Hwang, C.J., Krasner, S.W., McGuire, M.J., Moylan, M.S., and Dale, M.S., "Deterrnination of
Subnanogram Per Liter Levels of Earthy- Musty Odorants in Water by the Salted, Closed-Loop

Stripping Method," Environmental Science & Technoloqy, vol. 18, pp. 535-539, July 1984.

Means, E.G., Preston, 4.E., and McGuire, M.J., "Scuba Diving: A Tool for Managing
Water-Quality," Journal American Water Works Association, vol.76, pp. 86-92, October 1984.

Pirbaza;i,M,Lalezary, S., Borow, H., and McGuire, M.J., "Activated Carbon Adsorption

Equilibrium Studies for Taste and Odor Compounds," Twelfth Annual Water
Technoloey Conference, American Water Works Association,
December 2-4,1984.

Denver, Colorado, pp. 381-398,

Means, 8.G., and McGuire, M.J., "Experiences with Metropolitan's Early Warning System for Taste

and Odor Control," Proceedinqs Twelfth Amual Water QualiW Technology Conference, American

Water Works Association, Denver, Colorado, l)ecember 2-4,1984.

Krasner, S.W., McGuire, M.J., and Ferguson, V.8., "Tastes and Odors: The Flavor Profile Method,"
Journal A@ Association, v ol. 7 7, pp. 3 4-39, March 1 985'

Lalezary, S., Pirbazari, M., Dale, M.S., Tanaka, T.S., and McGuire, M.J., "Pilot-Plant Studies for the

Removal of Geosmin and 2-Methylisoborneol by Powdered Activated Carbon, " Proceedines, 1985

Annual Conference. American Watcr Works Association. Washington, D.C., June 26,1985

Lalezary, S., Wong, S.-P., Pirbazari,M., and McGuire, M.J., "Perfotmance Prediction for Removal of
Odorous Organics fiom Drinking Water by Adsorption," Proceedings. 1985 Specialty Conference on

Environmental Engineering, American Society of Civil Engineering, Boston, Massachusetts, July

r-7 , 1985.

Lalezary, S., Pirbazari, M., and McGuire, M.J., "Oxidation of Five Earthy-Musty Taste and Odor

Compounds," Journal American Water UþfkqA$9ç1q!9q, vol. 78, pp.62-69, March 1986.
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Means, E.G. and McGuire, M.J., "An Early V/arning System for Taste and Odor Control," Journal
American Water Workq:\ssociation, vol. 78, pp.77-83, March 1986.

Pirbazari,M.,Lalezary, S., and McGuire, M.J., "Granular Activated Carbon Pilot Column Studies for
Removal of Geosmin and 2-Methylisoborneol from Drinking'Water," presented at the 1986 Annual
Conference, American 

'Water 
Works Association, Denver, Colorado, Jlune 26, 1986.

Lalezary, S., Pirbazari, M., and McGuire, M.J., "Evaluating Activated Carbons for Removing Low
Concentrations of Taste-and Odor-Producing Organics," Journal AWWA,vol.79,pp.76-82,
November 1986.

McGuire, M.J. and Gaston, J.M., "Overview of Technology for Controlling Off-Flavors in Drinking
'Water," 

Pfqqcqdtagq, Second International Symposiuln oll Off-Flavours in the Aquatic Environment,
Kagoslrima, Japan, October 12-16, 1987 (Water Science and Technology,Yol. 20, No. 8/9, pp. 215-
228,1988).

Lalezary-Craig, S., Pirbazari, M., Dale, M.S,, Tanaka, T.S. and McGuire, M.J., "Optimizing the
Removal of Geosmin and 2-Methylisoborneol by Powdered Activated Carbon," American Water
Works Association Journal, Vol. 80, No. 3, March 1988 (pp. 73-80).

McGuire, M.J., Davis, M.K., "Treating Water with Peroxone: A Revolution in the Making,"
WATER/Engineering & Management, May 1988 (pp. 42-49).

McGuire, M.J., and J. M. Gaston, "Overview of Technology for Controlling Off-Flavors in Drinking
Water, "'Waterworld News May/June 1988 (pp. 18-21).

McGuire, M.J., Thompson, J.M., Liang, S., Tate, C.H., and Glaze, W.H., "PEROXONE for Control
of Disinfection By-Products, Tastes and Odors, and Microorganisms," Summaries, WASSER
BERLIN'89 (International Ozone Association), Berlin, April 10-16, 1989 (pp. V-2-1 through V-2-
t4).

Ferguson, D.W., McGuire, M.J., Koch, 8., Wolfe, R.L., and Aieta, E.M., "Comparing PEROXONE
and ozone for Controlling Taste and Odor Compounds, Disinfection By-Products, and
Microorganisms," ¿rngrican Water Works As , Vol. 82, No. 4, April 1990 (pp. 1 81-
191).

Glaze, W.H., Schep, R., Chauncey, W., Ruth,8.C., Zarnoch, J.J., Aieta, E.M., Tate, C.H., and
McGuire, M.J., "Evaluating Oxidants for Removal of Model Taste and Odor Compounds From a
Municipal Water Supply," Arnerican lVater Works Association Journal, Vol. 82, No. 5, May 1990
(pp. 7e-8a).

Pirbazari, M., Borrow, H.S., Craig, S., Ravindran, V., and McGuire, M.J., "Physical Chemical
Characterization of Five Earthy-Musty-Smelling Compounds," Water Science and Technology, vol.
25, No. 2, pp. 81-88,1992.
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McGuire, M.J., "Off-Flavor as the Consumer's Measure of Drinking Water Safety," presented at the

Fourth International Symposium on Off-Flavours in the Aquatic Environment, Adelaide, Australia,

October 2-7,1994 ater S Technolo Vol. 31, No. 11, pp. 1-8, 1995)

Burlingame, G.4., and McGuire, M.J., "Simple Test Flags Changes in Taste and Odor," OUllqw, Vol.

20,p.l, October 1994.

Suffet,I.H., Corado,4.,Chou, D., McGuire, M.J. and Butterworth, S., "AWWA Taste and Odor

Survey," Journal AW-WA, Vol. 88, No. 4, pp' 168-180, April 1996'

McGuire, M.J., "Advances in Treatment Processes to Solve Off-Flavor Problems in Drinking W'ater,"

presented at the Fifth International Sympostum on Off-Flavours in the Aquatic Environment, Paris,

France, October 13-16, 1997 ater Techno Vol. 40, No. 6, pp. 153-163,1999)

McGuire, M.J., Lieu, N, and Pearthree, M.S., "Minimizing Chlorinous Odors While Maximizing

Distribution System Disinfection," presented at the 1998 Water Quality Technology Conference,

American Water Works Association, San Diego, California, November 1,1998.

Aciukewicz, T., Peafthree, M.s., McGuire, M.J. and Keane, P., "Gauging Public Acceptance of

Water Flavor in Water Resource-Limited Areas," presented atthe 1999 Water Quality Technology

Conference, American Water Works Association, Tampa, Florida, October 3 1-Novemb et 3, 1999.

Stocking, 4.J., Suffet, I.H., McGuire, M.J., and Kavanaugh, M.C., "Implications of an MTBE Odor

Study di S"Uittg Drinking Water Standards," Journal AWWA, Vol. 93, No. 3, pp' 95-105, March

2001.

Hund, R., McGuire, M.J., and Burlingame, G., "Blinging it all Together: A Taste and Odor Decision

Tree," presented atthe 2002 Annual Conference, American Water Works Association, New Orleans,

Louisiana, June2002.

McGuire, M.J., I{und, R., Burlingame, G., and Kreuser, M. "Taste and Odor: A Practical Decision

Tree,,'presented at the Rocky Mõuntain Section Conference, American Water Works Association,

Steamboat Springs, Colorado, September 17, 2002.

McGuire, M.J., Hund, R., Burlin game, G., and Kreuset, M. "Assessment for Taste and Odor Event

Preparedness," presented at the Rocky Mountain Section Conference, American Water Works

Association, Steamboat Springs, Colorado, September 17, 2002'

McGuire, M.J., Hund, R., and Burlingame, G., "Establishing a Hierarchy of Off-Flavors, Their

Causes and Solutions, and Incorporating Them into a Practical Decision Tree," presented at the 6th

Intemational Symposium on Off-Flavors in the Aquatic Environment, Barcelona, Spain, October 7-

10,2002.

McGuire, M.J., Hund, R., and Burlingame, G., "Establishing Utility Taste-and-Odor Preparedness,"

poster presentation at the 6th lnternational Symposium on Off-Flavors in the Aquatic Environment,

Barcelona, Spain, October 7 -10, 2002.
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McGuire, M.J., Hund, R., Burlingame, G., and Graziano, N. "Assessment for Taste and Odor Event
Preparedness," presented at the 2002Water Quality Technology Conference, American Water Works
Association, Seattle, Washington, November 2002.
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Phase, vol.2, Ann Arbor Science Publishers, Inc., Michigan, 1980.

McGuire, M.J., and Suffet, I.FI. (Eds.), Treatment of Water by Granular Activated Carbon, Advances
in Chernistry Series Number 202, American Chemical Society, Washington, D.C., 1983.

Hrudey, S.8., McGuire, M.J., and Whitfield, F.B. (Eds.), Off-Flavqus tallhq r\çlu@l1ç Enyuq4q-en1
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North Marin Water District Proposed Scope of Work and Cost
Estimate

Cost Estimate
Development of a Taste and Odor Control Plan t'or the North

Marin Water District
Michael J. McGuire, lnc. 1t4t14

Est Hrs Estimated
McGuire Task Gost

$300Tasks Task Description

4 $1,2000.0 Proiect Manaqement
10 $3,0001 .1) Collect information and review T&O incidents
15 $4,5002.O Assess control and treatment alternatives
20 $6,0003.0 Establish cost estimates
24 $7,2004.0 Attend meetings with District staff
30 $9,0005.0 Prepare Final Report

103.0 $30,900Total Professional Hours & Fees
$4,700Total Direct Costs

$35,600Estimated Total Project Cost

Budqet for Direct Costs
Est. CostItem Assumptions

$4,500Travel Airfare, Meals and Hotel
rESSe $1 00

Copvinq $1 00

Total Direct Costs $4,700

Note: The hours per task are estimates. Some tasks may take more or less time.
n no case





MEMORANDUM

Item ffiA

April 11,2014To:

From
å\@"

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, Chief fngineèDN
Carmela Chandrasekera, Associate Engineer

Subject: Gallagher Well Pipeline Project: Award Contract to Team Ghilotti lnc
R:\Folders by Job No\7000 jobs\7087\7087.01\BOD memos\7087.01 Contract Award to Team Gh¡lotti BOD Memo 4-'1 1-14.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Approve award of the contract to Team Ghilotti lnc. and authorize
the General Manager to execute an agreement with same

FINANCIAL IMPAGT: $1,039,858 plus $52,000 contingency (5%) Prop 50 Grant funded

round

The proposed Gallagher Well Pipeline project will install approximately 1-mile of 12-inch

pipeline connecting the existing Gallagher well to the NMWD West Marin water system (see

Attachment 1 for the project area). The project will be funded by a Prop 50 grant administered

by California Department of Public Health (CDPH) up to a maximum of $1,486,000.

The Board authorized bid advertisement for the project on February 4, 2014. The

advertised date for this project was February 14, 2014 with a bid opening on March 28, 2014.

The District advertised the project in the Marin lJ and mailed contract documents to nineteen

(19) interested contractors and builders exchanges in the greater bay area. Ten (10) prime

contractors attended the pre-bid meeting on March 5, 2014. The bid period was for six (6)

weeks and included one (1) addendum. Six þids were received ranging from a low of

$1,039,858 to a high of $1,747,000. The lower three bids are listed below.

CONTRACTOR BID

1 Team Ghilotti, lnc. (Petaluma, CA) $1,039,858

2 Maggiora & Ghilotti, lnc. (San Rafael, CA) $1 ,1 32,1 30

3. J & M, lnc. (Livermore, CA) $1 ,196,680

The Engineer's Estimate was $1,040,000. The bid span þetween the Number 1 and

Number 2 low bidders was fi92,272 (for a variance of 8.9%).

Bid Evaluation

Team Ghilotti, lnc. (TGl) of Petaluma, California, submitted the lowest responsive bid of

91,039,858 which is $142 (0%) below the Engineer's construction cost estimate of $1,040,000.

TGI's bid is 8.9% below the next lowest bidder (Maggiora & Ghilotti, lnc.). A bid evaluation was

performed and is summarized in Attachment 2. The attached analysis shows that TGI's bid is

both responsive and responsible. References were checked by staff and confirmed that TGI

has the relevant experience to perform the work.



Gallagher Well Pipeline - Award Construction Contract BOD Memo
April 1 1,2014
Page2 of 2

RECOMMENDAÏION

That the Board approve award of the contract to Team Ghilotti, lnc. and authorize the

General Manager to execute an agreement with Team Ghilotti, lnc. for $1,039,858 and a

contingency of $52,000.
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North Marin Water District Project No. 2.7087.O1

Bid ltems From Bid Schedule Engineer's
trcfimqfô

Team Ghilotti, lnc. Mag¡ora & Ghilotti, lnc. J & M, lnc.

Item
No.

Qtv. Unit Description of ltems
Total

Amount
Unit Pr¡ce Total Amount Unit Price

Total
Amount

Unit Price Total Amount

1 LS
Mobilization/demobìlizatìon allowance (not

to exceed 5% of totaì b¡d amount) $NA $45,000 $NA $50,000 $NA $30,000

2 LS
Trenching, sheeting, shor¡ng, ..

$NA $3,500 $NA $1,130 $NA $30,200

3 LS

All work to construct the 12-inch PVC
pipellne, and appurtenances from
approximately STA 0+00 to STA 52+12 as
shown on drawings C-1 through C-10, CD-
01 and CD-02 except work related to Bid

Items 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8.

$NA $858,858 $NA $920,000 $NA $91 0,380

4 LS

All work to construct the 12-inch steel
pipeline for bridge crossing as shown
on drawings S-1 and S-2 except work
related to Bid ltems 1, 2,3, 5,6,7 &

0.

$NA $97,500 $NA $ 125,000 $NA $168,000

5 LS

All work to construct 4-inch pipeline
and other miscellaneous installations
from approximately STA 52+12 fo
STA 52+24 except work related to Bid
Items 1, 2,3, 4,6,7 & B as shown in
drawinq CD-01 & CD-02.

$NA $1 5,000 $NA $17,000 $NA $27,500

100 CY

Excavation of hard rock together with
proper disposal of rock as defined in
spec section 02223.3.14. The unit
price set forth herein shall remain
fixed regardless of the actual quantity
of hard rock excavated compared to
the estimated bid volume.

$70/cy $7,000 g112lcy $11,200 $1 56/cy $15,600

7 LS Encroachment and environmental
permitting compliance

$NA $10,000 $NA $4,800 $NA $12,000

I 1 LS Record Drawings. $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000

Base Bid

Bid Forms:

30

"lN" StamÞed before bid closinq yes yes ves

Bid multiplies out and sums correctly yes ves yes

License - Possesses valid class A license VCS yes VES

Bid Form - Addendums 1 acknowledged yes** ves yes

Bid Form - Sioned bv Author¡zed lndividual ves yes No

Bid Form - Contractor's Experience Statement yes ves yes

Bid Form - Bidder's Reference ves yes yes

Bid Form - Contractor's Equipment Available yes VES

Bid Form - Biddefs F¡nancial Reference complete complete incompìete

Bid Form - Desiqnation of Subcontractors yes yes VES

Bid Bond VCS yes

B¡dders Experience and Qualifications checked MMWD project

reference (sat¡sfactory)**.
submitted- not checked submitted-not checked

Addendum Acknoledgement signed in attached e-mail submitted with bid

claims aga¡nst 2 agencies

Sub Contractors

Team Gh¡lotti

MG

J&M

Bruce Enterprises (striping)

Bruce Enterprises (striping), MPEG (testing), Delta Grinding (AC Grind), Bennet Marine (Chlorination)

Advanced Boring Special¡sts (HDD)

y,.\Do.Jronßr7039..\GrlighôtWol PFlno BdAnalrt:s3 23¡4
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Item #11

MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Subject

Board of Directors n Date: April 11,2014

Drew Mclntyre, Chief engineeiÞTL

Approve: San Francisco Bay Area lntegrated Regional Water Management Plan
Update
R:\Folders by Job N0\6000 jobs\6900.20\lR\ /¡\4P Grant\Adopt IRWN¡PUMmp Adopt Rêsolut¡on BOD Memo 4-14.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt resolution evidencing approval of San Francisco Bay
Area lntegrated RegionalWater Management Plan Update

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

Background

The voters of California passed two propositions to provide funding for water resource

management programs. ln 2002, Proposition 50 was passed and in 2006 Propositions 84 and 1E

were passed. Current funding for grant projects is under Prop 84.

The Bay Area adopted an lntegrated Regional Water Management Plan (BAIRWMP) in

2006. The BAIRWMP is a nine-county effort to coordinate and improve water supply reliability,

protect water quality, manage flood protection, maintain public health standards, protect habitat

and watershed resources, and enhance the overall health of the bay. The 2006 plan was

approved by the NMWD Board at the November 4,2008 meeting. The California Department of

Water Resources (DWR) acts as an intermediary between the legislature which approves release

of the voter approved grant funds and the public agencies seeking funding. Agencies seeking

funding under Prop 84 must have their projects included in the BAIRWMP. The District received

9531,562 in Round 1 funding of the Prop 84 grant for its recycled water expansion in both the

North and South Service Areas.

ln 2012, it was decided that the BAIRWMP should be updated in 2013. The District

participated in the update process through the North Bay Water Reuse Authority. The 2013

update of the plan may be found at http://bainrymp.org/docs/2O13-bain¡rm-plan-update/2013-final-

p I a niSa n % 20 F ra n ci sc oo/o2O Bavo/o2]Areao/o IRWMP%2OFinal Septe 202013.odf

As part of receiving the Round 1 grant, the District is required to adopt the updated

BAIRWMP. ln addition, the District will seek Recycled Water Central Service Area expansion

grant funding in the future from Round 3 of the Prop 84 grant funds. A resolution to adopt the San

Francisco Bay Area lntegrated RegionalWater Management Plan Update is attached.

Staff Reco mendation

Adopt resolution evidencing approval of San Francisco Bay Area lntegrated Regional

Water Management Plan Update.



RESOLUTION NO. I4.

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

ADOPTING THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE

WHEREAS, the State electorate approved multiple statewide bond measures

since 2000, including Propositions 50 and 84, to fund water and natural resource

projects and programs, including lntegrated RegionalWater Management (IRWM); and

WHEREAS, the benefits of integrated planning for water resources management

activities include increased efficiency or effectiveness, enhanced collaboration across

agencies and stakeholders, and improved responsiveness to regional needs and

priorities; and

WHEREAS, state statute and guidelines required that an IRWM Plan be adopted

by the governing boards of participating agencies before IRWM grant funds would be

provided for water resources management projects that are part of the IRWM Plan; and

WHEREAS, several of the participating agencies in the Bay Area jointly

submitted an IRWM grant application for state consideration where a condition for

funding required the Bay Area IRWM Plan to be adopted by January 1,2007; and

WHEREAS, the Bay Area agencies that received funding in previous grant

rounds did adopt the Bay Area IRWM Plan before such funds were received; and

WHEREAS, more recent state statutes and guidelines require that the Bay Area

IRWM Plan be updated before agencies may receive future IRWM grant funding; and

WHEREAS, a grant was received to update the Bay Area IRWM Plan, that Plan

having been completed in the fall of 2Q13 and approved by the Department of Water

Resources in January 2014; and

WHEREAS, a series of workshops were held on the initial Bay Area IRWM Plan

and recently the Plan Update to provide stakeholders, including Bay Area local

governments, an opportunity to ask questions, provide comments and make

recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Draft Bay Area IRWM Plan Update was posted on the internet

and made available for public comment; and

WHEREAS, the Bay Area IRWM Plan Update before the Board for consideration

incorporates changes based on comments received during the public review period in

the areas of environmental justice, technical project data, and other elements of the

Plan; and

R:\Folders by Job N0\6000 jobs\69oo.2OURWMP Grant\Adopt IRWMP\Draft Update Adoption Resolution 4'14.docx



WHEREAS, the Bay Area IRWM Plan Update provides an implementation

framework that calls for tracking accomplishments, developing lists of prioritized projects

and periodically updating the Bay Area IRWM Plan as conditions warrant, providing

funding and resources are available to carry out these activities; and

WHEREAS, adoption of the Bay Area IRWM Plan Update does not entail a direct

commitment of resources and implementation of each project, as such will be the

responsibility of the project proponent and any applicable project partners, and there is

no joint commitment or responsibility by the Bay Area IRWM Plan Update participants to

implement any or all of the projects; and

WHEREAS, the Bay Area IRWM Plan Update is exempt from the California

Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 515262 and $15306 because

the IRWM Plan Update consists of basic data collection that would not result in the

disturbance of any environmental resource and involves planning studies for possible

actions that the participating agencies have not yet approved; and

WHEREAS, the IRWM Plan Update is meant to be complementary to

participating agencies' individual plans and programs and does not supersede such

plans and programs, and adoption of the IRWM does not prohibit or effect in any way a

participating agencies' planning efforts separate from the IRWM Plan; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the North Marin Water District

Board of Directors does hereby adopt the Bay Area IRWM Plan Update.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly

and regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

at a regular meeting of said Board held on the 15th day of April, 2014, by the following

vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAINED:

(sEAL) Katie Young, Secretary
North Marin Water District

R:\Fotders by Job N0\6000 jobs\69OO.20URWMP Grant\Adopt IRWMP\Draft Update Adoption Resolution 4-14 docx





MEMORANDUM

Item #12

Date: April 11,2014To:

From:

Subject

in""þYin\

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, Chief Eng

nd

Approve CSWST2 Contract Amendment
Marin Sonoma Narrows/Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project
R:\Folders by Job No\7OOO jobs\71 '18\Consultanti Folder\CS\^^71 18 Cswbontract Amendment 4 for Aqueduct Upsizing BOD Memo 4-15- 14 docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Board authorize General Manager to execute a contract
amendment with cswstuber-stroeh for additional design
services related to the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project
(AEEP).

FINANCIAL IMPAGT: $132,048 (included in FY14 and FY15 CIP Budgets and

-$90,000 reimbursed bY Caltrans)

The most recent overview of the Caltrans Marin Sonoma Narrows (MSN) and Aqueduct

Energy Efficiency Projects (AEEP) was provided to the Board at the December 3,2013 meeting.

Construction is substantially complete for the MSN 81 - AEEP Reach E project and

construction work on the MSN B3-AEEP Reach A-D segments is scheduled to begin in May

(map included as Attachment 1).

CSWST2 Consultinq Services Contract

The Board approved Contract Amendment No. 3 with CSWST2 for design work on the

MSN/AEEp project at the November 5,2013 meeting for $121,200 in out of scope services' ln

the attached proposal (Attachment 2) CSWST2 requests $51 ,704 for work performed in

previously authorized services and $80,344 in new out of scope services. Accordingly, the total

requested fee is 9132,048. Approximately 66% fo the total $132,048 will be billed to Caltrans

for reimbursement. A summary of CSW/ST2's contract modifications since initial approval in

January 2011 is provided below.



Approve Contract Amendment No. 4 CSWStuber-Stroeh Aqueduct Upsizing BOD Memo
April 1 1,2014
Page 2 of 2

Amendment
No.

Approved
Contingency

Balance

1

2

$24,000

$6,840

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize the General Manager to execute a contract amendment with CSWStuber-

Stroeh in the amount of $132,048 for additional design engineering services related to the MSN

and Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Projects.

3

4

Fee
Amount

Cumulative
Total

Date Description

$236,540 $236,540January 201 1 Award Consulting Services
Aqreement to CSW

$253,700Additional services for
Aq ueduct Energy Efficiency
Proiect

$1 7,1 60August 201 1

$80,600 $334,300May 2013 Additional services for
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency
Proiect

9121,200 $455,500Additional design support
services for MSN and
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency
Proiect

November 2013

$132,048 $587,548April2O14 Additional design support
services for MSN and
Aq ueduct Energy Efficiency
Proiect
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45 Levoroni Court

Novato, cA 94949

wlw.cswst2.c0m

41s.883.9850

Fa¡ 415.883.9835

Novalo

Petaluma

Sacramento

GSrtr STffi

Date
Rev.:
File:

March 6,2074
Apdl 10, 2014
4.7731.02

GSWStuber-Stroeh Ergineer¡ng Group, lnc. Engineers I Land Planners I Surveyors I Landscape ilrchitects

Drew Mclntyte
Notth Marin'Watet District
P.O. Box 146

Novato, CA94948

RE: ADDITIONAL SERVICES FOR THE AEEP PROJECT (ADDENDUM #4)

Dear Dtew:

Since November 6, 2073 a number of additional tasks have been required in order to finish the

Narrows ptoiect, In addition, whjle we continually updated the budget sptead sheet with each

monthly invoice, we have never recognized the changes to individual line item budgets for the

ptoiect for the tasks previously approved. \ù7e have divided the follo'ü¡ing analysis into two

þ*ttr, fi5t, the portiàn which reconciles the previously approved changes; and second, the

additional services requested since Novemb er. 6,2073

PREVIOUSLY BUD GETED TASKS

101 - Gap Closure:
This wotk required much less effort than originally andcipated

Credit fi8,762

702 - Kastarna:
Segment Reach A. This work went beyond that originally anticipated' This was due to

the complexity of the tie-in, moving the crossing and combimng the proiects between

rheB-2þroject and the B-3 Project, Additional time was taken to cootdinate with the

B-2 projict, including the work on the B" distribution line in Kastania Road.

Additional wotk was also required for the tie-ins to the PumP stations. Coordination

with URS and the B-2 team. This effort included convetting Reach A to a standalone

document that was listed sepatately but the fee was nevet billed separately ($6,400)

(107) and additionalwork on the Telemetry line ($360) (108).

Additional fi37,459.25 requested to bring budget in line with effort.

103 - B-3:
The project extended much longer than anticipated and requited substantial additional

effori including Sading the water line area to accommodate the trench since the

project v¡as not concurrent with the B-3 ptoiect as originally anticipated. In addition to
gt"¿*g for the ttench area, significant effott was necessâry to 

^î^yze 
options through

\\,;\¡tD-¡-o\'\vT\{\.ll ¡3 102\Cor\2014-04-10 Rcv ¡NÀl\lD,docx
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t$w STtr
Drew Mclntyte
North Marin Vüater Disttict
April 10,2014
Page2

the slide îrea oî the east side of the highway, Other items of additional work included

the.A.DL contamination, wetlands analysis, liquefaction, reliability and othe¡ unforeseen

details. Futher additional modifications r¡/ete tequked to stay with the Cdtans
schedule and the push to have a contract in place by Match, 2014.

.,\dditional $45,049.25 requested to bring budget in line with effort'

104 - B-1:
This work required less effort than originally anticþated pattially due to its short time

duration and uninterrupted desþ Process.

Credit $30,351.50

105 - Project Management:
On Novemb er. 6, 2073 u¡e requested an additional$4,400, at that time we had fees

fi22,400 over budget and an additional 21 month duration, zt aî àverage fee of $2,000

per month. For some reason, Addendum #3 only provided fot additional $42000.

Additional fi22,578 tequested to bring budget in line with effort'

106 - Envitonmental Reviev¡ Coordination v¡ith CT:

This included working with the environment¿l consultants, reviewing special habitats,

implications of construction schedule, methods, pipeline location, and sequencing.

Also included were reviews of permits, roles and tesponsibilities, attendance at Caltrans

meetings and agency conditions and requirements.

¡\dditional $7,338 requested to bdng budget in line q¡ith effott.

107 - Convett Reach A to Standalone:
Invoiced under 702 above, Not used.

Credit $6,400

108 - Additional Work along the Telemetry line for Kastania P,rrrrp Station (subconsultant

wotk only):
No additional wotk is contemplated.

Credit $360

109 - Landscaping, Tree Location, and Coordination with the Korean Church (Reaches C/D):
This budget was anticipated to work with the ptoperty owner through Parts of feaches

C/D. The work was anticipated to include ttee location, teplacement, irrigation and

\v:\^D.NO1'\\\T\.t\{ I I 3¡02\Cor\201'l'01- l0 Rcv N\f\\D'dow



Ësw STffi
Dtew Mclntyre
Noth Madn ]üíater Dist¡ict
1rpnl70,2074
Page 3

coordi"nation. To date the minihal amount of work that has occuffed, including the
tree location and cootdination, was invoiced under section 101 above and the only fee
incurted against this line item is out landscaping consulønÇ Rod Scaccalosi. If no
improvements to the Korean Church property are anticipated this item v¡ill not be
used.

Crediu $4,990.50

110 - Majauskas and Korean Chuch Cross Sections:
A numbet of ctoss sections were developed to determine tlre ptecise location of the
additional water line which paralleled the existing line to be left in place, maintain
ptoper clearances and determine if additiona,l ar.ea for NMWD easement would be
required. This wotk was occuring simultaneously with the work on the Gap closute
and difficult to separate and some of the time was posted against 101 Gap Closure,
above. The work should be complete and no additional fees should be incurred against
this item.

Crediu $5,628.

111 - Explore One Contract for Reaches A-D:
The first effort to combine the contracts was mede between the 30% and600/o
completion level of the ptoject plans. Analysis of cost and scheduling implications was
considered as well as differentiating between CT and NMWD responsibiJities. This
also ovedapped with wotk done undet 101-103 and 105 above and as a result just
slightly ovet half of the budget was used.

Credit $4,515

112 - Misc. Survey to Establish Precise Locations of Existing Facilities:
This budget was only pattly used. This will remain open to assist Dale S7hite with
eâsement at San Antonio Road.

No change.

113 - Potholing Existing Utilities:
This work was completed by Matk Thomas and Caltans and not requited.

Credit: $6,000

114 - Utility Pole Conflicts through 81:
The originat concept fot the 81 construction sequencing anticipated having the utility
poles temoved befote the watet line wotk began. This did not occur and effort to

\\¡:\-{D-NO\'\ \\T\a\{l l3 102\Cor\201 J-0+ t0 Rts Ntf\VD.doa



GSrñr STffi
Drew Mclntyre
North Marin \later District
,{,pril 10,2014
Page 4

coordinate with the AT&T tepresentatives on the placernent of the watedine pdor to
removal and the final location of the relocated poles and guys requfued significant
coordination to keep the ptoject on schedule.

The original budget for this item was exceeded and an additional fi243.50 of effott was

accrued against ttris itern.

Additional fi243.50 is requested to bring the budget in Lne with effot.

115 - Kastania Easements:
This item should remain open. The final disposition of the Kastania Pump Station
propercy is unknown. In the event SCWA transfers the property to NMWD, it is
unlikely additional fees will be incurred. However, if SCIøA continues to hold the
land, four easements v¡ill need to be suweyed, described and platted for execution by
SCTøÂ. This would require an additional effort of $2,456. The remaining budget for
the item is $256.00.

Additional fi2,200 is requested to cover the new easements should they be requfued.

116 - Consruction Adminisuation 81:
This wo¡k is on-going, aithough neadng completion. Cunently approximately $18,000
remains in the budget and it is not anticipated that this will be totally depleted. !Øe

suggest leaving $4,500 in the item to complete the As Built coordination and credit the
remainde¡.

Credit fi73,734.50

117 - Explote Cost Allocation between Calttans and NMWD:
This was an on-going protracted effort to allocate costs fafuly between NMWD and
Caltrans. It required unanticipated effort and collaboration with Caltrans and the
Disttict. The effoft expended on this continued through the bidding process and

Utility 4greement. More recent efforts have been allocated to the Utility Agteement see

124 below.

Additionai $2,020.50 requested to bdng budget in line with effott.

118 - Add Altemate A, 30" Pipe to Bid Documents:
To fairly allocate the costs between Caltrans and NMWD, the decision was made to
develop a complete set of plans for the 30" pipe only without the AEEP. See

Addendum #3.

Credit $102

\\j:\.\D.NOY\\\?\4\.ltt3l02\Csr\201{'0r. l0 tur Ntrf\\'D.&s



GSW STffi
Dtew Mclntyte
North Marin'Water District
Apdl 10,2014
Page 5

Subconsultants:
Co¡pro - Corrosion Engineering: The original Corpro allocation for Reach B and
Reaches A,C/D was $15,000. The Corpro contract for upsizing 83 and Reaches A
andC/D was $19,800. This v¡as modified when the ptojects wete combined by $4,950
itJtly, 2013, but never fotm¡lized.

Additional $9,750 is requested to bdng budget in line v¡ith effort.

Reimbursables:
The original budget for reimbursables was $1,014. Through February 9, we have
incurred fi6,772.92 fot teimbursables. This was due to the significant nurnbets of
copies tequired to have the NMWD be the lead on the entire pipeline instead of having
it as part of the overall 83 highway ptoject. This also included the payrnent of fees to
the Regional Watet Boatd.

Additional $5,909 tequested to bring budget in line with effot.

The toal additional services fot the ptoject and the teimbutsables is $51,704.

NEW TASKS SINCE NOVEMBER 6, 2013

119 - Construction Administtation fot Reaches A-D, B-3 Ptoject:
See Addendum #3. This work has not yet started. However, NM!7D has asked for
CSWIST2 to add the CA wo¡k for Matk Thomas Company to this budget to cover the
changes to the highway. This incteased the budget by $22,000.

Additional fi22,000 is tequested to provide CA ñmds for the telocated highway

120 -Tree Removal Conúact;
As an accommodation to Caltrans and the ovetall project schedule, a separate üee
temoval contract was developed to meet the window of oppottunity to remove trees

before the nesting season. This wotk coveted trees v¡ithin the water line and por¡i/er

and telephone corddors. We had indicated that this wotk should be budgeted at

$25,000. Flowevet, through February 9, we have incured fi25,797.50 and have the
project punch list, coordination with agencies, and ptoject close-out temaining.

!üe suggest a total budget of fi28,297.50 to cover this cost,

121 -FCA modiñcations for B-1:
This will be ptovided at no cost to the District.

\\'r\,\I).s{O\'\ \\T\{\.t I 13102\Cor\201.1.0.1. t0 Rtt n* Ir\\'D.docr
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Dtew Mclntyre
Notth Marin Water Disttict
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722 - Modifications to the Line through Majauskas:

Dudng the bidding process, and to accommodate the Majauskas'tequest, the District
telocated the pipe westwardly to allow the Majauskas foom to plant ttees directly along
the new Calttans Right-of-Way. InJanuary, w€ had allowed $1,000 for the effort
required to re-do the plans for both the 30" alternate A as well as rJr'e 42" base bid,
however, the actual fees incured through February is $2,763.50.

The work has been completed and the effort through February 9 isfi2,763.50 for which
we are requesting additional fees.

1æ - SÏøPPP fot Ttee Removal Project:
In order to complete the wotk in the wintet fot the ftee temoval contract, a full SWPP
was tequired and an allowance fot storm inspections was generated.

The total budget for this is anticipated to be fi7,250. Th-tough Febmary 9,2074,fi2,299
has been used.

124 - Bíd Analysis and Utility Agteement:
The Bid analysis of the ptoposals teceived ftom the fout contractors and the Utility
Agteement between Calttans a¡rd NMWD tequired extensive review and
documentation to fairly allocate the financial responsibilities of the two agencies and
future obligations duting construction.

Through February 9,2074, this effort required $5,853. We have anticipated $1,800 in
additional effort.

We are requestìng fi7,653 fot this effort

125 - Âdditional \üüork to Relocate B-1 ßFI 42): Not Used

126 - Field Suwey, Box l,ocations and Subsequent Easements Prepatation and Consultation:
Task 1: Box Locations

Provide 20 houts of field suffey time to locate (39) at-gtound boxes, and valve covets
along the length of the pipe. The box locations will be based on the control which
Caltrans is using fot this segment of the work and will be surveyed within 0.1 feet.
Man ways will be opened by NM$ØD personnel and the srrrveyots will locate the actual
top of pipe.

Task 2: Base Map
Compile the field information into a base map which will depict the telationship of the
new data on the Caltrans and County R/W, as shown on the contract dtawings.

Task 3: Easements

\\,:\.{D-f.iov\\\?\{\{r r lr 02\Lì r\201"r"0+t0 Rcr s-il\\,D,ú¡s
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Ptovide support to NMWD n their discussions and negotiations with TA.M and
Calftans regatding modifications to the easements to satis4r NMWD's tequhements.

We are requesting an additional $12,380 to cover this work.

The toøl ,{dditional Fees tequested for the work identified since Novemb er 6,2013 is $80,344.

The attached table summa*izes the budget status and onr request that the project budget be
modified and incteased to cover our additional services and reflect the unused budgets
previously allocated to the work.

tù(/e appteciate 'vorking with you and NMWD and will continue to be responsive and
conscious of the project budgets, trytng to minimize NMWD exposrue.

Sincerely,

cs'ùø/sruBER-sTRoEH ENGINEERTNG GROUP, INC.

Al Cornwell
R.C.E. #27577

AGC:gmp

Enclosute

\\';\;\D-NO\'\\\T\{\1r 13102\Cor\201{.0.1- l0 tur Ntrf\\D.docs
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116,349.Ot

15,6s9.0C

132,044.OI

subtotals

qddenduñ No.4

comments

ssue Creditfor 58,762
requel additionãl funds

request êddit¡onal funds

ssuê Credit for 530,352
Ihis should have be

increased to a total of
584.400; request additionâl
¡unds

request âdditional funds

lssue Creditfor56.400
lssue Credit for S360

lssue credit for S4,991

lssue creorl 10r 55.Þzð

lssue credit for S4,515

lssue credit for S6.000

reouest edditiona¡ funds

request additional funds

lssue Cred¡t forS13,735

reouêst edditionel funds

Issue Credit forS102

request ãdditional funds

request add¡tionèl funds

request addit¡ona¡ funds

request addit¡onal funds

request additionaì funds

request additional funds

2.640.00

4.985.00

4f 364.11

r172:9'
461,68Ê

87.439.25

92.059.25

77.054.50

56,578.00

24.097.46

709.50

2.372.OO

944.00

r7,765.50

4,420.50

31,098.00

25,797.54

4,7L5.54

2,7æ.54

2,299.O4

5,853.00

0.0c

4.985_00

2,160.005,000.00

0.001

3,643.501 3,643.50

3.400.00

16,265.50

4,420.54

31,098.00

0.0c

2,763.54

7,250.@

7,653.@

0.0c

12,380.0C

6323.OC

599,928.00

2074
February

8¡lling
throughTotal ContÉct

Valu6 through
April 4,2014

47 36A.00

a7.439.25

17.054.50

84,578.00

24.498.00

0.00

2.640.OO

709.50

23'12.OO

9,750.00

11Þ,5ð9.UU

5,909.00

132,048.00

-4.762.OO

31.459.25

45.cø'9.25

-30.351.50

22,574.OO

7.338.00

-6,400.00

-360.0c

4,990.5C

-5,628.OC

-4,515.0C

-6,000.0c

2,2@.0C
-L3,734.5C

2,O20.50

-102.00

24,297.sO

2,763.50

7.2SO.OO

7.653.OO

12,380.00

Add Seruices

RequestAp¡il 4,

2074

1,014_0C

455,500.00

Total contêct
Value Nw. 6,

2074

56,130.0C

49,980.0C

47,010.0t
47,406.OC

62.000-00

17,160-00

6,400.@

3,000.00

5 700.00

8,000.00

9,500.00

5,000.00

6,000.o0

3,400.00

1.200.00

30.000.00

2.400.Ø

6,400

3,000

5,700

8.000

9,500

5.000

6,000

3,40C

7.20C

30.00c

2.40C

2I4,960

214,960

4.773L.02

Budget

lncreases

through
Nov, 6,

2034

42,000

77,160

7,074

236,540

lnitial
ContEct
Valus
(date)

56,130

49,980

47,ora
47,406

20,00c

x{p)

x{p)

x(p)

x(p)

Utility
Agre

ment 83

x(p)

xlol

xlo)

x

xtp)

Utility
Agrement

B1

x

Environmental Review (Reaches A-D)

Kâsbniè (Reach a)

B-3 {Reach B)

B-1 {Reãch Ê)

qdd allternâte sheets to reach B for 30" pipe

lReãch B)

free Removal bid documents and cærdinêtion
'Reâches I and c/D)
:CA Revision (no cost) {Reach E)

:hãnse to Maiauskès Line (Reach B)

;WPPP Mon¡toring forTree ContGct and SWPPP

oreÞaEtionlS1000) Reaches B and c/D)

úVork on Ut¡lity Agreement and B¡d anãlysis

lReaches A-D)
NOT USED

s tsutld ireld suryey ano relaled easeñenr

dork B1 (Reach E)

5UÞrotals

Cop¡es etc
fotal Project Fees (¡nclud¡ng consultanß)

Description

3ap Closurê (Reêch C/D)

Projed Management (Reèches A-E)

convert Reach A to stênd Alone (Reãch A)

Telemetv Une at Kêsania Pump {Reach A)

Lãnds€pe ât Koreân church (Reach C/D)

Alignment ãnd x sections at Korean and

Me¡åuskas (Reach C/D)

Explore one ortuo contÊcts for Reaches A-D

Misc Survey for lo€t¡ons and supplemenbl

desisn requ¡rements (Reaches A and 8)

Potholins exposed ut¡lit¡es (Reaches A-D)

UtiliW Poles alone B-1 ATT (Reach E)

Kastêniê Easemenß (Reach A)

consruct¡on Adm¡n¡stÉtion B-1 {Reach E)

Explore cost contribuítion for B-3 between

CãltËns and NMwD {Reach 8)

126

ìeimburs¿

101

702
103

104

105

:A5 1(106

Additonal Services Recap
:AS 2 107

:AS3 10t
:a54 10!

110

777

!!2
113

7r4

711

118

72C

721

122

123

124

125

Additonal Services Recap

Notes:
* Assume S1,750 per month for 16

months(Februðry, 2014through June 2015)
** Note Actual Feb- 9 bill¡ng will not exceed

authorized amount in Total contÉd Value

c¡lumn

Date Revised 4-10-14

PtinTed 4lL0/2o!4 2:53 PM





Item #1J
MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Subject:

Board of Directors Date: April 11,2014

Drew Mclntyre, Chief engineeþV\
Miller Pacific Engineering Group - Consulting Services Agreement
R:\NON JOB No TSSUES\Consultants\MPEG\FY12-13\Agmts-BOD Memos\MPEG FY13-14 genl servs contract agmt 4-15-14 BOD memo,doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the General Manager to execute a new General
Engineering Services agreement for Consulting
Geotechnical Services between NMWD and Miller Pacific
Engineering Group with a not-to-exceed limit of $60,000.

FINANCIAL IMPACT $60,000

Attached is an agreement for Miller Pacific Engineering Group (MPEG) to provide

continuing FY14 and FY15 outsourcing support. MPEG has a long and proven track record with

the District of providing high quality and responsive services at reasonable cost. To best meet

project demands, a General Engineering Services Agreement is desired with individual task

orders on a job-by-job basis.

A summation of contract billings for MPEG general engineering services (exclusive of

Recycled Water Facility & Pipeline services) for the last five years is provided as follows:

TABLE I

Contract lssuance Year Billing Year Total Billinqs

FY13
FY11
FYlO
FYO9
FYOs

FY12 & 13
FY11 & 12
FY10 &11

FYlO
FY08 & 09

$18,032
$30,1 1 I
$16,904
$19,052
$1 6,1 20

A cost breakdown for the $20,000 FY13 contract by task is summarized as follows

TABLE 2

Starting Contract Amount
Carryover balance from FY12 Contract

Amended Balance
Projects (billings to date)

Gallagher Well Pipeline
Misc. Backfill Testins

$3,1 e3

$23,1 93

<$9,900>
<$8,1 32>

Remaining Balance on Contract $5,1 61

The total billings under the FY12 contract are $18,032 leaving a balance of $5,161 on the

contract.

One of the first task orders to be funded through this Agreement will be for the Gallagher

Well Pipeline project construction phase geotechnical services (including compaction testing).

This first task order will be approximately $30,000. ln addition, a new task order will be issued

to MPEG for ongoing miscellaneous backfill testing in the amount of $7,500.



Miller Pacific Engineering Group Consulting Services FY13-14 Agreement BOD Memo
April 1 1,2014
Page2 of 2

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize the General Manager to execute a new General Engineering Services

agreement for Consulting Geotechnical Services between NMWD and Miller Pacific Engineering

Group with a not-to-exceed limit of $60,000.





To:

From

Subj:

Item #14

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

David L. Bentley, Auditor-Control

lnitial Review - FY15 & FY16 Ca
t:\ac\word\budget\1 s\cip rev¡ew ¡.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnitial Review and Provide Direction to Staff

F¡NANC¡AL tMpACT. None at this time - $19.3 million FY15 & $5.5 million FY16
Gross Expenditure Budget Proposed for Consideration

Attached for your initial review is the proposed Fiscal Year 2014-15 (FY15) and FY2015-

16 (FY16) Capital lmprovement Project (ClP) expenditure budgetfor consideration. As in prior

years, a comprehensive 2-year plan is presented, which includes the projects recommended for

Novato Water, Recycled Water, West Marin Water, and Oceana Marin Sewer. The

comprehensive plan is developed to verify that adequate staffing exists to accomplish the 39

budgeted projects planned for FY15. Future presentations will segregate the budget into

component parts for each of the individual enterprise funds.

Below is a summary identifying the significant projects ($500,000 or more) proposed to

be undertaken over the next two fiscal years. An explanation of each FY15 project is

incorporated into the detail listing attached.

Proiect FY15 FY16 I

Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project - Hwy 10'1 
1

$13,000,000 $2,000,000

Atherton Recoat & Mixing System (s n¡c) 2,200,000 0

Crest Pump Station Design/Construct 15,000 635,000

Recycled Water Expansion to Central Novato 2 0 500,000

Gallagher Pipeline 3

April 1 1, 2014

le

lmprovement Project Budget

1,386,000 0

Other Projects 2,710,000 2,515,000

Gross Project Outlay $19,31 1,000 $5,500,000

Less Loan/Grant Funding 1 (14,386.000) (2,500,000)

Net Project Outlay (internally funded) $4.925J00 I ssJeaJea_ 
r1

The proposed two-year combined total project outlay, net of outside funding, comes in at

1 The Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project is funded with a 3.5% Bank of Marin loan and Caltrans reimbursement.
'The RW Expansion to Central Area is funded by Federal and State Grants and SRF loans with debt service paid

" 
from Novato potable water FRC funds.

" The Gallagher Pipeline is 100% funded by a California Department of Public Health Prop 50 grant.



DLB Memo re lnitial Review of FY15 & FY16 Capital lmprovement Project Budget
April 11,2013
Page 2 of 2

$7.9 million, up $300,000 from the $7.6 million combined two-year budget adopted last year

The proposed FY15 CIP budget includes 39 projects, down from 40 approved for FY14.

Net Outlay

District
Proposed

FY15 & FY16
Adopted

FY14 & FY15
lncrease

(Decrease)

Novato Water
]J

$7,095,000 ì $6,763,000 i $332 000

led Water
I

325,000 I ....... " ".. " .,..... " 
1.0 o-.,. 

-o-9 P' -l
(75,000)

WM Water 370,00 o 1 sss,gqo 
i

15 000

OM Sewer
1

135,000 I 11 5,0-00 I

I

20,000 i

Total s7.e25.000 I

li
$7*633*00fI i $292*00It I

Novato Water's CIP expenditure plan, when viewed over the current fiscal year and the

next five years, averages $2.5 million annually in internally funded projects, which is the cap

approved by the Board in February 2013 in response to the updated 2012 Novato Water Master

Plan. However, as discussed previously, Novato Water's proposed CIP plan is front-loaded with

the $2.3 million Atherton Tank Recoating project, which pushes the average to $3.5 million over

the next two years, and which will require budgetary discipline to maintain a $2.5 million

average over the next five years.

An additional review of the Novato Water & Recycled Water CIP budgets is scheduled

for May 20, and a public hearing and approval of the Budgets is scheduled for June 17, 2014.

An additional review of the West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer CIP budgets is

scheduled for June 3, with a public hearing planned for June 24 in Point Reyes Station.

Expression of Board comments and concerns earlier in the process, rather than later, is

appreciated.



$2,855

$2,855

19 Budget

$o

18 Budget

$1,500

92,525

$4,025

1 7 Budget

$5,350

$2,934

$8,284

16 Budget

$2,500

$3,000

$5,500

1 5 Budget

$14,386

$4,925

$19,311

14 ela

92,270

s2,173

$4,443

13

$7,308

$1,429

$8,736

12

$7,203

$1,317

$8,520

11

$1,606

$2,037

$3,643

10

$28

$1,891

$1,919

¡DebUGrant Financed

llnternally Financed

Total

4t9t14 t\ac\excel\budget\1 5\I5 yr c¡p fy1 s.xlsxlchart data

Thousands

$20,000

N MW D C a p ita I I m p rov e m e nt P roi ect Ex p e n d itu res
All Districts Combined

$18,000

$16,000

$14,000

$12,000

$10,000

$8,000

$6,000

$4,000

$2,000

$o



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

2-Year Capital Improvement Proiect Plan

1. PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

a. Main/Pipeline Replacements
1 STP Trans Line Repair (13,200')

b.

2 So Novato Blvd - Rowland to Sunset (12"ct@1,00( $350,000

3 Shields Ln 6" Cast lron (0'@l,lzo')

4 Other Pipeline Replacements 160* years old)

Main/Pipeline Additions

Zone A Pressure lmprovements - lgnacio Area

2 San Mateo 24" lnleUOutlet

Polybutylene Service Line Replacements

Pacheco Valle (+z services)

2 Replace PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 srvcs)

3 Other PB Replacements (60 services)

Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP

Other Relocations

Aqueduct Replacements/Enhancements lttote t¡
1 Energy Efficiency Proj-Hwy 101 Widening

4110114

t:\ac\excel\budget\1 5\[5 yr cip fy1 5 xisx]5 yr ip

FY15 FY16 FY15 Project Description

$100,000 Assess condition & spot repair 18-inch concrete cylinder pipe

2nd year of 2-year project to replace Cast lron Pipe at the end of its
useful life.

$150,000 Replace Cast lron Pipe at end of its useful life

$300,000

$600,000 $300,000

$200,000 Upsize Bel Marin Keys lntertie to enhance water delivery to the south
servrce area

$30,000 $440,000 1st year of a multiyear project to install a new 24-inch, 2,000 foot long
pipeline from San Mateo Tank to the end of Palermo Court to improve
f re flow in the northern most paft of Zone 2

$230,000 $440,000

$125,000 Ongoing Polybutylene service line replacement program

$90,000 $90,000 PB service replacement coordinated with City Overlay Program

$250,000

$215,000 $340,000

$80,000 $80,000 Relocate facilities for as yet unidentifìed City/County Projects

$80,000 $80,000

$13,000,000 $2,000,000 North MarinAqueduct upsizing/relocation

d

ê

$14 000 $3,160,0001

1of 6



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

2-Year Capital lmprovement Proiect PIan

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
RTU Upgrades
Flushing Taps at Dead-Ends (12 biennially)

DCA Repair/Replace (1 atyr)

Anode lnstallations (1 5o/yr)

Radio Telemetry

I naccurate Meter Replacement

Backflow Device Upgrade - BMK (15 srvcs/yr)

Tank Access Hatch/LevelAlarms (10 sites)

i. Sampling Stations (6 biennially)

j. Facilities Security Enhancements

k. Emergency Generator Connections

l. Automate Zone Valve (slowdown ct)

FY15 FY16 FY15 Project Description

$10,000 $10,000 Replace aging and unreliable RTUs

$50,000

$150,000 $150,000 Detector Check Assembly replacements

$30,000 $30,000 Place anodes on copper laterals for corrosion proteciion

$25,000 $25,000 lnstall radio transmitters to replace leased lines

o

b

d
ã

l.

4t10t14

t:\ac\excel\budget\'1 5\[5 yr c¡p fy1 5 xlsx]5 yr ip

$10,000 Replacement of inaccurate meters based on recommendations in the
FY06 meter testing studv.
Replace DCVs with above grade RPP devices

$35,000 Enhance tank security by adding remote alarm notifìcation of
unauthorized entry.
lnstall the final 7 water quality sampling stations. There are now 64
permanent stations installed & only 7 more locations to go.

Ongoing program. This year will focus on installation of a security
camera monitoring system in the Corp Yard.
lnstallation of quick plug connections at Winged Foot, Woodland
Heiqhts and Ponti Pump Stations

$50,000

g

h

$10,000

$30,000
$35,000

$50,000

$25,000

$15,000

$380,000 $360,000

2o'f6



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

2-Year Capital Improvement Project Plan

3. BUILDING, YARD, STP. IMPROVEMENTS

Administration Building

Admin Office/Labl/ard Remodel Plan
Electronic Document Manaqement Svstem
Office HVAC

4 Office Emergency Generator

t:\ac\excel\budget\1"U t ",r r,. Ílll]I

FY15 FY16 FY15 Project Description

Move from conceptual to preliminary design phase

System is 50 years old and no longer provides efficient heating and
cooling. Estimated pay back is less than '1 0 years.

Customer service, lab and operations equipment requires an
emergency power supply when primary power service is interrupted.

$350,000 $r 50,000

$30,000
$0 $30,000

$50,000 To allow flushing the Novato Blvd main from Sutro back to STP with
Zone 2water.

$50,000

$150,000 Needed to provide emergency power to the chlorine gas scrubber
system in the event primary power service is interrupted.
Recommended by Marin County Health and Safety Department.

$75,000
$200,000 $125,000

$550,000 $305,000

a

$50 000

$200,000

$150,000

$150,000

b.

c.

Corp. YardfuVarehouse/Construction Office

Other Yard I mprovements

Stafford Treatment Plant
Start-up Flushing Connection

2 Dam Concrete Apron Repair
3 STP Emergency Power Generator

4 Other Treatment Plant lmprovements

3 of 6



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

2-Year Capital Improvement Project PIan

4. STORAGE TANKS/PUMP STATIONS

a. Clear Tank Sites
1 Woodland Hts (12o,ooo sal,1974)

FY15 FY16 FY15 Project Description

$60,000

$0 $60,000

$2,200,000 Tank recoat & chlorine mixing system

$2,200,000 $0

$90,000 Move motor controls above-ground

$100,000 Chlorine Mixing System to enhance water quality

$15,000 $635,000 Design phase of Crest zone pump station

$1 15,000

$2,405,000 $810,000

$100,000

$25,000

$125.000 $700,000

t:\ac\excel\budgei\1"* ,, ",, ,, , Ílr0l] I

Tank Rehabilitation
Atherton Recoat & Mixing System (s vtc)

Lynwood RecoaVSeismic Upgrade (0.ssMG & o.sMG)

3 San Mateo Recoat (5 MG)

Lynwood P.S. Motor Control Center

d Sunset Tank Cl2 Mixing System

e. Crest P.S. (Design/Construct)

Davies PS Upgrade

5. RECYCLED WATER
a- NBWRA Grant Program Administration

Expansion to South Area

Expansion to Central Area lruote z¡

Deer lsland Wet Well Drain

e. Other Recycled Water Expenditures

$100,000 Continued support of North Bay Water Reuse Authority to
obtain/adminlster recycled water project Federal/State grants for the
central Novato project.

$500,000
The wet well floods when Novato Sanitary District is discharging to the
disposal fields and not the bay. This drain will re-direct the overflow
water into an adjacent storage pond.

$100,000

b

I

t

b.

d

4of6



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

2-Year Capital lmprovement Project PIan

6. WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM
a. Olema PS Flood Protection & RTU Upgrade $75,000

b. Emergency Generator Connections $15,000
c. Gallagher Pipeline (Note 4) $1,386,000

d. THM Spray Systems (3 tanks) $10,000

Upsize 4" Pipe from Bear Valley Tanks (8"@e00') $120,000

Abandon Downey Well $50,000

Replace PRE Tank #4A Qs,ooo sal w/82,000 gal Tank)

PB Replace in Sync w/ County Paving

4110114

t:\ac\excel\budget\15\15 yr cip fyl5 xlsxlS yr ip

FYI5 FY16 FY15 Project Description

Modify existing structure to prevent flooding of facilities by Olema
Creek.
For PRE & Olema Pump Stations

lnstallation of 5,200 feet of 'l 2-inch pipeline along Pt. Reyes-Petaluma
Road between NMWD's Gallagher Well and the existing transmission
line near Downer Well. This project will help address periodic salinity
intrusion at the Coast Guard wells.

Replace the temporary aeration systems at lnverness Park and PRE 2
tank sites with a permanent system to reduce formation of
Trihalomethane (THMs). The temporary systems have proven
effective and need to be made permanent.

Upsize 900 feet of 4-inch pipeline to 8-inch (from Bear Valley Tanks to
Fox Dr/McCarthy Ct) to improved water delivery and fire flow to the
Bear Valley Service Area
The Downey Well is no longer functional and needs to be properly
sealed & abandoned per Marin Co & State standards.

$50,000
$50,000

$1 ,656,000 $100,000

$15,000

$15,000

$40,000

$70 000 $65 000

ô

g

h

7. OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
a. Infiltration Repair

b. Pond Power Relocation

c. Disposal Field Fencing Upgrade

$15,000 Ongoing work to identify and repair collection pipelines to prevent
ralnwater from leakinq into the system
Estero Mutual (Oceana Marin Water Company) has requested that
NMWD's power feed be removed from their service box.

Rebuild the fence that has been damaged by cattle. Project also

lncludgg ¡ep!999 ment lve boxes

5 of 6



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

2-Year Capital Improvement Project Plan

SUMMARY - GROSS PROJECT OUTLAY
GROSS PROJECT OUTLAY

Novato Water
Recycled Water

West Marin Water
Oceana Marin Sewer

GROSS PROJECT OUTLAY

8. LESS FUNDED BY LOANS/GRANTS/OTHER

a. AEEP - Hwy 101 Widening (Note 1)

b. RW Sys Expansion (Note 2)

c. Gallagher Pipeline (Note 4)

SUMMARY - NET PROJECT OUTLAY
NET PROJECT OUTLAY

Novato Water
Recycled Water

West Marin Water
Oceana Marin Sewer

NET (INTERNALLY FUNDED) PROJECT OUTLAY

Total Number of Projects 39

FY15 FY16 FYlS Project Description

$19,311,000 $5,500,000:
$17,460,000 $4,635,000

$125,000 $700,000
$1,656,000 $100,000

$70,000 $65,000
$19.31 1 .000 $5.500.000

($13,000,000) ($2,000,000) Funded by Bank Loan & Caltrans Reimbursement

$0 ($500,000) Funded bY 1% SRF Loan

($1,386,000) $0 100% Funded from Prop 50 Grant

($14,386,000) ($2

$4,925,000 $3,000,000

$4,460,000 $2,635,000

t:\ac\excel\budget\1"O 
" "', "t, 

Ílr0ll I

$125,000
$270,000

$70,000

$200,000
$100,000

$65,000

$4 925 000 $3 000 000

27

6 of 6





II'IEMORANDUI1II

Item ffis

April 1 1,2014To: Board of Directors

From: David L. Bentley, Auditor-Co ntrorcr 
þ

Subj: lnitial Review- ProposedFYl4llS þquipment Budget
t:\ac\word\budget\14\squ¡p budget lS review l.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnitial Review and Provide Direction to Statf

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time - $198,000 proposed for June 17 Public Hearing

Presented for your initial review is the proposed FY 2014115 (FY15) Equipment Budget.

The proposed budget totals $198,000, down 14o/ofrom the adopted FY14 Equipment Budget

($29t,000). FY14 estimated actual expenditures are forecast at $205,000. The 5-Year Financial

Plan includes $260,000 for FY15 Equipment purchases.

Purchase of rolling stock (two hybrid cars, a forklift for the yard, and a used 4x4 loader)

comprise 90% of the Proposed FY15 Equipment Budget.

Accompanying this memo is a chart showing ten years of equipment purchases history

(Attachment A). Following the Proposed Equipment Expenditure Budget is the S-Year Vehicle

and Equipment Replacement Plan (Attachment B).

An additional Equipment Budget review is scheduled for May 20, and a public hearing

and approval of the Equipment Budget is scheduled for June 17,2014. Expression of Board

comments and concerns earlier in the process, rather than later, is appreciated.



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Proposed
Eq u i p ment Expen ditu res
Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget

12102.O1.OO

12102.01 .OO

12102.01.00

12104.01.00

12104.O1.OO

12104 01 00

4t9t14

t:\ac\excel\budget\1 5\equipl S.xlsxlequip'l 5

I CONSTRUCTION
a. 2" Mole for Services

b. Leak Calculator with 3 Data Loggers

c. Hydraulic Power Grit Utility Saw

2 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. 4x4 Loader (Used)
b. Forklift
c' Hybrid Car

1210401.00 d. Hybrid car

Approved Description

$6,000 Replacement piercing tool (mole), hose, oiler and launch pad
used to install or replace service lines without trenching.

$12,000 Used to locate or triangulate small leaks in mains and services
where the water does not surface.

$5,000 For cutting large diameter pipe in close quarters, and replaces
use of gas powered saw in conflned space.

$23,000

Replace'93 Case 4x4 Loader. Will be auctioned

Replace'89 Kalmar. Will be auctioned

Replace'05 Honda Civic Hybrid with 64K miles due to cost of
battery replacement and electronic control repairs. Will be
auctioned.

Replace '05 Honda Civic Hybrid with 46K miles due to cost of
battery replacement and electronic control repairs. Will be
auctioned.

Adopted
Budget
2013t14

$56,000

$175,000

Estimated
Actual

2013t14

$44,000

$161 ,000

$89,000
$30,000
$28,000

$28,000

$175,000

Total $198,000

Proposed
Budget
2014t15RECAP

Equipment

Rolling Stock

$23,000

$175,000
$231,000 $2o5,ooo $198,000



$0

$175,000

$23,000

$198,000

15
Budget

$35,000

$205,000e

14 ela

$9,000

$161 ,000

13

$0

$146,305

s43,764

$190,069

5-Year Financial Plan

Forecast = S260,000

953,724

$190,127

12

$33,346

$103,057

11

$36,375

$16,671

$114,612

$167,658

$35,082

$223,703

'10

$25,925

$162,696

09

$15,761

$168,055

s47,520

$231,336

n

$71,888

$303,641

08

$46,572

$1 85,1 81

07

$110,726

$154,281

$41,238

$306,245

06

$74,666

$131,185

s97,287

$303,1 38

1 0 Year Average
lnfo Systems
Rolling Stock
Other Equipment

Total

$40,000
$139,000

000$60
,000

s162,234

$56,715

$266,599

05

$47,650trlnfo Systems

rRolling Stock

@Other Equipment

Total

4t9t14 t\ac\exæl\budget\1 5\[equipl 5.xlsx]equipl 5

Hístory of Equipment Purchases

$350,000

$300,000

$250,000

$200,000
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5-Year Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Plan Updated 411112014

FY14115 New ltem Description Replacement ltem Description Cost
1 Forklift #90281989 Kalmar $30,000
2 4X4 Loader (used) #62 1993 Case 4X4 Loader $89,000
3 Hybrid Car w/Radio #56 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid $28,000
4 Hybrid car w/Radio #57 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid $28,000

Total $175,000

Note: 56 57 62 & 9028 will be auctioned. Hondas re due to the cost of batte &

FY15/16 New ltem Description Replacement ltem Description Cost
1 Backhoe 4X4 Diesel #77 2004 John Deere 310 SG $1 15,000
2 ll2Ton 4X4, alt. fuel w/Tool Box & Radio #501 2006 Chevy Colorado 4X4 $25,000
3 3/4 Ton 4x4 pickup, Alt fuel, Radio, Light Bar #506 2008 Ford F250 4x4,bad

fuel/enqine $30,000
Total $170,000

Note:77 501, & 505 will be auctioned

FY16t17 New ltem Description Replacement ltem Description Cost
1 5 Yard Diesel Dump truck #44 2002 lnternational Dump $120,000
2 1l2f on 4x4 Pickup w/Tool Box and Radio #47 2002 Chevy 4x4 $28,000
3 1l2Ton Pickup w/Tool Box and Radio #53 2004 Chevy Pick Up $25,000

Total $173,000

Note: 57, 55 & 53 will be auctioned

FY17l18 New ltem Description Replacement ltem Description Cost
1 5 Yard Diesel Dump truck #521996 Ford Super Duty Dump $125,000
2 3/4 Ton 4x4 Service Body & Radio #507 2008 F350 w/Service Body $45,000

Total $170,000

Note: Truck 19 & 52 be auctioned

FYlB/19 New ltem Description Replacement ltem Description Cost
1 112Ton 4x4 with camper shell, Radio #49 2003 Dodqe Dakota 4X4 $35,000
2 Hybrid 4X4 SUV #47 2002 Chevy 4x4 $65,000
3 Hybrid Car W Radio #510 2009 Toyota Prius $30,000
4 1l2ton V6 2WD w/Tool Box and Radio #41 2001 Dodge Ram $25,000

Total $155,000

Note: 32 41 40 5'10 will be auctioned

electronic control rrs.

x:\fleet\equipment replacement plan\[5 year plan.xls]syr 14-1 5
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Item #16

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors 
..-. - ^n April 1 1,2014

From: Drew Mclntyre, Chief Engineer.)ì\\

Subject: Water Advisory Committee Meeting - April 7 ,2014
t:\gm\scwa\wac agonda and minutes\2o14\wac dm notes 040714.doc

RECOMMENDEDAGTION: lnformationOnly

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

Agenda and items included in your April 1 ,2014 Board Packet

3. Recap from the February 3,2014 WACiTAC Meeting and Approval of Minutes

Minutes were approved as mailed.

4. Recap from the March 3,2014 TAC Meeting and Approval of Minutes

The TAC meeting minutes were approved as mailed.

5. Water Supply Coordination Council

SCWA Board member Efren Carrillo, who is also a member of the Water Supply

Coordination Council (WSCC), distributed a summary of the March 27, 2014 and

commented that the meetings between Agency staff and WAC/TAC members have been

productive to date.

6. Water Supply Conditions and Temporary Urgency Change Order

Pam Jeane advised the WAC that current respective storage levels in Lake Mendocino

and Lake Sonoma are 52o/o and760/o. She stated that inflows into both reservoirs peaked

approximately a week ago and have been declining significantly since that time. Ms. Jeane

also stated that Lake Pillsbury is now spilling and PG&E has begun diverting waterthrough

the Potter Valley Project (which ultimately flows into Lake Mendocino). A reminder was

provided of the series of the town hall meetings scheduled throughout the month of April

(see attached). The purpose of the town hall meetings is to provide interested padies the

opportunity to learn about current drought and water supply conditions as well as local

water conservation rebate programs. The first meeting was held in Sonoma Valley on

March 31't and there are four additional meetings scheduled towards the latter part of April.

7. Approve FY 2014115 SCWA Budget

Lynn Rosselli with SCWA reviewed the proposed budget and mentioned that the

overall rate increase has been dampened through use of $6.6M in reserve funds. The

proposed budget also takes into account a reduction in estimated water sales from

51,0004F to 46,0004F.



I

The proposed budget was unanimously approved by the WAC and will be taken to the

SCWA Board of Directors for their approval on April 22nd.

Accept SCWA Water Shortage Allocation Methodology Update

David Guhin, City of Santa Rosa, referred to Chris DeGabriele, TAC Chairman's cover

memo, and stated that TAC members have been working on the Allocation Methodology

since 201 2. He reiterated that the Allocation Methodology would be approved for a period

of 7 months with an automatic extension through June 2016, with the understanding that in

the interim, the City of Petaluma's concerns would be investigated further.

The Allocation Methodology was unanimously approved by the WAC consistent with

the TAC recommendation.

9. Biological Opinion Status Update

Pam Jeane advised the WAC that discussions with the Army Corps of Engineers

regarding Dry Creek funding continues to look positive. She also stated that since the

inflatable dam was up much longer over this last winter season that they were able obtain a

more accurate fish count. To date they have recorded over 3,000 Chinook and

approximately 200 Coho Salmon swimming upriver. She also stated that bids will be open

for the Fish Ladder construction project on April 29th'

Efren Carrillo also mentioned that there have been discussions with stakeholders in the

upper Russian River region regarding expansion of some of SCWA's water conservation

programs into the upper reach communities. This effort includes possible lntegrated

Regional Water Management Plan (IRWP) grant funding. lt was recommended that an

agenda item be placed for the May WAC meeting to support this effod.

10. lntegrated Regional Water Management Plan(s) Update

Jake Mackenzie, Chair of the North Coast Resource Partnership, summarized the

expedited drought grant funding relief program that is being discussed as part of IRWMP

funding. lt is anticipated that expedited drought grant funds could be available as soon as

September 2Q14 and the North Coast IRWMP is currently having a discussion on which

programs to submit for possible funding.

Brad Shenruood also reported similar comments related to activities with the North Bay

IRWMP (which includes the southern part of Sonoma County as well as Marin County).



Sonoma Counfy \tater Agency
Press Release

For Imrnediate Release
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CONTÄCT:
Blad Sherwood
Community & Govemmental Affairs Manager
107.s47 .1927 (office)
107.322.8192 (Cell)
sherwood@scwa.ca.gov

Drought Town Hall Meetings Scheduled

(Santa Rosa, CA) Sonoma county residents, agriculture and businesses are encouraged to

attend one of four upcoming drought town hall meetings scheduled this month to leam about the

drought, receive an update on water supply conditions and hear from local organizations about

water conservation rebate programs. A similar meeting was held in Sonoma Valley on March
3 1 . Several dry years combined with the driest year of record in 20 1 3 have culminated in
drought conditions across the region. The meetings are co*hosted by the Sonoma County Water

Agency, Sonoma Resource Conservation District, County of Sonoma, City of Cloverdale, City of
Healdsburg, members of the Sonoma-Marin Saving Water Partnership, including the City of
Santa Rosa, City of Rohnert Park, City of Petaluma, and the Town of 'Windsor. Meeting
participants can expect to meet water supply, conservation and regulatory officials to discuss the

drought and ongoing efforts to provide lelief to our community. Informational tables will
provide conservation materials, such as water wise gardening brochures, applications for water

use efficiency rebate programs and much more.

"Despite the rain, our region still faces a drought due to the lack of rainfall over the past several

years," said Water Agency General Manager Grant Davis. "'We encoulage all residents,

businesses and the agricultural community to atlend a town hall meeting closest to you to learn

more about the drought and how to beat it. Local agencies will be at each meeting to provide
critical drought relief assistance and conservation rebate progtam information. There are tools
available to help our community beat this drought that will be made available at these meetings."

While the recent rain has helped increase storage levels in local teservoirs, Lake Mendocino
remains below 50o/o of water supply capacity and Lake Sonoma's water supply capacity is

holding steady at around 74%o;bothwell below average storage levels for this time of the year

Below is current rainfall data to date:



Ukiah legion (July to March 30):
Average (1894-2013) 33.3"
Curuent year 13.9" which is 4l.lYo of average

Santa Rosa (July to March 30):
Average (19 52-2013) 27 .8"
Current Year: 15.7" whichis 56.4Yo of average

Below is a listins of e town hall meetinss:

Date:'Wednesday, April 23
Time: 6:00 pm - 8:00 pm
Location: Santa Rosa Finley Center, 2060 W College Ave, Santa Rosa

Date:'Wednesday, ApÅl 23

Time: 6:00 pm - 8:00 pm
Location: City of Rohlert Park Council Chambers, 130 Avram Avenue, Iìohnert Park

Date: Tuesday, April29
Time: 6:00 pm - 8:00 pm
Location: Town of Windsor Council Chambers, 9291 Old Redwood Hwy, Windsor

Date: 
'Wednesday, April 30

Time: 6:00 pm - 8:00 pm
Location: Lucchesi Community Center, 320 N. McDowell Blvd., Petaluma

For more information about the meetings, please visit www.sonomacoun4¡water.org or contact
Bracl Sherwood at 707-547-1927 or sherwood@scwa.ca.gov.

###

The Sonoma Counly Water Agency is working to secure our future by investing in our water
resources, communily and environmenl'. The Water Agency provides water supply, flood

protection and sanitation services for portions of Sonoma and Marin countÌes. Visit us on the

We b at www. s o no macountyw at er. or g.





Item #17
DISBURSEMENTS . DATED APRIL 3, 2014

Date Prepared'.411114

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance

with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, beinq a oart of the California Water District Law:

For

2

3

4

5

I 101 Office Products

Athens Administrators

Automation Direct

Backflow Distributors

Baker, Jack

Baker, Holly

Bay Area Barricade Service

Toner Cartridge

April Workers' Comp Admin Fee

Spare & Project Parts for RTU Upgrades

DCDA Bypass Freeze Bag

April Director's Fee ($4OO¡ & Attendance of
NBWRA Meeting with State Legislature on
3t12t14 ($2OO¡

Refund on Closed Account

$93.52

1,000.00

2,947.00

72.70

600.00

56.70

510.67

135.00

17.40

782.31

1,126.40

1,018.50

72,858.95

26,715,78

6,245.00

6

7 Spray Chalk (48-17 oz cans) ($10+¡ & Marking
Paint (84-17o2 cans) ($3tZ¡

8 San Jose Water FBO Baywork Annual Membership Fee Prorated for FY14

9 Bear Paw Magnetic Tools Payment of Discount Taken Erroneously on
Previous lnvoice

'10 Business Card ACWA 2014 Spring Conference (Bentley)
(516114 in Monterey) & Late Fee (To Be
Reimbursed)

11 Calif Public Health Services Large Water System Fees FY15 (711113-

12t31t13)

12 California State Disbursement Wage Assignment Order

13 CaIPERS Health Benefits April Health lnsurance Premium (Employees

ç52,176, Retires $10,734 & Employee
Contribution $9,949)

14 Caltrans December - January 2014 AEEP Betterments
(Progress Payment #5)

15 Century Group Precast Concrete Markers (19) for MSN 81

Utility Agreement

*Prepaid Page 1 of4 Disbursements - Dated April 3, 2014



Seo Pavable To For Amount

17

18

19

20

21 Golden Gate Petroleum

22 Grainger

16 Core Utilities

Cummings Trucking

Digital Prints & lmaging

Eveland, Wilma

Fraites, Rick

Hach

Harrington lndustrial Plastics

Harris and Associates

Hunter, Mary

Kaiser Foundation Health Plan

Lemos, Kerry

Lincoln Life

Maltby Electric

Marin Reprographics

McCloskey, Carmel

Consulting Services: February lT Suppott
($5,000¡, Program Modifications to PRTP RTU
($1,700) (Balance Remaining on Contract
($700), Lockbox Testing ($4SO¡ & lnstall
Accounting Server ($1,275)

Sand (64 yds) & Rock (64 yds)

Plans & Specs (12 Sets) (Aqueduct Relocation)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

April Director's Fee ($4OO¡ & North Bay
Watershed Association on 317114 ($200)

Gasoline ($3.83/gal) & Diesel ($3.87lgal)

Blast Cabinet Media ($eA¡, Absorbent Drain
Pads (2) ($10t), Battery Pack (2) ($32+¡,
Adjustable Hydrant Wrench ($at¡, 6-in-1 Tool
(2) & Hand Saw

Calibration Solution (STP)

2" Ball Valve

Pipeline lnspection Testing Services for MSN B-

1 Reach E Project (Balance Remaining on
Contract $42,412)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Pre-Employment Physical (Freeman)

Vision Reimbursement

Expense Reimb: Safety Boots

Deferred Compensation PPE 3131114

Childcare Reimbursement

Electrical Cord Connectors (54)

Bond Paper (4) (36" x 150')

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

9,125.00

5,569.87

1,555.17

134.92

600.00

4,000.71

694.23

149.94

287.67

3,970.50

100.00

65.00

180.53

147.95

12,508.74

416.66

118.61

82.63

50.00

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

*Prepaid Page 2 of 4 Disbursements - Dated April 3, 20'14



r

35

36

37

38

39

Medora

Mutual of Omaha April Group Life lnsurance Premium

Nationwide Retirement Solution Deferred Compensation PPE 3131114

McMaster-Carr Supply

Pace Supply

Pappas, Warren

Petterle, Stephen

PG&E

Ridge, Russell

Robins, Joan

Rodoni, Dennis

Schoonover, John

Sebastopol Bearing & Hydraulic

Strahm Communications

Streakwave Wireless

TEE VAX

Thompson, Andrew

T&TValve&lnstrument

US Postal Service

Tank lntrusion Alarm Wires (2) ($128) &
Conduit Adaptors (2) (STP)

Recurring Maintenance on SolarBee Units @
Stafford Lake

Silent Check Valves (2) ($235), Ðouble Check
Detector ($1,692), lnsulated Bypass Blanket
($5zS¡, Meter Stops (87) ($3,903) & Couplings
(2) ($102)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

April Director's Fee

Replacement Payment for December "Check
Lost in Mail"

West Marin "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

April Director's Fee ($4OO¡ & TAC Meeting in
Santa Rosa on 313114 ($200)

April Director's Fee Less Deferred

Axle Spring & Bolts ('07 Big Tex Trailer)

Postage for Novato Rate lncrease Letter

RTU Radio Equipment

Replacement Washing Machine for Shop

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Valve Replacement Parts (STP)

Postage for Postal Meter

152.00

8,692.00

677.62

1,025.00

6,455.96

100.00

400 00

21,091.50

98.00

100.00

600.00

350.00

113.71

3,019.68

91 3.1 3

848.20

100.00

856.88

1,000.00

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

*Prepaid Page 3 of 4 Disbursements - Dated April 3, 2014



Seo Pavable To For Amount

54

55

Verizon California

Verizon Wireless

Telephone Charges: Leased Lines, DSL Line &
Phone Book Listing

February CIMIS Station Data Transfer Fee

"-o 
I+

Date

363.22

25.78
$200,920.74TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $200,920.74 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

/
Auditor-Controller Date

AJ,x Ð
General Manager

*Prepaid Page 4 of 4 Disbursements - Dated April 3, 2014



NORTH MARIN WATER DTSTRICT
CHECK REQUEST

Pnvre De¡¡¡¡ts Roootlt 3
P.O. Box 872 DATE

Y's

Pt. Reyes Station, CA 9495 o AMoUNT: $200.00

( S* &'* 3I'v

I attended the on

(runue on ue r OR (onre or MEETING)

and wish to be compensated as provide er the Board ComPen ion Policy.

SIGNATURE

CnRnce ro: 56001-01'1 1

nMAlLro PAYEE

n Holo FoR 

-_
X OrHen:
ACH PAYMENI

AppRoveo to Pnv sY

T:\FORMS\CHECK REOUEST FOR BOARO.OOC

REV. 021 3

DISPOSI oF CHECK @ il0qfH ¡{^il}l
wllt t Dlllttcf

00.00CKRQ

0510

RODO01

..4

$200.0056001-01-1 1

$200.00TOTAL



NORTH MARIN WATER D'STRICT
CHECK REQUEST

PavEe Rrcx FRnrres

50 Forrest Rd

Novato, CA 94947

DATE

AMOUNT: $200.00

I attended the on

(runue MEETTNG oR wonrsHoe) (onre on verrtruc)

and wish to be compensated as provided under Board Gompensation Policy.

SIGNATURE

C¡rnRce ro: 56001 -01-11

'"ôs taq 14,

DISPoSITIoN oF CHECK

X MAIL To PAYEE

¡ Holo FoR _
a OtHeR

AppnovEo ro PRv ev

T:\FoRMs\cHEcK REoUEST FoR BOARD,DOC

REV. 021 3

@*t*,*
M¡i{fi
Þßtnl(I

.!nvoiæfQK:r:,
,..:. r Re-q).;Datg.,r::

CKRQ $200.00

,N

GL Account

56001-0 1-11 $200.00

$200.00TOTAL
Rev,0510

FRAI02

t:\f ¡nance\accounts payable\lpaytag.xlslsheet f



DISBTJRSEMENTS - DATED APRIL 10, 2014

Date Prepared:418114

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance

with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

P/R*

EFT*

EFT*

EFT*

Employees

US Bank

State of California

US Bank

Alliquip Universal

Net Payroll PPE3131l14

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 3131114

State Taxes & SDI PPÊ3131114

March Credit Card Fees

4" Gate Valve ($2OZ¡ & 4" Coupling Set

Lab Testing (Novato Area)

March lnternet Service @ PRTP

Telephone Charges: Leased Lines

Quarterly Fire Alarm Monitoring Fee (STP)
(4t1t14-7 t1t14)

AEEP Caltrans Reimb 83 ($434), MMWD
lnterconnection Agreement ($1 17), OM Contract
Operator ($2ll), Prop 218 Letter ($SZ¡, Public

Records Act ($56), RW South Phl b Claims
($2,053), SCWA ($3SO¡, UHET District ($192) &

Misc ($345)

Chainsaw Gasket & Screws, Replacement
Backpack Blower & Hedge Trimmer ($942) &

Weed Wacker Parts ($120)

Electrical Conduit & Boxes for PRTP ($lS¡,
Bolts, Screws, Compression Sleeve, Tubing
(STP) & Parts for Chemical Pumps @ PRTP

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

T2 Certificate Renewal (Lucchesi) (21 14-21 15)

(Budget $0)

$114,790.09

49,236.56

8,572.74

1,757 .56

326.38

260.00

70.00

744.52

322.08

3,877.50

1,063.42

66.96

100.00

60.00

48,338.66

I

3

4

5

2 Alpha Analytical Labs

AT&T

AT&T

Bay Alarm

6 Bold & Polisner

7 Buck's Saw Service

B Building Supply Center

9 Byers, Mark

10 Calif Public Health Services

11 CaIPERS Retirement System Pension Contribution PPE 3131114

*Prepaid Page 1 of4 Disbursements - Dated April 10,2014



Seq Pavable To For Amount

12 CCI Pipeline Systems

13

Casing Spacers (3) ($168) & End Seals (2)
($7+¡

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Reference Cells (3) & Freight

Exp Reimb: March Mileage

Novato "Cash for Grass" Program

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Service on Deionization System (Lab)

Wire Marking Sleeves

Dump Truck Rental (211 1 I 1 4-31131 14)

Replacement Wide Carriage Copier (Eng)
(Budget $12,000)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Electrical Supplies ($420) & Wire (500')

Quik Mix ($2t t) (42 sacks) & Soil (1 yd)

Copy of Official Records (Feb) (5)

Exp Reimb: CA-NV AWWA Conference in
Anaheim, CA (3123-26). Mileage ($202),
Lodging ($500¡, Food ($130) & Parking ($36)

Novato "ïoilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Annual Dues (Young) (9nlM-8131115) (Budget
$0)

Disp Gloves (1,550) (STP)

Retractable Extension Cord (40')

241.58

100.00

775.75

196.00

400.00

100.00

235.35

93.17

1,362.50

10,006.20

300.00

467.33

246.56

46.00

936.72

200.00

50,00

59.00

350.76

80.64

22

24

26

14

15

16

17

1B

19

20

21

23

25

Chelini, Harry

Corrpro

DeGabriele, Chris

Dixon, Martha

Dominy, Ylva

Evoqua Water Technologies

Grainger

Hertz Equipment Rental

lntellaprint Systems

King, B. F.

Maltby Electric

Marin Landscape Materials

Marin County Recorder

Drew Mclntyre

Molloy, Marsha

Naser, Hattem

National Notary Association

New Pig

NoÉhern Tool & Equipment

27

28

29

30

31

*Prepaid Page 2 ol 4 Disbursements - Dated April 10,2014



Seq Pavable To For Amount

32 North Marin Auto Parts

North Bay Gas

Novato Builders Supply

Novato, City of

Novato Sanitary District

Nute Engineering

40 PG&E

Steel Pipe for Vacuum Trailer (20) (10' x 4")
($1aA¡, Oil Filters (6) ($33), Motor Oil (10 qts)
($4S¡, Wiper Blades (6) ($86), Trailer Plug,
Hydraulic Fluid (4 qts), Woodruff Key Stock,
Fuel Pump Assembly ($184) ('94 GMC C1500),
3/4" Fuel Lines (12) ($Zl), Mud Flap, Hose
Clamps (7), Rags (50 lbs) ($1OO¡, Stop Leak
Liquid (2), Spray Paint (2-12o2, 6-14 oz cans)
($+z¡, Tape & Sealant

Welding Wire (2 lbs) & March Cylinder Rental
($1 17)

Trim Board (4), Concrete (4 yds) ($6eO¡ & Flag
Tape (5 rolls)

Encroachment Permit ($1,282), Surcharge
($128) & lnspections ($t,794) (Shields Ln)

Recycled Water for December 2013

Engineering Services: Marin County Club
Recycled Water Service Study (Balance
Remaining on Contract $6,262)

Turn Signal Switch ($111), Filters (3) &
Transmission Fluid (3 gal) ($119)

33

34

35

36

37

944.39

138.29

705.60

3,204.00

5,282.56

2,400.00

485.85

452.09

19,985.04

413.54

100.00

335.60

179.97

38 PDM Steel Service Centers Steel Plate ('07 Trailer)

39 Peterson Trucks

41

42

43

Engineering Advance for Design of Windhaven
& 21 Gunn Drive Pump Station ($2,000) &
Power: Bldgs/Yard ($2,578), Rectifier/Controls
($30t), Pumping ($14,843), Treatment ($114) &
Other ($89)

Cafeteria Plan: Childcare Reimbursement &
Uninsured Medical Reimbursement

Sabaca, Joann M Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Sebastopol Bearing & Hydraulic Vacuum Hose (11'x 5") ($2+S¡, Relief Valve,
Filling Adaptor & Gas Powered Pressure
Washer ($85)

44 Sequoia Safety Supply Safety Vests (2) ($47), Respirator Masks (3),
Safety Glasses (12), lbuprofen (100) & Ear
Plugs (400) ($5e)

"Prepaid Page 3 of 4 Disbursements - Dated April 10, 2014



Seo Pavable To For Amount

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

Syar lndustries

USA BlueBook

Verizon California

Verizon Wireless

Welch, William

West Marin Citizen

53 Wine Countrv Balance

March Dental Expense

General Easement Access @ Golden Gate
Transit Crossing (41 1 I 1 4-3131 I I 5)

Asphalt (6 tons)

Check Valve (2) (STP)

Telephone Charges: Leased Lines

Cellular Charges: Data ($111), Airtime ($106) &
Replacement iPhones (2) ($94)

Novato "Cash for Grass" Program

Public Hearing Notice on Proposal to Adopt an
Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance in
West Marin (3127114)

Clean & Calibrate Balances
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

Shirrell Consulting Services

SMART Real Estate

5,768,00

692.39

672.78

158.08

830.00

310.71

225.00

72.00

499.00
$289,66E.92

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $289,688.92 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

\
ditor-Controller Date

eneral Manager

*Prepaid Page 4 ol 4 Disbursements - Dated April 10, 2014



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors April 11 ,2014

From: David L. Bentley, Auditor-Controller

Subj: Self-lnsured Workers' Comp - 3'd Quader Status Report
t:\ac\word\personnel\wc\self ins status 031 4.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: None

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Cumulative Cash Outlay Avoided of $370,005

The District returned to self-insuring its workers compensation liability effective July 1,

2011 , after the low-cost proposal for firsfdollar workers' compensation coverage increased 20%

over the prior year, to $159,331. The avoided-cost in FY12 and FY13 from self-insuring is

calculated at $189,074. The proposed premium forFY14 came in at an astounding 5311,7641.

Through the third quafter of FY14, the District incurred three minor claims. The District has

accumulated an additional $185,667 in avoided cost during the first three quafiers of FY14.

Cumulative cost avoided for the first eleven quarters of self-insurance total $362,590.

When the Reserve for Future Medical (which is money not yet paid out) is added, the total cash

outlay avoided to date is $370,005. This money is set-aside in a reserve for future claims.

Attached are charts showing a 1O-year history of annual claims cost (average $39,000

per year) and 1O-year history of claims frequency (average 10 claims per year).

FY'12 FY13
FY14 thru

3t31t14 Cumulative
$159,331 $170,574 $234,134 $564,039Premium Avoided

Self-lnsurance Gost
Med ical/l ndem nity Cost
Third Party Administration
Excess lnsurance Premium
Legal/Miscellaneous

Net Cost Avoided
Reserve for Future Medical

(15,733)
(12,000)
(45,546)

0

(19,941)
(12,000)
(47,762)

0

(2,510)
(9,000)

(36,957)
0

(38,184)
(33,000)

(130,265)
0

$86,052
5,496

$90,871
0

$185,667
1 ,919

$362,590
7,415

Total Cash Outlay Avoided $91,548 $90,871 $187,586 $370,005

tChartls lnsurance proposed $311,764. State Compensation lnsurance Fund proposed $317,190.



$2,510

$19,941$15,733

Self- lnsured +

$11,321

I$9,112

I

$116,081

$25,080

97,752
I

$6,948
I

$172,615

Average = $39,000

Self-lnsured

4nt2014
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Workers' Compensation Claims Filed - Frequency
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999 Rush Creek Ploce

P.O, Box l4ó
Novoto, CA 94948

PHONE

41s.897 .4133

tAx
4 1 5.892.8043

E IIIAI t
info@nmwd.com

WEB

www.nmwd.com

NOR.TH MARIN
WAIER DISTRICT

April4,2014

Re: Notice of Proposed Water Rate lncrease

Dear Customer:

The North Marin Water District's mission is to provide an adequate supply of safe,

reliable and high-quality water to our customers at reasonable cost consistent with

good conservãtion practices and minimum environmental impact. To fulfill this

mission, NMWD must generate revenue sufficient to cover its cost of operations.

Accordingly, the North Marin Water District is proposing an increase in the cost of

water wnic-n averages 5o/o for the typical Novato residential customer and 6% for the

typical non-residential customer, effective June 1 of 2014. This letter provides details

ón the need for the increase and information about the public hearing where public

comment will be taken prior to a vote on the proposed water rate increase by the

District Board of Directors.

REASON FOR THE PROPOSED INCREASE

Higher Water Cost: The Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA), w]ti9h provides

80õ/o of Novato's water supply, is increasing the rate it charges NMWD for Russian

River water by 3.4o/o effective July 1 , 2014. ln addition, chemical and power costs to

operate the Stafford Water Treatment Plant, which supplies 20o/o of Novato's water

supply, continue to rise.

Water System lnfrastructure Maintenance: The Novato water system includes 315

miles of pipeline, 37 million gallons of finished water storage distribute_d across 31

tanks, 2T pump stations, 16 pressure regulating stations, over 2,600 fire hydrants

and a muliitude of valves, all of which require ongoing maintenance. The District is

now G6 years old, and much of the pipeline installed in the early years is nearing the

end of iis useful life and must be replaced. To maintain our finished water storage

facilities, a $Z.S million project to recoat the S-million gallon Atherton Tank,

constructed in 1973, is planned for the coming fiscal year.

RATE COMPARISON

NMWD's rates remain reasonable. You can assess this for yourself by comparing

NMWD's cost of water service to 16 counterpart Bay Area water agencies (see

Urban Area Water Cost Comparison on page 5 of this letter). The comparison shows

that the typical cost of service for a Novato single-family residence remains below

the median of our counterpart agencies.

Dlnecrons: Jncr Bnrrn . Rrcr FnRlr¡s . Step¡EN Prrrentr . DrNNls RoooNl . JouN C. Sc¡ooNovrn

O¡rtcrns: CHnrs DrG¡,snrere, G.n"ål Monoger. Knrlr YouNc, Secretory. DAvlo L. BrNrLev, Auditor-Controller. Dnrw MclNrvre, Chief Engineer



Notice of Proposed Water Rate lncrease
April 4,2014
Page 2 of 5

P POSED RATE INCREAS

A table showing the existing rates and charges, and the amounts proposed, is
included on page 4 of this letter.

Residential Accounts: lt is proposed that a commodity rate increase of 6.5% for all
water used be implemented effective June 1, 2014 in the bimonthl
service charqe is orooosed. For the typícal Novato single-family residence, the
proposed increase in the total cost of water (commodity charge plus bimonthly
service charge) is 5%. The proposed increase would add $2.50 per month ($5 per
bimonthly bill) to the cost of water for a typical single-family residence beginning
June 2014.

You can determine the increase in your annual water cost based on your
personal water use over the past year from our website. Insert your NMWD
account number and the name on your account into the Rate-lncrease
Model on NMWD's website at http://www. nmwd.com/accountbalance.ph p.

Non-Residential Accounts (Gommercial, lnstitutional & lrrigation): lt is proposed
that an increase in the commodity rate of 6.5% for all water used be implemented
effective June 1 ,2014. No increase in the bimonthlv service charqe is proposed. The
increase for non-residential customers will vary based upon water use. ln Novato the
median non-residential account uses more water than the median residential
account, and would therefore see an increase in the total cost of water (commodity
charge plus bimonthly service charge) of 6%. You can determine the increase in your
annual water cost based on your consumption over the past year from our website.
lnsert your NMWD account number and name on your account into the Rate-
lncrease Model on NMWD's website at http://www.nmwd.com/accountbalance,php.

PROPOSED D HT SURCHARGE

At the Water Rate Hearing the Board will consider, as a separate matter, the
adoption of a Drought Surcharge to be implemented only in the event of mandatory
water use restrictions. MANDATORY WATER USE RESTRICTIONS ARE NOT
ANTICIPATED lN 2014. The NMWD Water Shortage Contingency Plan includes
provisions for a Drought Surcharge which would serve to mitigate both the revenue
loss incurred during a drought, as well as a possible surcharge required for summer
purchases of Russian River water during declared shortages pursuant to the
Restructured Agreement for Water Supply between SCWA and NMWD.

The proposed Drought Surcharge would be temporary and would be implemented
concurrent with mandatory water use restrictions, and terminated when mandatory
use restrictions end. The Drought Surcharge is proposed to be adopted in 2014 to
avoid delay when a drought occurs in a future year. The concern is that adding future
procedural delay to the District's existing 2-month billing cycle could defer the
intended conservation signal beyond the summer peak demand period.



Notice of Proposed Water Rate lncrease
April 4,2014
Page 3 of 5

The proposal is to add a surcharge of $1.00 per thousand gallons for all water use by

non-residential customers. For residential customers, the $1'00 per thousand gallon

surcharge would apply only to the amount of water use in excess of 300 gallons per

day.

Assuming the mandatory use restriction remained in effect for an entire year, for the

typical si"ngle-family residence, the proposed surcharge would add $16 annually to

t'he water-bill, assuming no reduction in water use. lf the typical single-family

residence reduced watei use by 20%, there would be no increase in cost. For the

median non-residential customer, the proposed surcharge would add $163 annually,

or, if the non-residential customer reduced water use by 20o/o, the increase in cost

would be $130 annuallY.

WATER RATE PUBLIC HEAR¡NG

A public hearing will be held at the NMWD office (999 Rush Creek Place,

Novato) at 7:30 þ.m. on Tuesday, May 20, 2014, to consider enactment of an

increas'e averaging 5% effective June 1, 2014, and, in addition, to consider
adoption of a Drought Surcharge to be implemented in the event a mandatory

reduction in water use in declared.

el-L 0,1^l-'^L

HOW TO PARTICIPATE

you are invited to present oral or written testimony on the proposal at the public

hearing. you have ihe right to protest this proposed rate increase. lf you do, you

must s-ubmit your protest-in writing, even if you plan to altend the public hearing. lf

written protests are submitted by a majority of the affected property owners or

customers, the proposed increases will not be imposed'

your written protest must be received prior to the close of the May 20, 2014 public

hearing. Writien protests must be signed by the property owner or customer of

record and must include a description of the parcel (parcel number) or NMWD

account number. Send or deliver written protests to:

District Secretary
North Marin Water District

PO Box 146
Novato, CA 94948

For more information visit NMWD's website at www.nmwd.com or call the District

Secretary al (415) 897-4133.

Sincerely,

Chris DeGabriele
General Manager

t:\ac\word\hearing notices\z0'1 4 novato water'docx



Notice of Proposed Water Rate lncrease
April4,2014
Page 4 of 5

NOVATO WATER CHARGES

A BI-MONTHLYSERVICE GHARGE OF:
STAN DARD 5/B-INC H METER
1 -inch residential meter for fire sprinklers
1 -inch meter
'1.5 -inch meter ..........
2 -inch meter ..........
3 -inch meter ..........
4 -inch meter ..........
6 -inch meter ..........
B -inch meter ..........

PLUS A QUANTITY RATE OF:
Res idential rate for each 1 ,000 qallons

First 615 gallons per day
616 - 1 ,845 gallons per day
Use in excess of 1,845 gallons per day

Rate for each 1.000 qallons for all other potable water accounts
Commercial, institutional & irrigation accounts - 1111-5131
Commercial, institutional & irrigation accounts - 611-10131

Rate for each 1,000 gallons for non-potable water
Recycled Water .........,
Raw (Untreated)Water

PLUS AN ELEVATION ZONE RATE FOR EACH 1,OOO GALLONS OF:
Zone Elevation

Existing
6t1t13

Proposed %
611114 lncrease

$30.00
$34.00
$60.00
$73.00

$114.00
$227.00
$364.00
$761.00

$1,134.00

$30.00
$34.00
$60.00
$73.00

$114.00
s227.00
$364.00
$761.00

$1,134.00

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
o.o%
o.o%
0.0%
0.0%
o.o%

6.5%
6.5%
6.5%

6.5%
6.5%

6s%
6.5%

6.5o/o

6.5%

$4.44
$4.77

Rate

$4.03
$6.42
911.17

Rate

$4.25
$6.84

$1 1.90

$4.73
$5.08

Rate
$0.00
$0.51
$1.64

$4.44
$1.83

$4.73
$1.95

A
B

C

0 through 60 feet.
60 feet - 200 feet.
200 feet +..........

Rate

$0.00
$0.48
$1.54

d. Hydrants or Temporary Service

Residential Accounts:Use in excess of 300 gallons perday.
Commercial, lnstitutional and lrrigation Accounts: All Use....

$6.31 $6.72 65%

DROUGHT SURCHARGE

ln the event a mandatory reduction in water use is triggered under the District's Water
Shortage Contingency Plan for the Greater Novato Area, a Drought Surcharge will be
implemented simultaneous with enactmentof the mandatorystage. The Drought
Surcharge will serve to mitigate the revenue loss resulting from a reduction in water
use, as well as the liquidated damages assessed bythe Sonoma CountyWater
Agencypursuantto the Water Shortage and Apportionment Provision of the
Restructured Agreem ent for Water Supply.
The Drought Surcharge s hall be a quantity charge for each 1 ,000 gallons as follows:

$1.00
$1.00



Notice of Proposed Water Rate lncrease
April 4,2014
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2t14114 2Ol4URBAN AREA
l:\ac\excelVâle survey\u¡banl4.xlsxllable

TOTAL ANNUAL WATER COST COMPAR'SON
Typicat Detached single-Family Home Annual consumption = 107,600 Gallons

$o $200 $4oo $600 $800 $1,000 $1,200

Mid-Peninsula WD

City of San Francisco

Marin Municipal WD

Contra Costa WD

City of Santa Rosa (1)

City of Vallejo

Alameda CWD

City of Sonoma (1)

San Jose Water Co

NORrH MARIN (1X2X3)

East Bay MUD (2)

City of Petaluma (1)

Ciiy of Napa

City of Rohnert Park (1)

Valley of the Moon ('l)

Town of Windsor (1)

City of Cotati (1)

LEGEND
'ffiService Commodity

So noma County Water Agency Prime Contractor.
Based on weighted average cornrnodity charge - all zo

3) Exclud es West l\4arin rates an d charges

$r,048

I

3

$845

$745

$704

$695

$682

$677

$667

$658

$643

$543

$st

$49e

$493

$570

I

$557

I

$656

ffi

ffi



NOR.TH MARIhI

WATËR DISTRICÏ
999 Rush Creek Ploce / Poil Oflice Box I ¿ó
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â ouowork

BAYWORK's Workshop on
Wheels: A New Approach to
Technical Training
By Cl-reryl Davis

¡ft ue oi thc' gleatest cltallc'rtges itrcing water alrd wastc'waler trcat-

t lnlerrt operators toclay is that the facilities, techrrologies, cqtrìp-

V ,,,"r,t arld rcprlntioní they rvork rvith are in n state of contirrilotts

change, Expeliericecl o¡rcrrriets nìa1r þ.- fully qualifíccl yct utrprcparctl to
rlaintain trncl conrplete" familial tasks such as clisinfecliorr in a difli¡telrt
rval'or-comflc'te trrrlircly ncr.r, tnsks as r.rtilities nrc¡ve intcl rterv areas sttch

as recycled water arrcl \ ¡ârìte*to-enel:gy conversion.
llAY\ /OIEK is a consortium of Bal, Arca rtater ancl wastc\\,tìter tltilitics

wolkirrg togetlrer irr lhe a¡e a ol wot'kfor:ce leliabiliti,, C)ur h'airring and ocl-

ucalion philosoph), is to pacl<age trainirrE¡ ìn a for:l¡ tha t is ap¡:ealìn¡,; to tìrr:

audierrce we vvant to Leaclr, Wc'srt¡rplornent tlris conrr¡itnrcttt by c'ncotrr-

agirrg adrlitional cclnnrnnisaLiorr ¿rncl infornration-shauing anrcrrtg pcople

¡rerforurin¡3 urjssion-clitical jolrs in tl're watc'r inclttstr¡r. Ctlnrbinirrg tlrese

o 1)

'..1
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.:;
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ôouywork
BAYWORK's Workshop on
Wheels: A New Approach to
Technical Training
By Clreryl Davis

.A lie oi ilìe gr'eatest clrallenges facing watet'a¡ld wastr"tvatel tleat-

f I ur.',rt olrciat.rrs toclay is ÈLat the îacilities, techrrologic's, cquip'
V nlcut arrd reg¡rlations tlrey wor:k rvith are ilt a siate ol contiuitor,ts
clrangc'. llxperierrcccì oper:ators rnn¡, [rc lully qualiiÍed 1,ct lurple¡raret'ì to
nraintain anel courl:lete farliliar tasks suclr as clisirrfection irr a diffr'rt:nt
rvai,or cr:rnpl le c'ntirtrly rrcrv t¡sks as Lrtilities ntotc into rrew areas such
as rccyclccl rvatct aucl wastc-to-eneì'gy conversiorr.

ts^Y\AiOl{K is a cous<-rrtium of ISay .A,rca tvate l aucl waslcrv¿ìler' utilitic's
rvorting together in the area olr.vorklorce leliability, Our fraining anrl cd-
trcaLiorr, plrilosoPh), js to pacl<agc training irr a forrlr that is ap1:eali¡g kr t¡e
auclierrce we \ryûr1t lo r:each. We sl¡pPlc'rnent tlris cr-lmrnjtnrc\nt by cncolu'-
a6çing atlclitional courmunication ancl inlorlriation-shar:ing among ¡reople
per:Íonnirrg missiolr-clitic¡rl jobs in the watcr inc1r,rstr1. Conrbining tliese

o /:,

24 SOUäCË rir j ,;t :
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8oflls/ we har,c itriliatccl a uer,v a¡rproaclr to
help water ancl lv¡islewater o¡rerators leatn
al¡r:ut iu¡ror¡atíolls fn watc.f atrd waster,r¡ater
trea tntell t consisfc.n L wi.tlr our cornrnitnrr.rlrt
to assure stalT in llìission-critical iob cate-
gofies;lravcl the ilrfornlatiotl tlìey neerl to c1o

qualìty wcrlk,
llvs¡r ¡re¡¡ IIA\1{¡Ol{K courpletes a stra-

tegic planuing ptocess to de'r,elop inili¿rLives
and pellbrlrarrc-'L' uìeasllres for tlre cotìlil1g
year. The BAYWORK llxeculive Couluittce
se lects Â mellu of proposed o¡:rtiorrs ¡ud lhc
rllallaBefs of sigrraiory agencies leview tlrc,rrr,

sele¡:t the ones theV considel tvill tre the mosL

¡rr:ocluctive nrrd nrake tlreir ou,n suggesticlns"
Orre iclea that evolvecl cluring the stt'ategic
planning process for Þ-f 20i13-2014 was tcr

offel tlaÌuirrg sessiolrs geared to watr..¡: ¿rncl

rvaçter{ateL h:ealurc"nt opel'atoll;, atrrl do jt
in a rvay drat recoprizes stal:f in these j<:bs

u,ould generaily puefer to lear¡r about sorne-
tlrjng in perseu arrd u¡r closç riltlìer than hear
fl.bottt it irr a clhssroonr settirlg. \\ie çotllrìrred
this idea wiilr or:re ol BAY\{ORK's funda-

rrental sh'ategics, rvlrich is to fostc.r ploce-
d'Lrral innclvation so that staffing lesoì.r'çes
can,be usecl nlore officientì), tlìen rescar:checl
ìnnovati r:ns a.t l3ay Alca w¿ttet' ¿lllcl w¡ìste\\t¿l -
ter utilities and tl¡eu clevelopecl ¿t pl:c)gl¿url

that providecl an o¡r¡:ortunity'for o¡re ratols tcr

see tlresc i.lrnor¿aiiolrs irr action.
Tlre resulting lVorkshop on lMt"ry's rlrodel

i rrcludes the fol lorving conlpollents
. Rese¿rt:ch orr ilrnovatiorrs at ll¿ry Arca

tvater alrcl tv¿ìslewâtet' treflhÌc'nt ¿rgcn-

cies,
t 'lìiurs kr observe these innovations in

acljon rvith visits kr rnr.rllitrrle sites in a

singìe clay.
r Suppor:t for orrgoirrg inforlriatiorr-

slrar:iug.
'lb clate, BAY\A/OììK lras sponsorecì two

tr:¿l\¡eling vvnrkshops, a Nor-th Ba¡r \ryor¡-
slrop on l{heels in Novenrber 2013 aucJ an
ìiast lìay \{or:kshop orr \Alheels itr lvlarch
2014, A South BayWor:kshop on Wheels is
planued for'ìate spring 20i¿!. T)articiparrts ilr
lhe Novenrlrer'2013 rvel:a al¡le hl observc. a

r,vicìe' l:augc oË cutiing-edge wâter usc, wfltcr
trea hrent aucl errergy creatiorl techrtologies,
inclLrrling;

r Tre¡tin$ \4/asiervater firr Non-Potable
Use (Las GallìnasValley \4hter: District)

. Sen¡irrg llecyclecì Water for luiovativc.
'Usc's (lr,farin Murrícipal 14htel District)

. Dechlcuination of Ëffluent Usirrg Engi-
rrc'crecl \{etland (City of p1-.¡¡1¡*-¡

¡ Actiflo PLocess and Chlorinc. Dioxìdc
(North lrilarin \4hter: :Districl)

. !'oot-l Waste t6 'lint'r:g' (Cerrtral lvfarin
Snnitation A.gc.ncy)

The 2013 tour also itrclucled preseutations
oll mall¿ì genretì i aspccts o[ n'a ter a n d'tv¡stc.-
water tr:eatment, inchtrlin¡; asset nìarla.ge-

nrcnl ¡rlarrrrìng (lloss Valley Sauitatir:n: IJis-
hict) ancl thc rrse ol llAY\{ORK's On-l,inc
Folr.rn,

Tlrc fast-¡racecl four' w¡s operl to staff of
any !'vatL'r or wasiervater utiliq, at uo cost.The
tours of lfie [¡cilides held paÍticipðuts'irlteresl-/
wlrile timr: on the Lrns allcllvec{ op¡rortunÌties
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PREMTER
rY\',SILIGA

Golorado Silica $and@
Ask for it by name!

48thAN N UAL WESTERN STATES
CORROSION SËMINAR

May 6-8,2014

WESTERN STATES CORROSION SEMINAR
FundamentalS $ésslon
lntermedlate Ssssion
Advancad Sesslon

CATHODIC PROTECTION RECTIFIER COURSE
,- 

:., ,'
CATHODIC PROTECTION TESTER RECOGNITION COURSE

Western Slales Corrosion Serninarwas founded in 1966 as a noö-profìt educali0nal

progtam. ll has Indludéd some of lhe forenìost experls in the fleld of corrosion

conlrol. Whelher your field k pipâlinès,. cablei or tanks, underground or

ãboveground, internãl 0r external, lhere i9 a preeonlalion by an erperl lhatcould

benelil you and yout organí¿ãliqn. lnstruclors are available for onè.od'one

discLlssions ãnd are hap.py to dlscu8r your problents, The seminar is held tn a

feláxed atnrospherê that encôurages discussion. obn't mlss this oppofunily lo

network wilh ptofesslonalo, develoþ helpful contacts, and axchango ìdeas ond

experiences with your coqntBrpstls ¡n lhe,world.of còrrosion conlrô|. Up to 14,5

Conlãct Hor¡rs are ava¡labl€.

Register by April 28th
Kellogg Wçst Conferenoe Center and Lor.fge

California Siate Pòiytechnic Universlty, Pomona

Visit our website at

www.westernstatescorros io n,org
or conlaot uE ât

949-326-30sI
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,,År",-p,ntio iiu"r oil ll¡c B¡\Y1A/OJ{K No|fli 6wlNotk:slnp on ldhcc/s Nortir'

Baywork, corrtitruecl ftc;tr ¡,;agil 2lì

for nettvorkirr¡¡, Parlìci¡rants inclurdccl wo -
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Conne ctor Kíngs Field Splice KÍts

Exc/usive inversion conversion kit e/iminates the possibility of moisture corroding wíre leads.

MAKE YOUR AMR/AMI, TRANSMITTER CONVERSIONS, &
FIELD SPLICES SEAMLESSLY. OUR SPLICE KITS OUTLIVE

THE COMPONENTS THEY CONNECT.
Qver 45 Million tnstalled Warldwide!

1-900-g 22-66A9
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EMERGENCY WATER CONSERVATION ORD¡NANCE

BE lT ORDAINED byrhe Boa¡d ofDrector of Norlì 1.4àrin War.r Dùrilct as follow3:

So.ttonL DÒclàâtÌon of a Water Shonage Emorgency

Tht Bo¿rd of Dlector doe¡ hereby find and declare as tollo*s,

(c)At said h"ning all percons presentwere given àn oPPodunìty to be heãrd ¡nd ðll Perons delring to be herd wge heard

(d) Sard he:rrnewas cal{ed, noticed and held in all respecß òs requn€d by law

G) Thß Bord Àsrd ild has conridered each prore* asålnf th€ declàrðtionànd all evidence presented at said hearrng

Søc.lon 2, Pu¡pose àn¿ Au.hoilry

Sectton t. Effect of Odtnanca

water shotage emergency has ended.

S66t,ona. S/rpoñ'¡o"of Now Connsc¡Ìon' to tho DI'¡rI..i Wât2t Sy'¡om

in9

<,Í conñe6ion pußuanr to the rerms ofconnectim âgreemenß whìch p¡ior ro July r,2or¡, had been executed o¡ had been aurhorted by rhe Board ofDrector to be executed:

(r) coñnect¡o¡s offic hydrðnts;

(l) coñnection, ofprop€ily prev¡ou5ly supplied withwåter from arell whlchruns drv

C) connecrton of prop€rry for which the Appl tcant aEees to defer landscrpe ins tallation until afi€r lhe !uspenrion pe lod.

Soc¡Ìon 5. W¿sto oÍ Wd¡ot Prohlhltod
No'vaterturnishedbytheDßrictshallbewð*ed. Wareofwaterincludes,butßnotlimitedto'thefollowingl

G) permitting w'ler to elcàPe down a guter, dftch or olher surf¡ce drain;

(b) fàilure to repàt a conkollàhle leak olw¿teí

G) failure to put to ressonable beneficiàl use ôny wàte¡wilhdrawn from the D¡sticts sv¡tem.

Sort¡on 6. Prchlhl¡lon ol Non.Essentlal Ute of l{atar

genq Plan for rheWest Måiln Seryice Area.

Stàge 2 - M¡ndårory Slãgo (25x roductlon)

O) The following usesare declared to be non-e$entiðl from ènd àft€r Julv 1,2ol4l

A) refilling o swìmming pool drôined ðfter July I.2014;

Requef reilðurànß to se¡ve vàter onlyuPon requeil

G) The following additional uses are declared to be non-esentìâl from and àfter Julv 1.20r4:

òj *y*" 
"¡"ier 

from ô flc hydrðnt except for fighring fires, human coñsumptìon, csr€nti¡l construction ¡eeds o, u5c in connaction with tnimôk:

hourr ofz,oo p.m. and l,oo a.m the next day lfsprinkler wôter b ured in awð5teful m¡nner the General M¿naqer mðy prchibtsprinkling by rhdtcunomer

(3) ure ofwater for dust conùol at coñilruction sitesi

k) inìiàl lilling ol ôûy 
'wimming 

pool for which application for a building pe¡mitwas mède åller April r' 20141

(7) lntedie deliveries ro lnverness Psblic tJtilt¡es D¡*rlct (IPUD), except for critical needs as derermined by the General Manager

iaj Outr",i., to 
"uro.",s 

olGide rhe service areð ercepr à' n;êded hr human con'umption, snìlãtion ènd public sàfety or å, ripulàted in outrìde serv¡ce agree'rents

Stàs. !. Sãvero Màrd¡tory Rårlonlng(so% rô¿uctlon)

(Ð Planting anynew landscaping, except lor designatcd drouqht re5ktãnt làn¿'cðping Prescribed bv the Dkrict

plànt survival mày be ðpplied.

by rhe Dtrict, as in (l) above,

i.ong the *ate, uren of the Dßkict rhe burdens imæsed bv rhe droughr and the shotage tn rhe Di*ricts water supplv

SocitonT. V¿¡lènce.

Se.tlon8, Vlolàtlonr

ih" h" fo' 
'""onn..rion.fsùch 

à s€rvicedu¡ine rhe supension period 
'hall 

be tloo in lieu of the fee requied by subsærbn O) hseof

Socrlon e 5l9ns on tandr Suppllcd lrcn PrlvatalAlells

Sâc aton I o. D rc !gh. Su rch¿tgo

pn ændircns. The Drcuqht Surcharge shall be a quanr¡ry charge for eãch r,o0o 9ållonr 65 specilied in Dktrict Resulôtion s4.

AYES: DÌectoro Baker F¡aites, Peterle, Rodoni, Schoonovet

NOES: None
ABSENT, None
AB5TAINED: None

Katie Young

Dttlct Secretary

No(h l'4àrin Wðt€r Dßtict
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Vof untary 20% cutback adopted for Novato North Marin Water
District customers
Posfed: mannlJ.com

About 61,000 Novato residents will soon be urged to cut back water usage 20 percent and

guided to tools to help them do so under an emergency water shortage ordinance adopted

Tuesday night by the North Marin Water District.

The water cutbacks in Novato are voluntary, at least at this point, under the ordinance
adopted by the district's board of directors. lf drought conditions should worsen, the

ordinance also has allowances for mandatory water usage cutbacks, though this would

require further action by the board.

"l am hopeful that we will not have to ask for mandatory cutbacks," Chris DeGabriele, the

district's general manager, told the board.

The same was not true for west Marin, which is also served by the district. During the

meeting, the board adopted a separate ordinance affecting the district's approximately 1,700

west Marin customers. These residents face voluntary 15 percent cutbacks beginning

immediately and a mandatory 25 percent reduction beginning July 1, expected to last

through October.

The west Marin area encompasses Point Reyes Station, Olema, Bear Valley, lnverness
Park and Paradise Ranch Estates.

Both ordinances, the one for west Marin and the one for Novato, passed unanimously.

Speaking of the 20 percent voluntary reduction in Novato, "This is the same amount the

governor is asking everyone in California to cut back. We waited to see what the rain would

do before formally declaring a shortage," said DeGabriele.

"The recent rain has not been enough to end the drought. Stafford Lake is now at 62 percent

of capacity and the Russian River, where most of the water for Novato comes from, is also

low, with Lake Sonoma at 75 percent of capacity and Lake Mendocino at 40 percent

capacity," DeGabriele said.

"We are launching a big public outreach campaign to help customers reduce their usage,"

the general manager said.

"Customers in the two districts will be notified in their bills and in a special newsletter and

directed to websites where they can figure out how much they need to cut back and how to

do it," DeGabriele said.

Customers can now visit www.wateroff.org for water-saving tips and a calculator showing

how much water each tactic would save, DeGabriele said. By the end of April, the district's

littp://www.marinij.com/novato/ci_]5473439/voluntaly-20-cutback-aclopted-novato-north-... 41212014



Volurrtary 20o/o cutback adopted for Novato North Marin Water District cttstomers - Mari... Page 2 of 2

website, www.nmwd.com, will feature charts showing each customer how much they need to

save, he said.

Since January, in the interests of helping customers save water, the water district has added

another water conservation staff member and a new program, an ultra-high-efficiency toilet
giveaway.

"This toilet uses only .8 gallons per flush," DeGabriele said. "Most low-flush toilets use 1.6

gallons per flush."

ln addition to the toilet giveaway, "We will be distributing water-saving kits with faucet
aerators, dye tabs to check for toilet leaks, shower timers and buckets," DeGabriele said.

The first giveaway will be at Vintage Oaks on April 23, he said.

"We are also requesting restaurants not to serve water unless it is requested," DeGabriele
said.

Contact Janis Mara via email at jmara@marinij.com. Follow her at Twitter.com limara

lrttp://www.rnarinii.conr/novato/cí_]5473439/voh-rntary-20-cutback-aclopted-novato-north-... 41212014
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-Gomputer consultant
will help with systern

Another consultant will step
in to help deal with the county,s
troubled SAP computer sys-
tem.
', County supervisors hired
SancroSoft USA of Fair Oaks
for $'166,400 for financial mod-
ule "production support of the* SAP software in Marin until its
replacement."

ïhe county bought a 930
million system that never
worked right and is so ex-
pensive to maintain it will be
junked as soon as another can
be selected. I
Gountyhonors i
Giacomin! Dairy

Rancher Robert Giacomini
and his family, operators of
West Marin's Giacomini Dairy,
got a salute anrl a round of ap-
plause from county officials the
other day for winning a presti-
gious conservation award.

Couniy supervisors noted
the dairy family won the Cali-
fornia Leopold Conservation
Award honoring landowners
for stewardship of natural re-
s0urces.

The award is given by the
Sand County Foundation, Cali-
fornia Farm Bureau Federation
and Sustainable Conservation.
Supervisor Steve Kinsey said
the Giaconlinis are the first in
Marin to get lhe awarcl.

Robert Giacomini said that,
in effect; what goes around
comes aroulid, as his fam-
ily launched the Point Reyes
Farmslead Cheese Co, making
award-winning cheeses, much
like early Marin ranchers who
lacked refrigeration and turned
their milk into cheese and but-
ter.

201 4

FAIRFAX

Arlists'woñ(to be
shown at Pavilion

The paintings and draw-
ings of five Marin artists wíll
be showcased at the Fairfax
Pavilion from 7 p.m. to 10 p.m
Aprí|11.

Work by Jack Scott, Ezra
Katz, Bac Hoang, Richard
Weinberger and Anna Noelle
Rockwellwíll be on display.
Matt Tasley, Fairfax's artist-
in-residence is hosting the
show The free event íncludes
refreshments.

KENTFI ELD

Superuisor Rice to
meetwith communrty

Supervisor Katie Rice will
host a community meeting at
the Bacich Community Center
at 699 Sir Francis Drake Blvd.,
in Kentfield from 10 a.m. to
'11:30 a.m. April 26.

Rice will answer questions
and take comments from the
public.

For more information, call
473-7351 or email nvernon@
marincounty.org.

MILL VALLEY

Honprofit plans to
host fundraiser

Walking Point Foundation, a
Mill Valley-based organizat¡on
that helps heal combat veter-
ans through the arts, is pre-

- senting the seconcl Gambling
Nightfrom 6to 10 p.m. Aprit22
at the Elks Lodge at 4S0 Post
St,, San Francisco.

The evening willfeature a
silent auction with prizes from
local sports teams, wineries
and restaurants, complimen-
tary appetizers and a cash

bar. Participants can purchas
chips for $25, $50 or gj0O at
www.walkingpointfoundatio n
eventbrite.com or at the door.
For more information, visit
www.walkingpoint.orgleventl

I'JCIV/rTû

Library offers talk on
issues with aging

Friends of the Novato Librar
ies present Dr. Loriselleck,
manager of health education ¿

Kaiser Marin, at 1i a,m. Satur
day with a talk on how to avoic
aging problems and feel bettel
and healthier.

The pubfic is invited and the
talk is free. The talk wilt take
place at the Novato library at
1720 Novato Blvd.

For more information, call
Marilyn Boatright, 47 3-2050.

SAN ANSËLMO

CouncilOKs skate
plazar leash citatlons

The San Anselmo Town
Council has approved planb
for a skate plaza on a portion
of the basketball area next to
Field 1 at Memorial Park at
1000 Sir Francis Drake Blvd.

The council also reviewed
park rules regarding dogs, on
and otf leash, and directed
staff to draft an ordinance that
wíll allow for citations to be
given to dog owners who don't
follow the park rules regarding
dogs.

The council took the actions
at its meeting Tuesday.

SAN RAFAEL

Entrepreneurs¡h¡p
Genter plans euent

The Renaissance Entrepre-
neurship Center will hold a free
youth inspiration event from
6 to I p.m. Wednesday atthe
center at 'l 

1 15 Third St.
Yôung adults ages I B to 25

willtalk about how they've
found success by following
their passions. Attendees will
meet business and agency rep-
resentatives with opportunities
and services to support young
entrepreneurs.

Pizza and sodas will be
served. Registration is required
at http://conta.cc/02j DWh.

For more information, call
755-11't 5.

flmyrurt$wn
> Send us your news: We want mote news items from Marin's

cities and towns. Emailthem to our City Desk at localnews@
marinij.com, mailtheln to City Desk, tvlarin lndependentJournal,
4000 Civic Center Drive, Suíte S01, San Rafael, CA g4903, orfax
lhem to 382-72A5. For more information abouttowns in Marin,
visitthe lJ's websíte at marinij.com.

> Send us your photos: We're looking for pictures to display
on this page and to supplement our coverage. Visit us online at
marinij.comlreaderphotos to submit your images direcfly to the lJ
website, download our iPhone app orto learn more.
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Movers & Shakers: San Rafael engineering firm wins state excellence award - Marin Inde... Page I of 2

ûÐ vw
Movers & Shakers: San Rafael eng¡neering firm w¡ns state
excellence award
Marin Independent Journal
Posted: mannlJ.com

The American Council of Engineering Companies of California has given Nute Engineering,

of San Rafael, an engineer¡ng excellence award for its work on the Locust Street pump

station improvement project in Sausalito.

Engineers

Ed Nute, Mark Wilson and

Steve Moore worked on the project with Novato architeci

Martin Wilson, San Rafael structural engineer

Roy Andrewson, and

Diep Nguyen, of DTN Electrical Engineering in Oakland.
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Michael DiGiorgio, former Novato mayor, dies of leukemia - Marin Independent Journal Page I of 2

Michael DiGiorgio, former Novato mayor, dies of leukemia
marinij.com

Posfed.

Michael DiGiorgio, a Novato Sanitary District director, former mayor of Novato and one of

the driving forces behind the early Hamilton Air Force Base projects, died of leukemia

Sunday afternoon, his family said. He was 73'

,'He was a gem," said Novato City Councilwoman Jeanne Mac-Leamy Sunday evening, her

voice trembling with emotion, "(Marin County Supervisor) Judy Arnold and I ran against him

for Novato City Council in 2003 and he was never anything but gracious and helpful' We

have been friends ever since."

"He was passionate about politics and politics being local," Alexa Vuksich, his sister-in-law,

said Sunday.

Mr. DiGiorgio was immediate past president of the Novato Chamber of Commerce, active

with Rotary and a real estate agent with Novato's Athas and Associates, in addition to his

many other accomplishments with the city.

Mr. DiGiorgio was born in New York and his family moved to California in 1 942. He attended

Menlo High School and the University of Arizona before a three-year stint in the United

States Army. After returning, he got a bachelor's degree in international trade at San

Francisco State University and an MBA at Pepperdine University.

Before entering politics, Mr. DiGiorgio held a number of jobs including working as a

stockbroker, working for the family business at DiGiorgio Corp. and working for an airline

company before moving to Novato in 1989 and purchasing a video store'

"We traveled a lot, He did so many things," said Mr. DiGiorgio's wife of 37 years, Gordonna

Vuksich, "We lived in London, Sacramento, El Paso, Palm Springs."

"He loved airplanes. One of the jobs he had was a small commuter airline flying out of Palm

Springs. When he joined the company in the 1980s it had two planes. He took that little

airline to 14 planes.

"Sun Aire was the company's name. When our son was born - I had designed the company

logo, orange and red circles depicting a desert sunset. The employees made a stained glass

ornament reading, "Son Aire," with my son's birth date on it," Ms. Vuksich said'

"He gave 120 percent. He worked diligently on Hamilton and Homeward Bound and getting

the skateboard park put in. There were so many things he was proud of that got

accomplished during his stint," Ms. Vuksich said.

Mr. DiGiorgio was well-known for his humor, and Ms, Vuksich commented tongue in cheek,

"l was so angry with him because he went before he finished doing the taxes."

http://www.marinij .co mlnovatolc\_2551 0067/michael-digiorgio-former-novato-mayor-dies-. .. 41812014



Michael DiGiorgio, former Novato mayor, dies of leukemia - Marin Independent Journal Page 2 of 2

"Mike was a pillar of the community," said Michael Frank, Novato's city manager. "He was

very involved in Leadership Novato and acted as a friend and mentor to many. He was

always respectful and friendly, even when you disagreed, He was a true public servant."

"He had a dry sense of humor and could occasionally be irreverent. That's one of the things

we are going to miss about him. He had that wonderful sense of humor. When things were

dark and gloomy he could always crack a joke and make us smile, then get back to the

problem at hand in a lighter frame of mind," said Sandeep Karkal, manager-engineer of

Novato Sanitary.

"He has left a great foundation and we will continue to build on it. Under his leadership and

direction the board set a good forward-looking strategic vision and plan and we are going to

put our heads down and implement it," Karkal said'

"lt's a huge loss," said Coy Smith, chief executive of the Novato Chamber of Commerce. "He

put the community first. He dedicated his life to service to whatever boards he was on and

whatever groups he was involved in.

"Whether he had to go clean up a street for Rotary or give a speech to 500 people, he

considered the one just as important as the other. Everything mattered. Everything had a

meaning and was important to him, Smith said.

"Mike's passing has created a huge void in Novato, but that void is being filled with the

amazing legacy he has left," said City Councilwoman Denise Athas.

A real estate agent, Mr, DiGiorgio was an associate at the councilwoman's firm.

"He was all things Novato - from his elected positions on the City Council and sanitary

district to his lengthy real estate career," Athas said. "He loved Novato. I will miss him every

day, but my life has been enriched by knowing him, working with him and being able to call

him my friend,"

A memorial service for Mr. DiGiorgio is planned for May 5 at City Hall'

Mr. DiGiorgio is survived by his wife of 37 years, Gordonna Vuksich, an addiction counselor,

and his son Anthony, a neurosurgery resident at Louisiana State University Health Sciences

Center New Orleans,

Contact Janis Mara via email at jmara@marinij.com, Follow her at Twitter.com limara

http://www.marinij.com/novato/ci_!5510067/rnichael-digiorgio-former-novato-mayor-dies-... 41812014
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Marin Clean Energy ra¡ses rates 7 percent, considers expans¡on
marinij.comPosted:

Marin Clean Energy customers began paying 7 percent more this week.

The rate hike that took effect Sunday comes as the public energy authority continues to

attract new members. The county of Napa and the cities of Albany and San Pablo have all

requested permission to join.

"The rate change this year lines up with power supply costs that we're seeing in the market,

and the same power supply costs have affected PG&E rates as well," said Dawn Weisz,

Marin Clean Energy's executive director.

Weisz said customers of Pacific Gas and Electric Co. will still be paying more for electricity
when that company's next scheduled rate hike goes into effect on May 1.

PG&E spokeswoman Brittany McKannay said, "l cannot speculate what would be accurate

in May because those numbers have not been finalized."

Weisz said with Marin Clean Energy's rate increase, an average MCE residential customer
will be paying 582.28 per month, about 72 cents less per month than a similar PG&E

customer when that company's next rate hike takes effect a few weeks from now. She said

an average commercial customer of MCE will be paying $13.96 a month less than a

comparable PG&E commercial customer.

McKannay said an average residential customer of PG&E currently pays $79.41 per month.

Weisz said the California Public Utilities Commission has directed PG&E to begin passing

along to customers costs that the company has been deferring for over a year. These costs,

which MCE is already including in its rates, reflect the added expense of energy production

that creates greenhouse gases. Because of new cap and trade laws, greenhouse emitters

must purchase pollution credits,

Weisz said a state requirement that retailers of electricity obtain an increasing amount of

their energy from renewable sources - 33 percent by 2020 - is partially responsible for the

increased power supply costs of both MCE and PG&E. She said MCE continues to exceed

the state mandated levels, while PG&E is lagging behind them.

"Also, market prices are up slightly from the prior year, just for standard, conventional
power," Weisz said.

MCE, which consists of the county of Marin, all l1 of Marin's municipalities and the city of

Richmond, is the first successful attempt in California to launch a new, public model for
providing electricity to residents. lt serves as the retail electricity provider for its 124,000

customers, who continue to also pay PG&E for transmission and distribution of their

electricity.

http://www.marinij.com/l.trews/ci _2552544I/Marin-Clean-Energy-raises-rates-7 41t012014
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Weisz sa¡d MCE's rates will be lower despite the fact that the California Public Utilities

Commission requires MCE to pay PG&E a special fee to compensate it for energy contracts

it entered into before customers opted to switch energy suppliers. For example, she said of

the $82.28 that an average MCE customer will pay each month, $5.89 will be added PG&E

fees.

"Our customers are paying $13 million this year alone to PG&E in departing load charges,"

Weisz said. "lt's really an onerous charge. lt's not tied to the real needs that PG&E has for

buying power,"

She said MCE will appeal to the utilities commission this year to reduce the fee.

Many MCE customers, however, are more interested in cutting their greenhouse gases than

trimming costs. MCE was formed primarily because critics of PG&E felt the investor-owned

utility was moving too slowly to boost its use of renewable energy sources.

Currently, 50 percent of the MCE's energy comes from renewable sources, while renewable

sources account for only 20 percent of PG&E's energy. MCE also estimates - using data

supplied by third-party organizations such as the Climate Registry - the emission factor of
its portfolio in 2012 was 19 percent lower than PG&E's reported emission factor for the same
year.2012 is the most recent year for which PG&E numbers are available. Emission factors

express the rate at which greenhouse gases are produced.

McKannay noted, however, that if the energy PG&E gets from large hydroelectric projects

and nuclear plants were counted as renewable, then nearly half of the company's energy

would come from renewable sources.

MCE is currently studying the potential customer bases in the county of Napa and the cities

of Albany and San Pablo to determine if it can absorb these jurisdictions economically.

Weisz said the evaluation will take three to four weeks. She estimates the addition of all

three jurisdictions could add another 27,000 customers to the MCE.

ln his letter requesting admission into MCE, San Pablo Mayor Paul Morris said that his city

has a goal of reducing its greenhouse gas production 1B percent below 2005 levels by the

year 2020.

Morris wrote, "We believe membership in a Community Choice Aggregation program such

as MCE would go far in helping the City reach these goals, as well as provide our residents

with greater choice in the energy marketplace,"

Contact Richard Halstead via e-mail at rhalstead@marinij,com. Follow him at

twitter. com/ha lstead richard

http://www.marinij.com/News/ci _25525441/Marin-Clean-Energy-raises-rates-7 4lt0l20r4
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Dick Spotswood: Water and schools show up as top Marin voter
concerns
Posted: maflnlJ.com

QUESTIONS propounded in campaign-commissioned public opinion polls have multiple

purposes. Some are tracking questions designed to inform campaign managers how their

candidate is doing compared with others in the race.

Others are designed to test campaign themes or dry-run negative comments about opposing

candidates.

Another type of question is formulated so that the sponsoring candidate gains insight into

voters' thoughts,

The survey commissioned by Assemblyman Marc Levine, D-San Rafael, reported last week

incorporated a question seeking poll respondents' highest priority of statewide issues.

It's no surprise that the No. 2 issue described by 84 percent of respondents as a high priority

was "improving the quality of education in public schools'"

Perhaps it's the lack of rain this winter, but the No. 1 priority emanating from surveyed Marin

and Southern Sonoma residents was "ensuring a reliable, long-term water supply." Fully 86

percent made water their highest priority.

The third priority, a three*way tie at B1 percent, was for "creating jobs," "ensuring that state

finances are balanced and secure in the event of another economic downturn" and "reducing

the role of money in state politics."

The lowest ranking of the 16 issues surveyed at 41 percent was "using current state budget

surpluses to increase funding for social services."

lil

EVERYONE is for "public involvement." Theoretically, the term implies that government

communicate with ordinary people, e,g. you and me, when formulating policies and making

decisions.

The concept works best when the inquiring public officials are directly elected. Then they

ignore public opinion at their own risk. lf elected officials decide to go in another direction

because of ego, agency culture or pressure from special-interest groups, they take their

chances on Election Day,

The dilemma is that the unelected bureaucrats who really run Bay Area regional agencies

didn't consult with average citizens when it came to creating Plan Bay Area and the landslide

of so-called incentives designed to urbanize Marin.

http://www.marinij.com/marinnewslci 255252871dick-spotswood-water-and-schools-show.'. 411012014
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lnstead of talking to affected residents, their public involvement was aimed at what's called

"stakeholders" who tell them what they want to hear.

County supervisors, planning staff and regional agencies are infatuated with stakeholders.

Not so much city council members who live and die with grassroots contact.

One reader said the stakeholder term usually includes "housing activists, bankers, builders,

architects, bureaucrats, developers but no homeowners or regular constituents." I'd also

include the Marin Community Foundation.

Marin's elected officials should understand that the first stakeholders they need to consult

are their constituents. Anything less is not "public involvement'"

ill

THERE'S ALWAYS BEEN anecdotal comments about who uses the Golden Gate Bridge.

It's an important question because bridge travelers fund the intercounty buses and ferries on

which many Marinites depend.

On an average day, Golden Gate Bridge auto drivers are composed of residents from the

following counties: Marin,38.B percent; San Francisco,23.3 percent; Sonoma, 10.8 percent;

San Mateo, 6.6 percent; Alamed a,2.7 percent; Santa Clara, 2.4 percent; Contra Costa, 1.7

percent; Napa, 0.8 percent; Solano, 0.7 percent; other, 11.9 percent.

It's curious that bridge crossers from two counties, Mendocino and Del Norte, are statistically

invisible despite that these two counties each select a director to sit on the Golden Gate

Bridge District's 19-member board.

The bridge itself generates surplus cash that's used to support its transit services.

Understand that no transit agency in North America breaks even. Transit, just like streets

and highways, needs tax or, in this case, toll dollars to operate.

Marinites should know that more than half of Golden Gate toll-payers come from outside

Marin. Be grateful. Without their tolls to subsidize our transbay buses and ferries we'd face a

much higher local tax burden.

Columnist Dick Spotswood of Mill Valley now shares his views on local politics twice weekly

in the lJ. His email address is spotswood@comcast.net,

http://www.marinij.com/marinnewslci 255252871dick-spotswood-water-and-schools-show... 4lI0l20I4
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Novato remembers Mike D¡Giorgio
By Joe Wolfcale I Posted: \Mednesdayo April 9,201412:07 pm

Last V/ednesday, the entire staff of Athas and Associates closed up shop early and headed to Mike

DiGiorgio's Novato home, hell-bent on throwing one special birthday party.

DiGiorgio, who had worked as an associate and real estate agent, had a birthday on the horizon

and Athas and her staff knew time was of the essence. DiGiorgio had been recently diagnosed

with Acute Myeloid Leukemia and hospice care was being arranged.

"We got a birthday cake and balloons and he greeted us at the door with this huge smile," said

Denise Athas, who like DiGiorgio, also served the city as mayor.

,,It was an absolutely wonderful time," Athas said. "He was thrilled that we closed the office in his

honor. It was the best office meeting we've ever had."

Happiness turned to sadness over the weekend as the former city councilmember and Novato

Sanitary District director succumbed to his illness at home Sunday. He was 73. This Friday is his

birthday.

"It's an amazingspecial memory I'll always have of Mike," said Athas, who hired DiGiorgio to

work as an agent several years ago. "I-Ie was so full of life. He had more passion for this town than

anyone I've ever met. In a lot of ways, Mike was my mentor."

In an email to the Novato City Council Monday morning, City Manager Michael Frank delivered

the news.

,,It is with sadness that I let you know that Mike DiGiorgio passed away yesterday at his home,"

Frank said in his email. A memorial is being planned for May 5 at City Hall'

DiGiorgio served eight years on the city council and was one of the leaders behind the Hamilton

Air Force Base Re-use Plan where a closed military institution was converted to a bustling

community with million dollar homes and thriving businesses.

He twice served as mayor and as president of the Novato Chamber of Commerce. DiGiorgio re-

entered the world of politics in 2005 when he ran unopposed for a seat on the Novato Sanitary

Board. His opinions were sometimes controversial, but he always stuck to his guns.

,,He had this amazing conviction and courage about it," Athas said. "He lived with his decision

and I respect him tremendously for that. He didn't always take the easy answer. He showed a lot

of courage in the way he lived."

htþ://www.marinscope.conVnovato_advance/news/article-4Obfbd78-c01a-1 ie3-b401-001'.. 4lI0l20l4



Novato remembers Mike DiGiorgio - Marinscope Community Newspapers : News Page2 of2

Athas said DiGiorgio was healthy up until a few weeks ago when he came down with a severe

infection. "He knew it was terrninal but we had no idea he'd go with the rapid speed he did. We

had so many special moments. I'm going to miss."

Novato Councilmember Pat Eklund said she f,rrst met DiGiorgio working on the Hamilton Reuse

Project.

"I really admired his commitment to Novato," Eklund said. "He also worked hard for the sanitary

board and committed a lot of his time to the community and the city."

Born April 12,Ig40 in New York, DiGiorgio's family moved to Californiain 1942. He attended

Menlo High School and the lJniversity of Arizona before serving a three-year stint in the U.S.

Army.

He earned an undergraduate degree in international trade from San Francisco State University and

got an MBA from Pepperdine University,

DiGiorgio had a number ofjobs in his early years, working on BART with Kaiser Sand & Gravel,

the family business, Sun Aire, a commuter airline, as an aircraft speculator and stockbroker before

finally moving to Novato in 1989.

Survivors include his wife, Gordonna Vuksich, an addiction counselor and a son, Anthony, a

neurosurgeon at Louisiana State University Health Center in New Orleans.

C o nt ac t J o e l4 o lfc al e at jw olfcale@matins cop e. c om'

http://www.marinscope.com/novato_advance/news/article-40bfbd78-c01a-1 1e3-b401-001.'. 4lI0l20I4
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Novato bike park scores another $25,000 donation
mannlJ.comPosfed:

Another $25,000 corporate donation rolled in for the Stafford Lake bike park Tuesday,

bringing fundraising to near the halfway mark.

ln return for the contribution, Bike Monkey lnc. of Santa Rosa will get its name emblazoned

on a "kids learn to ride" zone at the park for seven years, as well as advertising and other

perks.

"lt makes perfect sense for us to support something like that," Carlos Perez, head of Bike

Monkey, told county supervisors. "lt's a new cool thing for the area."

The sponsorship follows a $75,000 pledge from Santa Cruz Bicycles, a firm that won a

"fastest-growing" bike business award last year from Bicycle Retailer and lndustry News.

Officials said construction of the first phase of the park will begin this summer following the

success of the public-private funding partnership that has generated $392,000, or 46 percent

of the project's $850,000 goal. About 82 percent of the $480,000 needed for the first phase

of construction is in hand.

Stephen Petterle, the county's principal landscape architect, said other corporate sponsors

are being lined up. ln addition, the Stafford Lake Bike Park is one of four finalists for a

$100,000 Bell grant from Bell Helmets of Champaign, lll. The winner will be selected

following public voting that ends April 20 at www.bellhelmets.com/bellbuilt.

A new nonprofit, Friends of Stafford Lake Bike Park, is helping to raise funds. The group

includes Julia Violich, Mark Weir and Al Bauman, a former county parks commissioner'

Other donors include the Violich Family Foundation, which has pledged $50,000, and Mike's

Bikes, which also pledged $50,000. A $25,000 pledge came from WTB of MillValley, a firm

that supplied parts to local bike pioneers decades ago'

The bike fund includes a $50,000 challenge grant from county supervisors. The county also

provided $182,000 for design and construction drawing work by consultants Hilride

Progression Development GrouP.

The master plan calls for a sophisticated network of trails, configurations, challenges, riding

zones and stations that can accommodate cyclists of all skill levels.

The facility is planned on a 1 7-acre northwestern segment of the 139-acre Stafford Lake

Park.

Those interested in becoming a donor may call 473-6394.

Contact Nels Johnson via email at njohnson@marinij.com. Follow him at

twitte r. com/ne lsj oh n son news

http://www.marinij.com./News/ci ]5531921/l.Jovato-bike-park-scoles-another-25000 4tr0t20r4
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Proposed $32.7 million budget unve¡led for Novato
mannlJ.comPosted.

Novato's city manager has unveiled a proposed $32.7 million operating budget for the city

that includes no cuts and adds staff positions in a number of key areas.

ln recent years, the city slashed millions of dollars from the budget and cut more than 20

percent of its workforce, but the proposed 2014-15 budget represents the third year the city

has been able to avoid cuts. The council took no action Tuesday, as this was the first

hearing of the budget.

The proposed 2014-2015 budget represents a 6.5 percent increase over last year's budget.

"The key message is that after many years, I think seven, the city is moving forward," said

City Manager Michael Frank in his presentation.

"We are investing in Novato in a number of areas," Frank said, "First and foremost we are

investing in the community's infrastructure."

Part of the reason the city has avoided cuts is Measure F, the city's temporary sales tax

extension forecast to generate $22 million over five years. Frank proposed to use Measure F

to fill in budget deficits - $t.6 million in 2014-15 - and fund investment in the maintenance

of city-owned facilities and assets such as buildings and pavement.

Staff positions would be added. "The economic development manager position is

recommended to be moved from Measure F funding into the general fund" as a core

position, said Brian Cochran, Novato's finance manager'

ln addition, a senior information technology analyst and several front-office workers for the

police department were created in the proposed budget, among other positions.

Other areas for investment included funding for "some quality-of-life items such as maybe

continuing with the Redwood Corridor planning process with some additional charettes,"

Cochran said. The finance manager was referring to a series of public meetings that were

held in 2013 to give Novato residents a chance to say how they would like the corridor to be

developed.

"We are investing in technology. ln most of our administrative infrastructure, we have a long

way to go," Frank said, "We believe by investing now we can reap long-term benefits and

customer service improvement,"

Cochran said, "We are looking at a multi-year plan to invest in technology and expand online

access, Community Development is looking at rolling out e-permitting to a broader base in

the community. On the internal side, we'll have a variety of projects for our public works

department including imaging files so staff can track orders for service."

http://www.marinij.com/novato/ci_25533504/proposed -32-7 -million-budget-unveiled-nov... 4ll0l20l4
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"This is just the first of several meetings we're going to have on this, but council felt

encouraged by the whole tone of the evening," Councilwoman Denise Athas said. "We felt

so much more encouraged than in past budget times. I feel excited about what our future will

be."

Contact Janis Mara via email at jmara@marinij.com. Follow her at Twitter.com limara.

http://www.marinij.com/novato/cl_25533504/proposed -32-7 -million-budget-unveiled-nov,.. 411012014
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The failure of a rain gauge at Kent Lake to meet a key threshold has triggered voluntary rationing for
North Marin Water District customers in West Marin, with mandatory rationing set to begin on July
r. The district's water rights to Lagunitas Creek stipulate that the gauge needs to receive at least zB
inches of rain or more by April r to avoid rationing. This year it narrowly missed the requirement,
vnth 27.6 inches. Even if the area receives more rainfall, the ordinance will remain in place. That
water right "took into account... that even if there were subsequent rainfall, the aggregate would be a
dry-year condition," said Drew Mclnþre, the chief water engineer for the district. This is the first
time since the water right was adopted in 1995 that fewer than zB inches of rain were measured at
the gauge. The voluntary stage asks its customers in Point Reyes Station, Inverness Park, Olema,
Bear Valley and Paradise Ranch Estates for a r5 percent reduction from April to June, compared to
the same billing period last year. Starting July t, and until the board passes a resolution ending the
conservation ordinance, the district will require a 25 percent reduction compared to last year's use.
Non-essential uses of water, such as washing driveways and patios, refilling a swimming pool and
car-washing, will be prohibited, even for those meeting the mandatory reduction. Still, any
residential connection using less than zoo gallons a day-about 4o percent of West Marin's 777
connections-will be considered in compliance with the ordinance. "We encourage them to do what
they can and take additional measures where possible, but we recognize that they are doing a lot
already," Mr. Mclntyre said. By the end of April, customers will be able to log into their accounts at
nmwd.com and view a graph of their water use, as well as their reduction target.
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Marin water crunch was eased by late winter, spr¡ng ra¡ns
maflnlJ.comPosted:

The topsy-turvy rainy season in Marin is ending on an up note, meaning water supplies for

most of the county are in good shape as summer approaches.

"We are in a lot better shape than we were a few months ago," said Libby Pischel,

spokeswoman for the county's largest water agency, the Marin Municipal Water District.

"The reservoirs have come up nicely."

The year 2013 saw the smallest about of rainfall recorded for a calendar year in Marin: 10.68

inches at Lake Lagunitas, where the water district - which has data dating to 1879 - keeps

its official weather gauge. The previous record low was set in 1929 when 19.06 inches of

rain fell.

January only had .01 of an inch of rain, another all-time low. And as February began, Marin

was in the grips of a full-on drought. There were rumblings of mandated conservation as the

district's reservoirs appeared to be heading below 40,000 acre feet, which would have

triggered the action on April 1 . A 25 percent voluntary cut was implemented by the district.

But on Feb. 2 the rains came. And they kept on coming.

On Feb. 1 the rainfall since July 1 ,2013, was stuck at 3.80 inches. Since then an astounding

28.79 inches of rain has been recorded, bringing the total to 32.59 inches.

While not enough to completely wipe out the deficit brought on by the dry early winter -
average rainfall for this time of year is a touch beyond 47 inches - it has provided breathing

room for the county.

This week the district's reservoirs have 64,578 acre-feet of water, which is B1 percent of

capacity. One acre foot is 325,851 gallons. The average for this time of year is 91 percent.

"And people are doing a great job of conserving," Pischel noted.

This year people are using an average of 83.60 gallons of water per day. A year ago it was

1\2.32gallons. The district has 190,000 customers between Sausalito and San Rafael.

The district has not lifted its call for a 25 percent voluntary cutback, but that will be looked at

in the coming months if more rain arrives.

"Historically, we get 5 to 6 inches from now to July 1," Pischel noted.

ln response to the drought, the district started pumping water out of Phoenix Lake, a reserve

reservoir. But the practice stopped as rains filled reservoirs, including Phoenix.

ln Novato, the North Marin Water District has not implemented mandatory water use

restrictions, although it is asking for a voluntary reductions, lt has recorded 12,49 inches at

http://www.marinij.com/marinnewslci_25540876/marin-water-crunch-was-eased-by-late-.'. 4lIIl20l4
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its Stafford Lake reservoir since July 1. On average 19.46 inches would have fallen by this

time of year.

Some rural water districts in West Marin, which rely largely on groundwater, were set to

implement mandatory conservation measures this spring. But plans in one district have been

put on hold because of the recent rains. The Stinson Beach County Water District was ready

to begin in April and had a communitywide plan in place, but that has been pushed back to

May, and might not be implemented then.

"lt could be moved back further," said Ed Schmidt, general manager of the Stinson Beach

district, which has 726 water hookups. "The board will decide."

The district has logged 25 inches of rain, which is about B0 percent of normal.

"We have caught up a bit and there could be more rain," schmidt said. "We will have to

see."

Diane Henderson of the National Weather Service said more rain before summer is a

possibility, but not over the next 10 days.

"We may get some coastal drizzle, but that's about it," said she said. "The spring rains were

a pleasant surprise though."

Contact Mark Prado via email at mprado@marinij.com

htç://www.marinij.com/marinnewslci]5540876lmarin-water-crunch-was-eased-by-late-..' 4lIIl20I4
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